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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEBARR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group's revenue generated from its continuing
operations increased to HK$24.0 million (2023: HK$21.7 million),
representing an increase of 10.5% as compared to the year ended
31 March 2023. A loss of HK$59.4 million from its continuing
operations was recorded (2023: HK$36.8 million). The widening of
the loss was attributable to the impairment loss on prepayment,
deposits and other receivables of HK$30.0 million (2023: HK$16.1
million) and increase in investment properties fair value diminution
of HK$9.6 million (2023: HK$0.7 million).

The Group's continuing operations comprised of five segments,
namely (i) trading of optical frames and sunglasses, (ii) film
investment and distribution, (iii) property investment, (iv) debts and
securities investment, and (v) energy business.

Revenue from trading of optical frames and sunglasses increased
from HK$7.8 million in the prior year to HK$12.9 million in the Year.
This segment recorded a loss of HK$7.5 million in the Year (2023:
segment profit of HK$2.6 million).

During the Year, the Group has made 3 investments, including “The
Brotherhood of Rebel” ( (ZB2) ) and “Ready or Rot” ( {IH
i 4E2) ) which were released during the Year. Revenue from film
investment and distribution dropped from HK$12.6 million in the
prior year to HK$9.7 million in the Year, while the segment loss
narrowed down to HK$4.3 million (2023: HK$8.4 million), resulted
from a decrease in impairment loss on investment in associates
from HK$9.6 million in the prior year to HK$5.1 million in the Year.

Rental income from property investment business remained stable
at HK$1.4 million (2023: HK$1.3 million).

For debts and securities investment segment, the Group did not
generate any revenue in both years.

The Group did not generate any revenue from energy business in
both years. In the Year, an impairment loss on prepayment, deposits
and other receivables of HK$24.2 million (2023: HK$5.8 million) was
recognised, resulting in an increase in segment loss from HK$4.9
million in the prior year to H$24.2 million in the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS W

PROSPECT

For Eyewear Business, while the strategic shift as a procurement
and sourcing service provider aimed to create a more flexible
and cost-efficient platform, the anticipated benefits have been
hampered by the deteriorating macroeconomic conditions.

The Company's expectation of steady macroeconomic conditions,
which underpinned the target of progressively restoring the
Eyewear Business to pre-transition levels, has unfortunately
not materialized. Instead, the global economic landscape has
presented formidable challenges that have impeded the recovery
trajectory initially observed.

Approaching to the year ending 31 March 2025, the eyewear
industry in Hong Kong, including the Group, faces unprecedented
challenges in an increasingly volatile global market. The sector is
grappling with significant pressures that threaten its longstanding
market position and profitability. The persistent inflationary
pressures, particularly in key markets such as Europe and the United
States, have led to a more severe decline in consumer purchasing
power than anticipated. This has resulted in a marked decrease in
demand for eyewear products, as consumers increasingly prioritize
essential goods over discretionary items like fashion eyewear.

On the other hand, the Company, with its primary production
connections in Mainland China, is experiencing severe strain due
to rising costs and eroding price competitiveness. The emergence
of lower-cost manufacturing hubs in Southeast Asia has created
a challenging environment, significantly impacting the pricing
advantage and profit margins. This shift in the competitive
landscape has made it increasingly difficult for the Company to
maintain profitability while adhering to high-quality standards.

In response to these challenges, the management of the Company
are embarking on a longterm strategy to diversify our supply chain.
The Company is actively exploring partnerships with reliable yet
cost-competitive suppliers in the Southeast Asia region. However,
it is crucial to note that this is not a quick fix. The process of
identifying, vetting, and building relationships with new suppliers
who can meet the standards for quality and reliability will take
considerable time. During this transition period, it is anticipating
potential impacts on our short-term performance.

For Film Investment Business, the Hong Kong film industry is
showing encouraging signs of recovery and growth. The Company
maintains a positive and optimistic outlook on the Hong Kong
film market, supported by recent industry developments and the
strategic moves of the Group within the sector.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS W

PROSPECT (Continued)

The film exhibition market in China, including Hong Kong and
Macau, has regained significant momentum recently, with a
noticeable trend of increased enthusiasm among movie-goers.
This resurgence provides a solid foundation for the long-term
development of the industry.

The recent strategic cooperation with Emperor Motion Pictures
("EMP") marks a significant milestone in the diversification strategy
of the Group. It allows the Group to invest in a slate of multiple
film projects, offering the Group as path sharing the momentum of
industry. The Group believes such approach of portfolio investment
will generate more sustainable returns over time, mitigating risks
associated with individual film performances.

The Hong Kong film industry has demonstrated remarkable
resilience and adaptability, gradually rebounding from the
challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Hong Kong
Government’s supportive policies, focused on encouraging
investment projects and facilitating film production, are expected
to further enhance the industry’s development. Additionally, the
international recognition of Hong Kong cinema remains strong.

Building on the success of our collaboration with EMP, the
Company is actively and confidently pursuing further cooperation
and investment opportunities with other major production houses
in Hong Kong. The determination of the Group to expand the
presence in the film industry is unwavering, and it is committed to
fostering strong partnerships across the industry.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any material capital
commitment (2023: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no significant liabilities (2023:
Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 4 January 2024, the Group entered into the Provisional Sale
and Purchase Agreement (the “"Agreement”) with the Purchaser,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to dispose of and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase the Property at the consideration
of HK$9.1 million. Completion took place on/before 3 May 2024
in accordance with the Agreement. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4 January 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS W

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GOING CONCERN

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$7.1 million (2023: HK$7.4 million). To finance
its operations and investments, the Group utilises cash flows
generated from operations and from a loan facility granted by an
independent third party. As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total
borrowings of HK$13.1 million (2023: HK$Nil). The loan facility is
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable within one year. Gearing
ratio of the Group (expressed as a percentage of total borrowings
over total assets) was 14.3% as at 31 March 2024 (2023: Zero). As at
31 March 2024, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$35.1 million (2023: HK$2.8 million).

A series of plans and measures have been taken to mitigate
liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the
Group. In order to enhance the liquidity and improve the financial
position of the Group, the Group has obtained external financial
support.

Details regarding uncertainties on the going concern of the Group
and the respective plans and measures are set out in the section
headed “Going concern basis” in Note 3 to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed 26 (2023: 40) full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Salaries, bonuses
and benefits are determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee, and are subject to review from time to time.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year (2023: Nil).

RBER UBERRFEEES

RZE-_NME=A=+—"H A£EERS
FIREEEAWMH A7,100,0008 T (==
— =% :7,400,000 L) - AEEF AL
BELANBESRELBIYE - RENE
PRHELBEEERRERBES - RZFT
—HE=ZA=+—H A£EENEELEA
13,100,000 T ( —E - =F : THJT) ° %
EEXRMEAEERR FERAEAR—FANE
B R-EBE-_NFE=A=+—H XxEEHN
EEABER (UEEEBGHEERENED
LERR)BIAZ% (ZE_=ZF :F) - R =
T ME=ZA=1+—H AEBRHEAER
BERENEE35,100,0008 T (Z T - =4
2,800,000/ 7T ) ©

AEE DRI — R F T8 R A5 i DA RE R
BECBENRREVBIRN - RIERAKE
MBE B IKF M IE BN - ANEEE B
1FOMNEBRA 5 32 45 ©

BRASEFELCEN T HEEE KA
LR F BN R E M ERERMES [#

BREREE] —f-

18 & e 5 M B 5%
R-F-ME=A=+—A AEERFTE
M BB 265 (= F = =4  40%)
2HIES - AEE S E IS EI A REGIE
BrRR ABRERETH S LARE
A+ 3 BT R AT o

2
EZeMERZRNAFEZTMARE (=
To=FE)

RN BEEREEEGIR AR 2023/2024 £ 7



8

Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS W

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Being one of the major traders and exporters of optical frames,
the Group has put its emphasis on product quality and production
technology development. Putting the customers’ needs on the
highest priority, the Group always strives to provide customers with
first class service and full satisfaction.

The Group is also actively identifying and exploring other
investments and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. Potential acquisitions or mergers will be assessed by
the Board for expansion of the business segments of the Group.
The Board believes diversified investments are beneficial to the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to the Management Discussion and
Analysis.

In the normal course of business, the Group's operations, business
performance, financial position and prospects may be exposed to
the following risks and uncertainties:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Risk

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence
and buying habits will affect the sales, revenue and results
of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective
geographical markets that affected consumer spending
on our products will also affect the Group's business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and
strengthen penetration of different geographical markets
thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

2. Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables, accruals and deposits received, lease liabilities
and interest-bearing borrowings. The management will closely
monitor the risks attributable to those assets should there
be any significant exposure arise in the future. Details of the
Group's credit and liquidity risks are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS W

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

3.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly bank balances at prevailing market interest
rates. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi (“RMB"”) and United Stated dollar
("USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD, the
Group does not foresee any material exchange risk in this
respect. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE-HTERELIHSE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report highlights its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the "ESG") performance by the Group, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("“Stock Exchange”).

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
areas, namely, environmental and social areas of the business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Company has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide and followed the following
reporting principles in the preparation of this ESG Report:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

e  Materiality
The Group determines ESG issues that are significantly
important by stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. Details are explained in the sections headed
"Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” of
this ESG Report.

e Quantitative
Information is presented with quantitative measure,
whenever feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

e Balance
This ESG Report identifies the achievements and challenges
faced by the Group.

e Consistency
This ESG Report is the fourth ESG Report of the Group. This
ESG Report will use consistent methodologies for meaningful
comparisons in the following years unless improvements in
methodologies are identified.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the
combined control, management and operations information
provided by the subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's
internal management systems. In the event of contradiction
or inconsistency between the Chinese version and the English
version, the English version shall prevail.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIBS

Reporting Boundary

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG Report
covers the Group's businesses including (a) the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses; (b) the property investment segment; (c) the
debts and securities investment segment; (d) the film investment
and distribution segment; and (e) the energy business segment.

STAKEHOLDE ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the concerns of its stakeholders through
day-to-day communications. Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development and success.
They help the Group to develop a business strategy that meets
the needs and expectations of stakeholders, enhance the ability
to identify risk and strengthen important relationships. The Group
communicates with its stakeholders through various channels,
shown as below.

Stakeholders Communication Channels
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -eREIHBS

Stakeholders Communication Channels

FinE BERE
Customers . Email and customer service hotline
EDS BEBREPRBAR
o Business meetings
E -
o Company website
YNGIFENS
Suppliers o Email and customer service hotline
e EBREPRBAR
o Business meetings
ER
] Contract and agreements
Bk 4% e 22 Bk
] Company website

NSIFENS

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board supports the Group’'s commitment to fulfilling
its environmental and social responsibility and has overall
responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.

The Board oversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of
the implementation to the senior management and department
heads. Senior management advises and supports the Board on
ESG matters, strategies, policies, manages and monitors ESG
performance and targets. Departments implement ESG policies
and related initiatives. The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG
performance and examines and approves the Group's annual ESG
report. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing ESG-
related issues.
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SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Our vision and aspiration are:

1. To be a pioneer and a leader in the industry with a portfolio
of transformative and innovative products for our customers;

2. To ensure that our business is sustainable and profitable
providing healthy and long-term returns to our shareholders;

and

3. To build a high-performance team with good business culture
and robust engagement of internal and external stakeholders.

Our commitments are:

1. To do business in environmentally-friendly way to conserve
resources;
2. To create a positive impact and contribute to our

communities; and

3. To be an effective organization that enhances integrity and
high operational standards.

o B RS
BPMERRARA

1. BMRTEZEABLBE REPREH
— R K B EVE

2. WBREBEFEZRLENAER B
BHANERREHEBREEZER: &

3. EVABREEEXRAEMINE
FNEBRG2EZ SREEK -

B EGER

1. FTRFRRAUKEXZBUSHHER:

2. REMHERFRILEZEZRER:
&

3. MA—FABRRBHERAGSEE
B M -

=X BEEEEABR A A 2023/2024 3 13



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -eREIHBS

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear Stakeholders:

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director(s)”), | hereby present to you the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year ended 31 March 2024,
providing an overview of the Group’s management on significant

ESG issues that have impacts on the operation.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system.

The Group's business operations unavoidably result in
environmental impacts and contribute to climate change, either
directly or indirectly. We, based on the interests of stakeholders,
advocate waste reduction and improving resource efficiency. The
Group has established short-term and long-term sustainable
development goals to reduce emissions in accordance with
governmental requirements. To promote sustainable development,
we enhance our safety management system to ensure the safety
and health of employees. We acknowledge the importance of
managing ESG impacts in the supply chain, protecting the interests
of local communities, and complying with all applicable laws and
regulations.

Moving forward, the Group remains committed to pursuing a better
society and achieving common prosperity for enterprises, society,
and the environment. We strive for a win-win situation for all
stakeholders and aim to be a positive force for social stability and
upward progress.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 June 2024
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period was mainly electricity, gasoline, water, paper and
waste.

The business does not involve in production related air and
land pollutions which are regulated under the laws in Hong
Kong and in the PRC.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 29,872 sq.ft.
(2023: 450,089 sq.ft.) and the Group accounts for 100% of
emissions from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BRREREHBE

Unit 2024 2023 Changes
B —®-WE —T-=% 21t
Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) tCOse 91.2 1,515.8 -94.0%
BEREHNEE () M =S LiRE 8
Total Floor Area Coverage (b) ft2 29,872 450,089 -93.4%
F7E & v BEEAE(b) T ER
Annual Emission Intensity (c) = (a)/(b) tCOe/ft? 0.03 0.003 1,000%
FEHBREE () = (a)/(b) M =S iRE 8
7R

There was 912 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group's operation in the
reporting period. The annual emission intensity was 0.003
tCO,e/ft? (2023: 0.03).

Water

Water consumption by the Group was 2,987 m?® (2023: 29,292
m3), with water intensity of 0.1 m3m? (2023: 0.06 m%/m?).
The Group actively promotes water efficient practices so
as to reduce water wastage caused by human error and
unintentional switching mistake.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was 1,072,059
kWh (2023: 2,047,281 kWh), with an energy intensity of 24.1
kWh/m? dropped from last year (2023: 4.5 kWh/m?) despite
positive business growth. The Group advocates employees
to switch off idle lightings, computers, office equipment
and air-conditioning systems when they are not in use. The
Group continues its commitment in installing and switching to
energy-saving lighting fixtures and sourcing energy efficient
equipment to ensure functioning in optimal conditions and
efficiency.

Gasoline

A total of 22,877 liters of gasoline (2023: 31,965 liters) was
used for motor vehicles and production equipment in the
reporting period, contributing to 38.41 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (2023: 53.7 tonnes). Regular maintenance
on the Group's vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel
efficiency to reduce emissions.
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Paper

The Group continues to practise paper saving initiatives, such
as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have
environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and separated
collection of waste paper for effective recycling. A total of 1.99
tonnes of paper (2023: 5.72 tonnes) has been used for daily
office operations and advertising materials such as leaflet,
catalogue, sales kit.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes from the Group's operation includes cellulose acetate
sheets, packaging materials, scrap metal, scrap equipment
and scrap papers for production and office use for sales and
marketing purposes.

Non-hazardous waste includes waste papers of approximately
0 tonnes (2023: 0 tonnes). All of the aforesaid wastes have
been collected by licensed recycling companies. Packaging
materials such as paper boxes and carton containers used
for packaging were also collected by licensed recycling
companies.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/significant
impact on environment and natural resources. The Group
nonetheless commits to using natural resources efficiently
while we encourage the reuse and recycling of materials
during our daily operations. In addition, the Group is
committed in applying industry best practices and complying
with legislation, establishing and reviewing safety, security,
and environmental goals and targets, effectively using
energy and materials, reducing waste and emissions, and
communicating our environmental protection policy to all
employees.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must take
responsibility for being a role model of industry in relation
to sustainability of the environment, and we should bear the
responsibilities and fulfill the obligations in protecting them.

R
AEBEBEE RN BEEE Hl1
TEREMIE REBIEERRY
ENHBIE R D BURERE 4R A 5 B B UK -
BHERATLEREESYE (MEE .
ERESEEERR)MAKKRS
B1.99MF (ZE = =4 :5.721F) °

AEREEREREY
AEBMEBRELZ BENARIEL
ERHEREHNDARORBE S
BiR-BENN EESE BERME
R B4 -

BEEERVEROTWM (T _=F:
TME)REAR - TR L BERYC i FF R
R ARKRE - BEMBNEEDH
(AR R AR E) TR E QA

W

RIEREARAER

AEBONEBEHERBERRAER
VEEE BANTE - RN AEE
HAOBRANBRRAER ARZBR
AEZLZETEERERLDKDE - L1t
S AEERNFAEZAREER B
AR BUMEHEX ZTEMRER
BIR RIS BRERBERMME R
LEEWREN XAMAEREEE
BB IRIBIREHOR ©

RIS AEEER CRARERRE
ARFEERTERBEAFENEL
mEMEZEERERTENEERE
i%D

=R BREEEEAFR A A 2023/2024 £ 17



18

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate changes would have
significant impact on its business operations and its property
may be damaged by extreme weather conditions, e.g.,
tropical cyclones, rainstorms and earthquakes, which may
further affect the safety of our employees. The Group
identified, evaluated and managed the climate-related
risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
seriously affected by extreme weather conditions as the Group
has set up various emergency plans to prevent the disruption
of our business operations and to safeguard the safety of
our employees such as working arrangement under tropical
cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above, and black rainstorm
warning. The Group will continue to closely monitor the effect
and potential risks of climate change, and to improve and
implement the measures taken to reduce such climate-related
risks. Set out below are risks that the Group identified.

Physical Risks

Physical risks are the risks that may potentially cause physical
impact to our Group's operations. For instance, extreme
weather may disrupt supply chain and hence reduce revenue
and increased costs from business; and the increase in global
temperature may lead to an increase in energy consumption
by our Group's offices. We expect that it would not have a
material impact on our operations and financial performance
in the short or medium term. A range of measures, such
as contingency plan for extreme weather or emergency
conditions, are in place to enhance the resilience of the
Group's operation to such risk.

Transition Risks

Transition risks are the risks related to the transition to a
lower-carbon economy, which may entail extensive policy,
legal, technology, and market changes to address mitigation
and adaptation requirements related to climate change.
For instance, (i) regulators may impose more stringent
ESG-related disclosure requirements; and (ii) technological
advancements may affect our ability to compete unless we
invest in the relevant technology. Such changes may therefore
result in increased operating costs for us. The Group shall
regularly monitor existing and emerging trends, climate-
related policies and regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group had a total number of 26 employees as of
31 March 2024 (2023: 40), in which 100% was working as full
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BE-T-_ME=A=1+—-0 4%
B4 HB206E (B =4 40%) ]

time staff. 5 EHI100%EEHBET-
Compensation and dismissal 5 X %
2024
—FlmE
Number of
employees
EEAH
Employee structure EE%RE
By gender =R El 5
Male S 14
Female 2z 12
By age group RER AR S5
Under 35 35 AR 1
36-55 365% = 555% 12
Over 55 558% A £ 13
By category RERE 5
Management EERE 8
General Employees —REE 18
By geographical region =i E &l 5
Hong Kong BB 26
PRC H 0

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract

and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a
yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the market
trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus, mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, various types of paid leave
in addition to annual leave and sick leave.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender,
religion, age, sexual orientation, marital status, pregnancy,
disability and political beliefs. The level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually in an annual appraisal on
their performance basis, during which process each employee
is given equal opportunity for promotion.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life balance”
to its employees and adopts five to six days workweek
dependent on level of duty and nature of operations involved
to ensure that the employees have adequate rest. The Group
determines working hours and rest periods for the employees
in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and
employment contracts with the employees. In addition to
statutory holidays, the employees are also entitled to other
paid holidays including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compensation leave.

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group is dedicated to promoting the value of diversity
and recognizes the importance of having a workforce with
different backgrounds and perspectives for the organization's
success. In such regards, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative workplace
culture. The Group aims to provide equal opportunities in
all aspects of employment and ensure the workplace is free
from discrimination, physical or verbal harassment against any
individual based on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental capability, age, place of origin, marital status,
and sexual orientation. The Group also strives to ensure
that complaints, afflictions and concerns, including whistle-
blowing, are dealt with promptly and confidentially.

The Group regularly reviews employee handbook which
outlines the Group's key messages, policies, procedures,
promotion channel, compensation and benefits, occupational
health and safety, complaint and whistleblowing channels.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
(Continued)
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—T-mE
Number of
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Annual turnover rate EEREKE
By gender R E 5
Male St 1
Female gegid 1
By age group RERAR 5
Under 35 35 A TR 0
36-55 36B% E555% 2
Over 55 558 A £ 3
By category REREl5
Management BIRE Y
General Employees —REE 2
By geographical region i = 2 5
Hong Kong BB 2
PRC a3 0

Occupational Health and Safety Data

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to
workplace:

Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between workstations;

Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;
First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and

Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and
replaced when necessary.
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The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees and to inspire and strengthen
workforce regardless of their age, gender and ethnical
backgrounds. With the aging population being a long-term
demographic trend in Hong Kong, the Group has a
sustainable workforce in this perspective.

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and safety
procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. Briefing,
training, news and tips are provided to employees to raise
their awareness on safety production process.

There was no lost day due to work injury in this reporting
period. The management will continue its effort in

B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #& (&)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) B R TEE (8
Occupational Health and Safety Data (Continued) BEpREmETHE (8)
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
Work related fatality HITIEERET 0 0
Work injury cases > 3 days ITHMER(FKN3A) 0 0
Work injury < 3 days T (LR3E) 0 0
The total days lost due to work injury ETEEXBTEEH 0 0
Employee Health and Safety EEREHRZZ
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strengthening the Group's occupational health and safety BEEERERZEZRA -
performance.
Development and Training R KIE

Comprehensive professional training is provided to
employees to deliver top services to our customers. For
the Reporting Period, 6 employees have received training,
representing 23% of the employees of the Group, with the
average training hours of 3 hours.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was in the Group’s operations
in the reporting period. It is in compliance with the
Employment Ordinances, both in Hong Kong and the PRC in
terms of employment management.

The recruitment process is strictly abided by the guidelines
of the Group’s Human Resource Department. Every job
applicant is required to fill in their information in a recruitment
questionnaire, which is checked by Human Resource
Department to ensure information’s accuracy. This also allows
the Group to hire suitable candidate in accordance with the
job requirements and candidates’ expectations.

Employment Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees
through various communication channels. The regular update
on website keeps employees updated on corporate news and
activities. The Group also organized annual dinner, festival-
related celebration, sport and volunteer works, etc. to nourish
a greater sense of belonging and to provide enhanced
communication channels between senior management and
general staff. The Group believes having better transparent
governance and investing efforts and hours on our best asset,
employees, is the key to success of a sustainable business.

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates the importance
of cultural diversity in the development of the business, and
employs employees in a wide range of ages, genders, and
ethnicities.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

A strict tendering process is also in place to provide a fair
and transparent platform for securing the best supplier for
procurement of all equipment, products and services.

Supplier

Suppliers for products, semi-products, spare parts, raw,
treatment and packaging materials range from France,
United Kingdom, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Taiwan, the PRC
and Hong Kong. They are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as production process, quality
management system, regulatory requirement compliance,
operating capacity, sample availability for testing, packaging,
management’'s commitment, training policy and procedure,
price, delivery assurance, and product recall policy, so as
to procure superior goods and services from the most
competitive sources. Additional information such as
observation results after suppliers’ production plant visits
is used to evaluate the suppliers in order to have the best
selected providers. The Group also monitors the overall
performance of selected suppliers by conducting vendor
audits with documented reports to substantiate the selection
and on-going cooperation.

During the Reporting Period, there were 14 suppliers of the
Group, all of them are located in Hong Kong & PRC.

Product

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials and equipment with
standardized procurement procedure and policies. The
Group's procurement policy and its comprehensive
procurement management systems help screening out
undesirable products in the aspects of raw materials
and ingredients selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Product Responsibility: Product recall policy

The Group maintains a good record of zero product recall
this year, nevertheless the Group continues its commitment
to consumer safety and protection by having product recall
procedures and policy in place.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIBS

SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices (Continued)

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

The Group's Information Technology Department has devised
a comprehensive data protection policy to provide adequate
protection and confidentiality of all corporate data and
proprietary information. To comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and to protect the rights of employees, customers, and
business partners, access control protocol is clearly defined
to limiting the access to a system or to physical or virtual
resources. The Group employs a comprehensive enterprise
resources planning system for its finance-related operations
to ensure privacy and maintain information confidentiality.
The Group strictly abides with the regulation in the collection,
usage, handling, and storage of data to ensure data integrity
and safety.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group's policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our employees. The Group endeavours to protect the
whistle-blower from common concerns such as potential
retaliation and is assured that their identity as a whistle-blower
will be kept confidential.

Community Investment
The Group is committed to supporting the public by means
of social participation and donation and putting the best
effort into helping the local communities and people in need
through community services and engagement, social support
and sponsorship programs.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any
donations (2023: Nil).
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DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Group will continue actively sourcing energy-saving appliances,
equipment and materials with careful selection and review of
suppliers and their origins. Opportunities to work with other charity
partners and more training and development in terms of raising
staff's awareness on environmental and social impacts from the
business will also be considered. The Group also recognises the
trend and possibilities with applying digital technologies in daily
office operations and marketing strategy, therefore resource use
and promotional tools in the future will be adapted to make the
businesses more transformative, sustainable, as well as having
greater capability to attractive future talents.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff and fellow directors for their
contributions, support and dedication. | would also like to thank
our customers, shareholders, bankers, suppliers and other business
partners for their continuous support.

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 June 2024
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Profiles of Directors

EFEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHUNG YUK LUN, aged 63, had been appointed as an executive
director of the Company from 29 September 2018 to 11 January
2019 and was reappointed on 15 July 2019. He is also the company
secretary, an authorised representative and a consultant of the
Company. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an ICAEW Business and Finance Professional. He has
over 30 years’ management experience at board level in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung is currently (i) an executive director, company secretary
and authorised representative of China Come Ride New Energy
Group Limited (Stock code: 8039); and (ii) the company secretary of
QPL International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 243), all are listed
company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung was the joint company secretary of King International
Investment Limited (Stock Code: 928), a listed company in Hong
Kong, from 18 December 2023 to 19 March 2024.
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Profiles of Directors
EEMEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHAN CHI WAI, aged 46, has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company, a member of each of
the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of the Company
("Nomination Committee”) with effect from 9 February 2024.

Mr. Chan obtained a Master's degree in Business Administration
from Preston University in 2005. His expertise covers investment
banking and alternative investment management. He is currently
serving as a director of CNJ Capital Investment Inc., whose shares
are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange Venture Exchange. In
addition, Mr. Chan is the co-founder of a well-known financial
services company that focuses on inclusive finance in the middle
and western regions of Canada.

Mr. Chan (i) obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D
of the Listing Rules on 9 February 2024; and (ii) has confirmed he
understood his obligations as a director of the Company.

LAW, MICHAEL KA MING, aged 63, has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company, a member
of the Audit Committee and chairman of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from 10
May 2024.

Mr. Law has over 30 years of experience in corporate management,
finance, banking, construction and property development. He
is currently an executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 8366), an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (Hong Kong Stock Code: 887) and an independent non-
executive director of Century Group International Holdings Limited
(Hong Kong Stock Code: 2113). Mr. Law holds a Master's Degree in
business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Bachelor's Degree in building studies from The University
of Hong Kong. He is a Chartered Quantity Surveyor of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. Law (i) obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the
Listing Rules on 9 May 2024; and (ii) has confirmed he understood
his obligations as a director of the Company.
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Profiles of Directors
EEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
LAI PIK CHI PEGGY, aged 59, has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company, chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of both the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee and an authorised representative of the
Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with effect from 10
May 2024.

Ms. Lai has over 30 years of auditing, accounting, financial
management experience. She obtained a master degree of
business administration from the University of Manchester in the
United Kingdom in June 2010. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

She is currently an independent non-executive director of KPa-
BM Holdings Limited (stock code: 2663), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive
director of China Come Ride New Energy Group Limited (formerly
known as KNK Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8039) since August
2019, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. She was
an independent non-executive director of CT Environmental Group
Limited (stock code: 1363 prior to delisting from the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange) from 3 August 2020 to 9 August 2021. She was
a non-executive director of Larry Jewelry International Company
Limited (stock code: 8351, prior to delisting from GEM of the Stock
Exchange) from 26 February 2020 to 30 November 2021. She was an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366) from November 2019 to
July 2021 and redesignated to an executive director from July 2021
to March 2024.

Ms. Lai (i) obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the
Listing Rules on 9 May 2024; and (ii) has confirmed she understood
her obligations as a director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREIHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The statement of corporate governance practices set out below and
information incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

The Board is committed to ensuring and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures in fulfilling its
responsibilities. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders can
maximize their benefits from good corporate governance. The
Company has always recognised the importance of transparency
and accountability. The Group has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors of the Company consider that
the Company has complied with the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2024 (“Year"), except for the following deviations:

Code provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that there should be a clear
division of responsibilities between management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of business. The Board did not
appoint any Director as its Chairman during the Year. The Board
will review the present situation in the coming regular meetings as
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Code provision D.2.5

Code provision D.2.5 stipulates that a listed company should
have an internal audit function. For the Year, the Company has
outsourced the internal audit function on analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems on film investment segment to
independent professional firm(s).

Listing Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.05

Following the resignation of Mr. Cheng Chun Man as an
independent non-executive Director, chairman and a member of
Audit Committee, a member of Remuneration Committee and
a member of Nomination Committee on 8 February 2024, the
Company failed to meet the requirements of (i) having at least
three independent non-executive Directors on the Board under
Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”); and (ii) having a minimum of
three non-executive directors in the audit committee under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Mr. Man Wai Lun as an authorised
representative (the “Authorised Representative”) of the Company
under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules, the Company failed to comply
with the requirement of having two authorised representatives
under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming and Ms.
Lai Pik Chi Peggy as announced by the Company on 10 May 2024,
the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.05 of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on customer oriented, excellence in products and
services, people first and law compliance, which is underpinned by
its purpose and values that enable employees at all levels of the
Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting in a lawful,
ethical and responsible manner that allows the Company to deliver
sustainable long-term performance and operate in a way that
benefits society and the environment.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

The Company's purpose and values serve as a guide for employees’
conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are integrated
throughout the Company's operational practices, workplace policies
and practices and stakeholder relationships:

Purpose
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Values

EEH

To strive for success of our stakeholders
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Cooperation
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Objective
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Responsible
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and regulatory
compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the culture,
purpose, value and strategy of the Group are aligned with one
another.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors of the Company, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

=

EEERREREARANEEER 2
EARRRNEEXL BEAKSENRE -
BEBLREEIR AESSETER -2
REEXERET28 - EEREREI
ERRBEAR BIRE BUEIESF
ENEHERR BAKRENXXEL RE
EBEBMRBORE -

EFETEFXHZEETH

ARRERMNEBEFTETESF G 2B
SRR ERRANE R £ T AR B PY $: C3PT
HIEMBTAEFETESFRINTES
AR ERE - BRAARNRBRBZESIELE
TEMRR REACEINAFE—HET
SETAFMHE BRI RERE-

=

EFE

ARAHEFERE ESCRERERE
BAKEER HEASEERETHREE
AEEMBEREERR HMEE EHK
B ASEERKY  2ERE M-

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report
LRELRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of four Directors, including
one executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Yuk Lun and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), namely Mr. Chan
Chi Wai, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy. As
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
prescribed by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established:

o sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

o no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

o separation of the role of the Chairman and the management
ensures that there is a balance of power and authority; and

o annual meeting between the Chairman and all INEDs without
presence of other Directors provides an effective platform for
the Chairman to listen to independent views on various issues
concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective except the
Board did not appoint any Director as its Chairman during the Year.
The Board will review the present situation in due course.

Board Diversity

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a wide range of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The merits and contribution that
will bring to the Board for any Director proposed for re-election
or any candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed,
taking into account the Company's corporate strategy and the mix
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

Board Diversity (Continued)

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and
length of service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 31 March
2024 is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age Distribution
and Length of Service

Number of Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) ;s% (&)
Board Composition (Continued) EEGHEK (E)
Board Diversity (Continued) EEg %Eﬂ’, (%)
(i) Directors’ Skills and Experience (i)  EHFIZEER A
Number of Share of the
Areas of Experience Directors Board
EEEE EEAN EEEGLL
Related Industry Knowledge/Experience 2 100%
MEETTENE KR
Business Management 2 100%
BEREE
Legal/Regulatory 0 0%
EREE
Financial & Accounting 2 100%
g5t
Strategic Planning & Risk Management 2 100%

B S AR 31 L IR

The Board's gender diversity level is yet to achieve as all two EEgURIZTAKERARER  REAS
directors are male. During the Year, the Nomination Committee BRNEEEFHIRELE -REAFE EREZE
recommended and the Board approved a target of having no gEREREFGHELEESETAHITIER
less than 20% female directors on the Board. The Nomination %%A/\%QO%ZHTT REZEEEERN
Committee proposed to appoint a female director by 31 December ZENFF+ A=+ —HAEZEA—EXK
2024 for achieving the gender diversity target of the Board. Upon MEENEREZGHNZ TLER - R
the appointment of Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy as an INED on 10 May B2RTHET-_NFRA+HEZER
2024, the gender diversity target of the Board is achieved. The 5%43'5%%175%& Bzt BE
Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the composition of EH - IREZEeREERTESSEAER
the Board to maintain diversity. ZEBZ N#gERZ Tt e
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from Mr. Chan Chi Wai, Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors”
of this annual report.

Appointment and re-election

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting of the Company according to the Bye-laws
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has published the procedures on its website for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director.

Duties of the Board

The Board formulates the overall policies and strategies, monitors
the financial performance, oversees the management, and
implements good corporate governance practices of the Group.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Directors meet regularly to review the financial and operational
performance of the Group by discussing and formulating the
Group's development plans. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's
management. The members of the Board are mostly professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel who bring in
valuable contribution providing different professional advices and
consultation for the development of the Group. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board

During the financial year ended 31 March 2024, 7 Board meetings
were held. The attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meeting of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out as follows:

BEEE(H)
EETE R
HE_Z-_NF=A=+—HLUHBFE"
EEe0RT/INEETSTLE - SEETRE
E_E_NE=ZA=+—HLEFEMNES

CEZZBEE REZEC FHZES
GHEAREARFBRRAREG 2 HFELEET
LIl

il

Number of meetings attended/held

e/ BTEHERY
Audit Nomination R ation General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of directors EEgz EXE BEEEE REZEE FWEEE BREXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBEE 8/8 171
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHTES
Mr. Man Wai Lun NEBTE 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 171
(resigned on 9 February 2024) (R=ZFB-HFE=FANAEE)
Mr. Cheng Chun Man HBIRELE 6/7 2/2 0/1 0/1 171
(resigned on 8 February 2024) (R=F=—mFE=F/\ AEHF)
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan HXERE 8/8 2/2 2/2 2/2 17
(resigned on 9 February 2024) (R=FE-HFE=ANEFE)
Mr. Chan Chi Wai BRERERTE 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0

(appointed on 9 February 2024) (RZF=-mE=-ANAZE)

All the regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance, and
at least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors to give them an
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors in advance of every Board meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters placed
at the Board meetings. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
the company secretary, all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, so that Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and
are open for inspection by any Director. All Directors have access to
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the Year, the Chairman held a meeting with INEDs without
the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board (Continued)

The Company has received confirmation from each director that
he has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature of offices
they hold in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitment, including the identity of the public companies or
organizations and an indication of the time involved.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at such Board meeting.

Directors’ continuous professional development
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as
directors of the Company.

In addition, each newly appointed Director would be provided with
an induction package covering the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
other related regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

The Company provided updates and reading material (“CPD")
to keep the Directors informed on a timely basis about the latest
major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements affecting the Group or their duties and
responsibilities as the Directors as well as the macro economics
and general business environment in which the Group’s major
operations are operated. The Company, through CPD, enhances
Directors’ awareness and keeps them abreast of the essences and
key areas of such updates and information. Such CPD is an efficient
and effective way which offers flexibility to the Directors by allowing
them to access the information at a time suitable to them. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training
records on an annual basis. A summary of their training records
during the year ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Type of training activities
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Topics of training covered

P s sl £

A: Webinars and/or seminars.
REFRAER/ LTS o

B:  Reading newspapers and
journals relating to directors’
duties and responsibilities as
well as updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.

Name of directors EEgE sEEEER
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BREMEE
Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Man Wai Lun XEBEE
Mr. Cheng Chun Man BRREE
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan BB
Mr. Chan Chi Wai BREREEE

(appointed on 9 February 2024)

(R=FE-mE=-HFHAZF)
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Corporate governance
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Finance and tax
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Regulatory

]
Business Management/Economy
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RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board
is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. With the assistance of accounting personnel,
the Directors prepare the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and prevailing accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 65 to 74 of the annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 29 March 2012 and 30 December
2022. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Wai and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy. The
major duties and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but not limited to making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
management of the Company. It is also mandated to review
and approve compensation payable to the directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed "Functions of the Board” of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
summarized as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7.  to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has, among others
things, reviewed the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management with reference to market terms, their
duties and responsibilities and performance as assessed by the
Remuneration Committee, and has made recommendation to the
Board accordingly. Pursuant to E.1.5 of the Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

FMEEE (8)

RAEE FMEE@C (KT EE)2E
MEGER 2BESFRERAEEABZR
BBRAELRRR (EFMEZBESTE)HE
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Number of employees

EBEEANE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ JT £ 2,000,000/ 7T =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t £ 2,500,0007% 7T 1
Total BEt 5
Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in note 10 to the EENEFBENGRE T BIRERMFEI0 -

consolidated financial statements.

The Company had adopted a specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as of 29 March 2012 in accordance with
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules which has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 6 September 2013. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (Chairman), Mr. Chan Chi Wai
and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy. Its main duties and functions include
but not limited to review of the structure, size, composition and the
diversity policy of the Board and the selection or recommendations
to the Board for nomination on directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential candidates from
any source as it may consider appropriate and evaluate them by
considering various factors, including their professional expertise,
industry and business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of interest with
the Group (if any) and independence (for INEDs). The Committee
will then make recommendation for suitable candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment
of existing Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
("AGM"), the Committee will review the rotation and retirement of
Directors and make recommendations to the Board accordingly.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Function of the Board” of this report:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
4. review on directors’ contribution in performing their

responsibilities;

5. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

6. review the board diversity policy of the Board or this
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, considering factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience of Board
members, and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives; and

7. conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation, where appropriate.

A board diversity policy had been formulated and adopted by the
Board in 2013. The Company recognises the importance and values
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Appointments to the Board will largely be based
on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will generally be based on factors
considered applicable and adopted by the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee as of 6 September 2013 and it has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 1999 and its terms of reference were amended by
the Board on 23 February 2016 and became effective on 1 March
2016. The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Chi Wai and Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming. Ms. Lai Pik
Chi Peggy possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by the Listing Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise
affiliated with former or existing auditors of the company.

The main duties and functions of the Audit Committee include
but not limited to review of the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review of the Group's financial
information, oversight of the Group's financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, assessment on any
potential special risks to be encountered by the Company and
review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year. Minutes
of the Audit Committee are kept by the secretary of the Audit
Committee and the copies of the minutes are sent to all members
of the Audit Committee. The outcomes of the Audit Committee
meetings were submitted to the Board for consideration and action
where appropriate.

The accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

1.

reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023 (“Previous Year”) and the
related annual results announcement with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.

reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report in the Previous Year.

met with the external auditors in the Previous Year and
discussed the audit findings reported by external auditors.

assessed broadly any special risks faced by the Group and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous Year
and concluded that the Group operated at a manageable risk
level and kept on improving the management system.

reviewed the reports including the 2023 audit planning report
and the management letters (if any) submitted by the external
auditor.

reviewed the Group's unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2023 and
the interim results announcement with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

considered those topics, which were requested by the Board
and reviewed those relevant documents.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended by
the Board on 23 February 2016 and took effect on 1 March 2016.
Such amendments in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code under the Listing Rules have been posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of CCTH
CPA Limited as the external auditors of the Group for 2024/2025
and that the relevant resolution shall be put forth for consideration
by the shareholders of the Company and their approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board performs the following corporate governance functions
during the Year:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conducts and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(f)  to adopt new anti-corruption policy and procedures and
the revised inside information policy and procedures of the
Company.

All committees established under the Board are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun is the current company secretary of the
Company. The company secretary, whose appointment
was approved by the Board, complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under the
Listing Rules. All Directors are entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is responsible for
providing Board papers and related materials to Directors in order
to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed.
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AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors, CCTH
CPA Limited, are independent and has recommended the Board to
re-appoint them as the Company’s auditors at the AGM.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors, CCTH CPA Limited is set out as
follows:

% BB <z 35 3114 X i M

ERREQERERBERNENZHNR
EEZEM BN AR B BREEZ
BENTBEMERE - BRZEEXER
RARAZEMAEREEFMARRA A
BEY YEREFENBERBFAE LA
B AR AT Z B -

BE_Z-_NWF=A=+—HBILFE Bt
HEMTARARZEAMP EXRESME
FRARRFENE S 0T

CCTH CPA Limited

ohIF X 15 E5HAD

Services rendered Frig (AR 7S HRAT
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services EZR 1,126
Non-audit services IEEZ RS -
Total @t 1,126

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene a

special general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board
shall, on a requisition in writing by any shareholder made
in compliance with the applicable law to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, forthwith proceed to convene a special general
meeting ("SGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM for a day not later than two
months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
do so but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
general meeting of the Company. The number of shareholders
shall represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not
be less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the general meeting. It must
also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial
Building, 145 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary not less than six weeks
before the general meeting. In case of a requisition requiring
a notice of the resolution, the requisition must be served to
the Board not less than one week before the general meeting.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's expenses
in giving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong. Shareholders and the investment
community may during office hours make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Bye-Laws by way of a special resolution
passed at a general meeting held on 31 August 2023 for the
purpose of (i) conforming with the latest Listing Rules and the
applicable laws of Bermuda; (i) providing flexibility to the Company
in relation to the conduct of general meetings (including allowing
participation in any general meeting or any class meeting held
by means of such telephone, electronic communication or other
communication facilities as to permit all persons participating in the
meeting to communicate with each other); and (iii) making other
consequential and housekeeping amendments.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (ii) updated key information of the
Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) the Company’s website offers communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The annual general meeting is a channel for the Board of Directors
and the sub-committees of the Board to address concern of
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting and related
papers will be sent to shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

A. Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of
internal control and risk management (“Control Systems”) are
maintained within the Group, and to review their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The Control Systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group’s objectives. Practicable and effective
internal control systems and procedures and risk management
systems have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control and risk management on an ongoing basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (Continued)

B. Internal control

The Board

Audit Committee

The management

Internal Audit
Function

ensure the maintenance of
appropriate and effective Control
Systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets
of the Group;

define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit
of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of
significant risk (including ESG risks)
that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives
and formulate the Group's risk
management strategies.

oversee the Control Systems of the
Group;

review and discuss with the
management annually (including
ESG risks) to ensure that the
management has performed its duty
to have effective Control Systems;
and

consider major findings on

internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

design, implement and monitor
the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures
to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

give prompt responses to, and
follow up the findings on internal
control matters; and

provide confirmation to the Board
on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems.

carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems, and the details
are set out in the section headed
“Internal Audit Function” of this
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

EEEERAEBEE (F)

Risk management C. HAMER

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk FElERaRaEamEmN mRa
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and & B B IR i & R B i I B A o
review.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff EEEHEMABE TETEA FHA
members, reviewing relevant documentation of the internal EPES YT XA AR X B R A AR
control system, identifying and evaluating findings of any SEANEEIERGRETHAER
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal control AT E N EEmEHESERRE
system, providing recommendations for improvement and EMAHEEZZARNE(HER) - A
following up on the effectiveness of implementation of such REBRANEEEENNEE RS
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings EOFERBEREEGWRKARZ
of review on the risk management and internal control are

reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Certain significant risks have been identified through the RNEECF 8 E RSB R F &
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant A& T &R - 2N 5 B P E A %
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control EEAAREZERARBERNEZR
measures are set out on pages 8 to 9 of the Management W/? FlE BN AREEREEN W
Discussion and Analysis of this report. DHTEBEIE o

Control approach D. BiEHE

The scope and findings of review on the risk management and BERERERANDEZEEHNOEE RS
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit REBFERETRLZESULEETZ-
Committee annually. Procedure manuals and operational HIER T F M REEESIREZE -
guidelines are in place to safeguard the assets against NERERECANEE ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂ
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance BRER HAREZREFEE S
of proper accounting records in compliance with the R AIRHAI B ER R ER R
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of FA &k O T B o

reliable financial information for internal use and/or external

publication.

Management confirmation E. EEERESD

The Board had received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Control Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon
reviewing the Control Systems, were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Control Systems for the
year ended 31 March 2024. The review identified the findings in
internal control system of the Company, the risks associated with
operating units of the Company and the recommendations to
rectify the findings in internal control systems and to lower the risks

identified.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect annually
and considers that the Control Systems are adequate and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and consider that they are adequate.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has taken, and continues to take steps to promote
diversity at all levels of our workforce. We provide equal
opportunity to all employees regardless of gender, age, family
background, ethnicity, religion, nationality, sexuality, disability,
and other aspects of diversity and are against any forms of
discrimination.

As of 31 March 2024, our total workforce comprised of 54% female
and approximately 46% male.

Therefore, no plan or measurable objectives were deemed
necessary for enhancing gender diversity at workplace.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy where the
Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the Year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the funding needs for future investment and
development purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda and Hong Kong as well
as the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing Rules in relation to
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

Anti-corruption policy is established to outline the Group's zero-
tolerance stance against bribery and corruption and assists
employees in recognising circumstances that may lead to or
give the appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical
business conduct, so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly
prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance where necessary or
report any reasonably suspected case of corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management through an appropriate reporting
channel.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the Year, the Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses, property investment, debts and securities
investment, film investment and distribution and energy business.

Further discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 and its financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 75 to 230.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION HEErME

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and AEERBEERERFREUBRRRELE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial P (nER) 2 BEREMBRFERE 2B T8
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial XEUNEE BERFEEREZBEZEHN
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This TX -k MEWIFLEZEE W BREKAAE

summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial B &R 5 °
statements.
Results E 47

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HILEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EomE —T-=F —T-— —E-—F Z—T-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAT TAET TAT TAT

REVENUE Wz 23,989 38,451 56,800 53,930 66,246
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REZERE (59,359) (45,668) (182,210) (18,166) (101,685)
Attributable to: THIA LA
Owners of the Company AR BB A (59,359) (77,389) (177,076) (15,274) (98,399)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIE AR 1 %5 - 31,721 (5,134) (2,892) (3,286)
(59,359) (45,668) (182,210) (18,166) (101,685)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests SE - BEERIEERRESS
As at 31 March
“=RA=+-—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZEZNE —T-=F T —E-—§% ZZT-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TATL FTAET TATL TAT

TOTAL ASSETS EELE 91,820 148,350 263,011 400,510 379,664
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (73,917) (61,948) (116,216) (128,018) (159,106)

NON-CONTROLLING RS
INTERESTS - = 16,409 10,954 8,837
17,903 86,402 163,204 283,446 229,395
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the reporting year are
set out in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company'’s share capital are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
32 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the reporting year are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 80 of this annual
report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, no reserve of the
Company (2023: same) is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the Company's shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Bye-Laws and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Wai (appointed on 9 February 2024)

Mr. Law, Michael Ka Ming (appointed on 10 May 2024)
Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy (appointed on 10 May 2024)

Mr. Man Wai Lun (resigned on 9 February 2024)

Mr. Cheng Chun Man (resigned on 8 February 2024)
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan (resigned on 9 February 2024)

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, Mr. Chan Chi Wai, Mr. Law,
Michael Ka Ming and Ms. Lai Pik Chi Peggy will retire by rotation at
the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. All of
the abovementioned directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Man
Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man, Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan and Mr. Chan
Chi Wai. The Board considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 27 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Group's business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance-based remuneration. The
Directors’ fees are paid in line with market practice, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to mandatory provident fund schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and individual
performance and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
insurance. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.
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EFEHE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EERFEITBASN KGN RHE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BB ZHERRRE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions in shares and underlying shares Rkt RHERARGBZEFE
Number of Approximate
Number of ordinary  underlying ordinary percentage of
shares of the shares held under shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest Company interested Share Option Scheme (Note 1)
BAERZEAT RIREE R RS B BaRRaE St
EEfs RN TERYBE HANERTERKE (Biat1)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun ("Mr. Chung”) Beneficial owner = 8,000,000 0.92%
ERB AL ([ERE]) EREBA (Note 2) (H7t2)
Notes: Hiat -
1. Based on 872,863,684 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 1. RBRER-_ZFT-_MOMF=A=+—BHE %
March 2024. 872,863,684 A A R BT & o

2. These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company under 2. ZERAROGARARR=_ZE=_—F=A+ 1A

the Share Option Scheme on 19 March 2021 and accepted by Mr. Chung on BEERESERONOBRE YHEXERZ

1 April 2021 at exercise price of HK$1.33 per share. T —FMA—BEM TEEBERER1IZEIT
Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2024, so far as is known BREXFIBREEN BE_ZT_MF=H
to any Director or chief executives of the Company, none of the =t+—H -BAFNESHAA TIETTBU\

Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or BFfA - EFH AR FTETHAERER
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the RARHEEMERER (TERESF LD
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning EIEAIEXVER) B AR fh - BB D K EHF
of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) required to be notified to Tﬁﬁﬁ VERBEFE S KB RO EXVEETR
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 FE8D EAIE AN A J B 22 AT B AE fa] E 5 2k
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) required to be recorded in the KB HNVERBRAARREBEESF KHAE
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; 1'*{5']%3521%5’]%ﬁi7f_§5’]%Eﬂﬂ%ﬁ’ﬂ'}ﬂ%
or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange HIORB HGINVBEELETABESITANE
pursuant to the Model Code. RR A R FrR R SOR B
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2024, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in the Related Party Transactions disclosures set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FEERREEMATRIRGRHE
Al AR 13 2 FE 2

RZZF-_WMF=A=F+—HB U THEAR
E?éfﬁﬂx$&Eﬁﬂx%E’JS%‘}ZMiZ%ﬁnE
BNARBRIEE 75 LI E GO F336(FA
THEEZ DB LM :

Long positions 50—
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary shares of issued
Name Nature of Interest interested voting shares
21T
HEERZ FEREERHG
HE LB S Ry TiEREE =), 074
Osman Bin Kitchell Beneficial Owner 142,297,719 16.30%
EnEA A
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 5.62%
THEELEE EnEA A
CDM Trust & Board Services AG Trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
XFEA
Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 124,898,000 14.31%
ZEEHEE S
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a discretionary trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
5% WIEEFE 28I A
Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 124,898,000 14.31%
7N P (8 7 =
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person, other BREXBEEEIN R_T_MF=H

than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME Eﬁﬂﬁﬁé*’riu

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option RARABERZZEZTF=A T XAKEHRM
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to Iﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁrﬂ ([ERETE D UNARHEE
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the (BREZERAEEGERBRES)IRENE
Group. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 HEB R _BE_—FNAAZTERRTH
August 2021, the Company was authorised to refresh the scheme RARIRRBERE £ ARG EREEF
mandate limit to issue a maximum of 87,286,368 share options ST ERBEUARBERESEIZRITRS
under the Share Option Scheme. More information can be referred 87,286,368 ERE - L ERBLHAR
in the Company’s circular dated 26 July 2021. AIRMA—ZE_—Ft+tAZtRENE

Movements of share options under the Share Option Scheme held Ex EEREMAMBEAENBRETSZIET
by the Directors, employee and consultant are as follows: BREZZEHMT

Numbers of underlying shares in respect of
which share options were granted

ARtiBRESROBERRREE
Date of Exercise As at Granted Exercise/ As at
grant of Exercise price per 31 March during Cancelled/ 31 March
Name of category of participant Share option  period share 2023 the Period Lapsed 2024
SEEHH falR g Bk R-F-=% BiTfE/ W-B-mE
2 RHAH s ﬁﬁ% =A=+-H BnlRl  ##/%4 =R=+-8
HK
BT
Director
Ez
Mr. Chung 1/4/2021 1/4/2021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BRE “E--f  —B--FMA-RE
mA—AH ZZ=-§ZA=1-H
Other eligible participants
HEhaERLEE
Mr. Xiao Junwei, 1/4/2021 1/4/2021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Xiao Junweift & (B EEf ) “Z--% C"Z--4@A-AZ
MA—-H ‘§E—¢ A=+-H
Mr. Lien Wai Hon, 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Lien Wai Hon%t & (B EBF) 5% ZB--4NAtHE
MAtH —E=-5MAKA
Mr. Miao Ki Kong, 71412021 71472021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Miao Ki Kong#t 4 (B R ) 5% ZB--4NAtHE
MAtH _iz_iﬂﬂ/\a
Mr. Huang wei, 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 1.33 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
independent Consultant
Huang weift & (B ERH) 5% ZB--¥NMAtHE
MAtH —T=-5MAKA
Total 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000
Fb
Note: The Share Options are granted without any vesting conditions/period. Het - BREREE TS TMEBIEE,/HIR -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year, the Group's largest customer and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 27% and 73% of the
Group's total sales, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group's largest supplier and the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 87% and 100% of the
Group's total purchases, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders, which to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers during the reporting year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed above,
none of the Related Party Transactions as disclosed in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is subject to disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 189 of the Company, Directors of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and the officers of the Group throughout
the Year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public during
the reporting year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

CCTH CPA Limited will retire at AGM and a resolution for the
re-appointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed thereat.

On Behalf of the Board

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIZBEDERSE

©

To the shareholders of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on
pages 75 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXREEEAERAE

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION
(1) Deposits paid for the acquisition of equity

investment

As referred to in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into an agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”), under which the Group agreed to
subscribe for 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG Terminal
Holding Limited (“H. Sterling LNG"), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, for an aggregate consideration
of RMB223 million, of which aggregate deposits amounted
to HK$27,800,000 were paid by the Group up to 31 March
2023. Impairment loss on the deposits paid amounted to
HK$16,350,000 was recognised in profit and loss of the
Group in respect of the prior year ended 31 March 2023.
The directors of the Company concluded that the conditions
precedent as set out in the Subscription Agreement are
not fully fulfilled or waived, accordingly, the proposed
acquisition was cancelled and the Group has demanded
the repayment of the deposits paid. The directors of the
Company considered that it is likely that the deposits paid
amounted to HK$27,800,000 are not recoverable, accordingly
additional impairment loss amounted to HK$11,450,000 has
been recognised in profit and loss of the Group in respect of
the current year.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess whether the aggregate deposits paid amounted
to HK$27,800,000 are fully irrecoverable and whether the
additional impairment loss for the deposits paid amounted to
HK$11,450,000 recognised has been properly accounted for in
profit and loss of the Group for the current year.
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WIAWENEE

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
(2) Investments in convertible bond

As referred to in notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the prior year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group subscribed convertible bond issued by a third party
("the Issuer”) and the Group had investments in convertible
bond with the carrying amount of HK$17,160,000 at 31 March
2023, being its fair value as at that date. The convertible bond,
which carried interest at 8% per annum with the principal
amount of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,664,000),
entitled the Group to convert the bond into approximately 2%
of the issued capital of the Issuer (on full conversion). Under
the terms of the convertible bond, at the expiration of the
conversion period, the convertible bond, if not converted,
will be redeemed by the Issuer at the principal amount of the
bond. The convertible bond matured on 10 December 2023
and no redemption or conversion of the bond was made as
at the maturity date and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, which resulted in the
reclassification of the investments in convertible bond with
the carrying amount of HK$15,664,000 to other receivables.
The directors of the Company considered that it is likely that
this receivable is not recoverable, accordingly impairment loss
amounted to HK$15,664,000 has been recognised in profit
and loss of the Group for the current year.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to assess whether the convertible bond receivable amounted
to HK$15,664,000 are fully irrecoverable and whether the
impairment loss amounted to HK$15,664,000 recognised has
been properly accounted for in profit and loss of the Group
for the current year.

Any adjustments to the aforementioned impairment losses
recognised on (1) the deposits paid for the acquisition of equity
investment; and (2) the convertible bond receivable might have a
consequential effect on the consolidated financial performance for
the year ended 31 March 2024, the consolidated financial position
as at 31 March 2024, and the related disclosures thereof in the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Continued)
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to the section headed “Going concern basis”
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements that the Group
incurred net losses amounted to approximately HK$59,359,000
and HK$45,668,000 for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023 respectively; and the current liabilities of the Group
at 31 March 2024 exceed the Group's current assets at that date
by approximately HK$35,072,000. These conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In light of all the
measures and arrangements detailed in the section headed "Going
concern basis”, the directors are of the opinion that the Group will
be able to operate as a going concern so as to finance its future
working capital and financial requirements. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustment that are
required to be made should the Group be unable to operate as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRESTEIR (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI EFNAEEARENER

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

FEMRR SR - TR RRIR - R & R H fh FEW R IF R B

Refer to notes 4, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BB E M HRERN L 21 %22 °

As at 31 March 2024, the Group recorded gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$5,754,000 before
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,672,000 and
gross prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$74,715,000 before impairment loss of
approximately HK$61,610,000.
RZZE_MF=A=+—H' E5EESHEREEEYD
1,672,000/ 7T Bl 2 48 F& Wi BR 5K 495,754,000 7T & R R B 18
184961,610,000/ 7T B Z # FAR R IR ~ R & o H b 8 WK
I8 #974,715,0007% 7T

Estimations of the impairment for the Group's trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgment, including the historical
default rates, past due status, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions as well
as forward-looking information specific to the trade and
other receivables.

EEBERWRA  FANRIE R R EMEKKEZRE
M BRRE THRELEREEEHB cEARE B
FESEEAOX BN —REBEAMRR RE E RN 2 577
HARE S REMERKRIBZ FEREILER -

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment of trade receivables,
prepayments,
included:
BMEBAERERBERUERN BMNFIE R REM
JE W R IR R E R (A AR FF B 45

deposits and other receivables

- We obtained an understanding of the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and making
provisions for doubtful debts.
BPCTHREEEACEEER KEGBHKE
EHIEE%EE%‘{%}EH’E& B ) B S 12 B R GT - #
TREERE-

- We assessed the classification and accuracy
of individual balances in trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables ageing
report by testing the underlying invoices
and loan agreements on a sample basis, and
the prepayment made by referring to the
agreements entered.

T BB S AR B & 3Rt % 7Y 4 1R
U B 3K i/i\&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ}*ﬂﬁl X IR FR i 3R & (A
RlEH D BRERNE Y2ECAT LB
FHETENRIEER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAWENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FEEEIE

FRESTEIE (15)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMENAEEARENER

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

FEMRR SR - AT RRIR ~ & R H fth FEW R IF R B

We have identified impairment of trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as a key audit
matter due to the magnitude of the receivables and the
estimation and judgments involved in the determination of
the recoverable amounts of these receivables.

B e WK IR BB N BURR - DA KRR/ °E 7% 5 R R TR AT
[B] < 78 B 2 B fif 51 A0 4 B - 24P 2 38R B MR 3R TR AR
B-RehEMEYWRERERBRESFER-

We circulated auditor’'s confirmations to
test the existence of the trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at the end of the reporting period;

B B BT RR K - LORI R R S B R
%:ﬁ&)%%ﬂ%?& CTARFRIE R REMER
FRIE

A valuer was employed for the evaluation
of ECL on trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, and the impairment loss
on the prepayments. We evaluated the
independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

2 58 i BLRD AT il FE U BR 3K~ 4R & I HL th J& Uk
BB BiE BB 1B A R TE T SR IE /YR (E B 18 o
BT EBLIINBEEMNES HRESH
1

We made inquiry of the Group's
management and the independent external
valuer regarding the basis of calculation of
the ECL on the trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, and impairment
review of the prepayments;

HMm ESEEIEERE I ER A
Rt E KR 1R R H b B U IA R TR Hf
EEBERIARIERNRIRNRIE DB ELE

We assessed the reasonableness of the
Group's ECL model and impairment testing,
by reference to the past overdue records
and historical settlement patterns of the
creditors during the year and subsequent to
the year end date; and
HM2REBEAREFARFERRNBER
HaE kELEREXFNE EEENEY
EEBRENREIHANGEE &

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies and assumptions
based on the industry knowledge.

BARBOTRABFAZEETZARBRNE

Bt
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRESTEIR (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMENAEEARENER

Impairment assessment of investment in associates

RBEATREZRBEFG

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEEM B MR TART -

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment in associates, Filmko Culture Limited and its
subsidiaries, amounted to approximately HK$17,000,000
(after impairment loss recognised of approximately
HK$113,617,000).
RZTEZNF=ZA=+—HB R ERRREEBHEL
113,617,000 L% BEXRERBHEAR (EEXLLER
AEIREHERAE)®RE 2 BREE & #)17,000,0007 7T °

To support management's determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on the associates.
RAXFEBBETANBENGENAARE BEEEEZE
BN BIEERGEMEBENRETARBERE:.

We focused on impairment assessment of the Group's
investment in associates as the magnitude of the
investment in associates is significant and management
assessment of the fair value involves judgments and
estimates, key assumptions including the basis of
selection for the comparable entities and their respective
fair values as well as the discount rates taking account of
the lack of marketability factor.

BT EEERBEQRRE ZREN G REAR
BMERNARECHBEERN BEBEBEHAAENTELIR
HE R A ARBEEEREEB  EEREZBN AR
EANMBRARNREZTESRBUERR R ETOBEMRR -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of investment in an associate included:

BPEE—FHE2ARRERENENEFEHE:

- We evaluated the independent external
valuer’s competence, capabilities and
objectivity.
HPFEBIIBEEMNEE I RET
Bt

- We assessed the key assumptions including
the basis of selection for the comparable
entities for fair value valuation and the
discount rates applied to the lack of
marketability factor. We considered the
appropriateness of the discount rates
adopted by management.
BAMFEEERBRERETAABREZE
EREARRZTSRUERRZURXE
ARBRR - BMEEEEELAMNME XN
/B

- We checked the accuracy and relevance of

the input data on sample basis.
AT CA AR 7 i & A SR ) R 2 A
B

—  We evaluated and challenged the composition

of the associates’ fair value and the process
by which they were drawn up, including
testing the underlying fair value less cost of
disposal calculation.

FAPIET i 30 E REHE R B A B EV AR B BA K
mEREF BEREAAEBENIAEBEREEX
EN:ERC
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WIAWENRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAWENEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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WIAWENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2024

Kwong Tin Lap
Practising certificate number: P01953

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre,
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A S A
Reflax
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_MF=A=+—ALFE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FERT FHT
Continuing operations RBREEXY
Revenue Wz 1 23,989 21,704
Cost of sales and services HE KRG A (19,115) (15,335)
Gross profit E A 4,874 6,369
Other income and gains A NS & 1 13,338 2,988
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (128) (255)
Administrative expenses TR X (23,724) (15,586)
Other operating expenses E A R 7 (46,395) (29,129)
Finance costs DF == 8 (599) (452)
Share of loss of associates ShEEE QR EE 17 (6,530) (997)
Share of (loss)/profit of SE—HEE QA
a joint venture (E18) R F 18 (195) 236
Loss before tax Br B BB 18 9 (59,359) (36,826)
Income tax expense e R 1 - -
Loss for the year from REKEEBEE S
continuing operations REEZEE (59,359) (36,826)
Discontinued operations CERIEEEER
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBESEZ
discontinued operations REFEEEE 12 - (8,842)
Loss for the year KEZEE (59,359) (45,668)
Loss for the year attributable RRAEE AEGRER
to owners of the Company: B8 -
— from continuing operations —EXAEBREER (59,359) (36,826)
— from discontinued operations —EXBERILERE
S - (40,563)
Loss for the year attributable ZAN/NIE ¥ SN T PNC
to owners of the Company 518 (59,359) (77,389)
Profit for the year attributable R EREIEAFE
to non-controlling interests: ik A -
— from continuing operations —EAEARBLEER - =
— from discontinued operations —EXBERILELE
E) - 31,721
Profit for the year attributable R EREIEAFE
to non-controlling interests i ) - 31,721
Loss for the year RNEZEE (59,359) (45,668)

=R BREEEEABR A A 2023/2024 £ 75
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FEBEaxR
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NME-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-pE —E-=F
Notes HK cents HK cents
B 5 sl Rl
LOSS PER SHARE BRESE
From continuing and discontinued ~ E4BFELE &
operations BRI SR 13
Basic BN (6.80) (8.87)
Diluted e N/A R iEH N/A 7~ F
From continuing operations EXEBRELCEER 13
Basic BN (6.80) (4.22)
Diluted e N/A R iEH N/A 7~ i@ F
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREBRR

Year ended 31 March 2024
BE_Z-_NF=A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—T-ME —E_=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt =E THET FHT
Loss for the year REEEE (59,359) (45,668)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2mE (FxX), WA
income
ltems that may be reclassified to profit F E & HifE A] E¥ 5 48
or loss in subsequent periods: ZERIER
Exchange differences on translation ¥ E GINER 2
of foreign operations MEH 5 403 1,111
Reclassification of cumulative REEBINEBREE
exchange fluctuation reserve SRR ETIE KK B
upon disposal of foreign f#H
operations (9,173) (347)
Share of exchange differences on DIEBMEBEREZ
translation of associates PE H =58 17 (359) (1,355)
Share of exchange differences on DEBRE—HEE
translation of a joint venture NEZERZRE 18 (11) 69
Other comprehensive expense REFHMPEFX
for the year (9,140) (522)
Total comprehensive expense REEEHEALBE
for the year (68,499) (46,190)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income T 5l A 1+ {5 AN F [Z 2 M
for the year attributable to: (%) /WA 4%
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE7 Z =N (68,499) (76,802)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = - 30,612
(68,499) (46,190)

=R BREEEEAR A A 2023/2024 £ 77
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fra BB AE
As at 31 March 2024
RZZEZ_WE=A=+—H

2024 2023
—F-HE —T-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ETT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HE R 14 4,987 5,052
Investment properties HEME 16 32,121 50,848
Investment in associates REtENR 2% E 17 17,000 29,000
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERFZERE 18 - -
Prepayments, deposits and other AR IR R RHEM
receivables Ji& W k1B 22 - 5,913
54,108 90,813
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Inventories FE 19 209 62
Films copyrights B hRIE 20 4,162 =
Trade receivables B W BR 3R 21 4,082 6,416
Prepayments, deposits and other TR RIE  Re REM
receivables e SE 22 13,105 26,323
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRZ
through profit or loss TREAE 23 - 17,333
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESEEY 24 7,054 7,403
28,612 57,537
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEHENEE 30 9,100 =
37,712 57,537
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENa &
Trade payables FETERFR 25 7,680 6,341
Other payables, accruals and deposits £ i JE 5 5018 « FE&T
received FIEREKIZES 26 34,278 36,712
Interest-bearing borrowings STREEE 27 13,147 -
Contract liabilities aHAEE 28 1,442 1,912
Income tax payable FERTER1S R 15,327 15,327
71,874 60,292
Liabilities associated with assets HABARBELERN
classified as held for sale BERBEMNARE 30 910 -
72,784 60,292
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEFERE (35,072) (2,755)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEMABERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 19,036 88,058
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReMBERAE

As at 31 March 2024

R-E-mE=f=+—8

2024 2023
—F-HE —T-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ETT FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAEE
Deposits received =L ¢i 26 - 483
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE 29 1,133 1,173
(1,133) (1,656)
NET ASSETS EEFE 17,903 86,402
EQUITY s
Share capital % Z< 31 8,728 8,728
Reserves ] 33 9,175 77,674
Equity attributable to owners RNRRER AENG
of the Company = 17,903 86,402
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R - -
TOTAL EQUITY T AR RE 17,903 86,402

HREBISEB0EMNEAMBHRREN _-F
THERNAZTNREESTSHAERRET
AR TINEEHARESE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 230 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chung Yuk Lun Lai Pik Chi Peggy

EER RnET
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SelEDR

Year ended 31 March 2024

BE_ZT_NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHAAEL
Goodwill
Share Asset  Share eliminated  Exchange Non-
Share premium  Capital revaluation  option against  fluctuation Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve  reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests  equity
&b &% HEER  BRE HiE  ExES 2R 54
k% BER e i fife HEzHE 1 . st [ 441 a5
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tiér Thrn Tin TEr  Tin TAL TAL TEr  Thn TEr  Tin
As at 1 April 2022 R=¥--£MA-A 8728 247,085 107433 296 53312 (152) 7175 (283363 163,204 (16,409) 146,795
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (B8) /4 - - - - - - - (77,389 (77,389) 3721 (45668)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ AFEzEM2EMA/
for the year (Fx)
Share of exchange differences HERE-BEERRL
on translation of a joint venture ERZE - - - - - - 69 - 69 = 69
Share of exchange differences HERERERRZ
on translation of associates EXZE - - - - - - (1,355) - (1359 - (1359
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBELZR
of foreign operations - - - - - - 2220 - 2220 (1,109) 1,11
Reclassification adjustment relating to BHEBNEHAEBL
foreign operations disposed of ENNEEER - - - - - - (347) - (347) - (347)
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZRERN/ (BX)
(expense) for the year k] - - - - - - 587 (77,389 (76,802) 30612 (46,190)
Transfer to accumulated losses upon REENBARRERS
disposal of subsidiaries 23 ER - - - (4,464) - - = 4464 = = =
Transfer to accumulated losses upon REREXURERZ
lapse of share options ZiER - - - - (29 - = 21,979 - = -
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR - = = = = = = = = (14,203)  (14,203)
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZBZZ£ZA=+-8R
—§-=£MmB-H 8728 247085 107433 18522 31383 (152) 7,162 (334,309) 86,402 - 86402
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - - (59,359)  (59,359) - (59,359)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ AFE zEt2EMA/
for the year (Fx)
Share of exchange differences HERE-HRERFZ
on translation of  joint venture ERZEE - - - - - - (1) - (1) - (1)
Share of exchange differences HERERERRZ
on translation of associates EXEE - - - - - - (359) - (359) - (359)
Exchange differences on translation BEENEEL
of foreign operations EXEE - - - - - - 403 - 403 - 403
Reclassification to profit or loss upon R EBIN S
disposal of foreign operations ENABRER - - - - - - (9,173) - (9173) - 9473
Total comprehensive expense for the year A E 2 2ERX A% - - - - - - (9,140) (59,359)  (68,499) - (68,499)
Transfer to accumulated losses upon REENBARRERZ
disposal of subsidiaries 2 ERE - - - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 R-¥-ME=RA=+-A 8,728 247,085 107,433 18,522 31,333 (152) (1,378) (393,668) 17,903 - 17,903

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FER&a&aRE

Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_MF=A=+—ALFE

2024 2023
—EZE —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 53 TER TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZDELEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax from: LA & I8 E 4 2 BRELAT
E518 -
- continuing operations —BFEREET (59,359) (36,826)
- discontinued operations — BRI EFET - (8,842)
Loss before tax B 75 B B 1B (59,359) (45,668)
Adjustments for: BT BTHFEE
Finance costs B 15 & A 8 599 974
Amortisation of film copyrights B R M i 8 4,541 =
Share of loss/(profit) of a joint DiE—HEEERAZ
venture BiE Cafl) 18 195 (236)
Share of loss of associates DREEE QR 2 EE 17 6,530 997
Bank interest income R1TH B U A 6 (15) (96)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR 2 34 (10,144) (7,406)
Gain on disposal of items of HEME BB R&ZEH
property, plant and equipment BBz W= b - (39)
Loss on changes in fair value REMERNREZS 2
of investment properties &8 7 9,590 683
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial BAREFABEZ
assets at fair value through PREEZANE
profit or loss, net (Wz=) /BB FHE
— equity investments at fair value —RAREFA
through profit or loss BRBRERE 6,7 (829) 2,268
— investments in convertible bond — AR ESRE 6,7 1,496 (846)
Depreciation of property, ME HERZERTE
plant and equipment 9 389 1,259
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEENE 9 - 1,215
Impairment loss on trade HER (Bm) fE U AR %
receivables recognised/(reversed) A E 1R 6,7 165 (536)
Impairment loss on other receivables E B KRIBFEREE 7 30,033 16,142
Reversal of provision for inventory B OB ERE
obsolescence - (13)
Impairment loss on investment (#E),TH#RN—H
in and loan to a joint venture BERNAIZRER
(reversed)/recognised ERF—HEEEQA
ZREEE 6,7 (364) 351
Impairment loss on investment in REERF 21 E
associates VRN R 7 5,111 9,648

SHENXEREEBAR A A 2023/2024 £ 81
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HFeEReRER

Year ended 31 March 2024

HE_Z_NME-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REETHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES (Continued) (&)
Operating cash flows before EEEEHAI
movements in working capital KEBERE (12,062) (21,303)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (Em),Ed (147) 5,267
Decrease in trade receivables JiE W BR SRRk 2,169 4,323
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  FEfTZIE & M E A
deposits and other receivables FEU FRIE (1) R A (15,202) 18,357
Decrease in financial assets EARBERABE ISR
at fair value through profit or loss BERD
— equity investments at fair value - RBRARBEFABRZ
through profit or loss IR E 1,002 993
Increase in trade payables JE 1<F BR K35 N 1,339 154
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, E b B 5H « fE5T
accruals and deposits received RERBWIZES
#m/ CRd) 15,426 (10,966)
Decrease in contract liabilities aEHaERY (470) (688)
Exchange realignment M N (349) 5,866
Cash (used in)/generated from memEw (fiEr),/
operations EEZEE (8,294) 2,003
Interest paid EAAFLE - (452)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEBEBENRFEHBD
payments - (522)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RESES) (FTREZ),/
operating activities EEZHEFHE (8,294) 1,029

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IFEBeRER
Year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_Z-_MF=-A=+—ALLtFE

2024 2023
—T-ME —E_=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEPELZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received B ERIT B 15 96
Purchases of items of property, plant BB  HE L&
and equipment =)= (386) (484)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERH&E
property, plant and equipment IE = Ffr?%fé’\ 112 42
Settlement of other receivable arising Bﬁ\ﬂﬁif;uﬂ%
from disposal of subsidiaries in W%’RETEEZ
prior years H h & WK IE 5,000 =
Deposits received from disposal of FEE R E Y EF WK
an investment property Wiz & 9210 -
Payments for films copyrights B R T 3K (10,953) =
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEHBARZ
disposal of subsidiaries Be Opd) MAFE 34 (158) 4,812
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREEE (FEZ)/
investing activities Fiig 2 IR& #58 (5,460) 4,466
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REEHELZRERE
ACTIVITIES
New borrowings MEEE 12,548 =
Repayment of other borrowings BEAMER - (14,609)
Capital element of lease liabilities Tﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬂ\2§$‘5‘ 2
payments - (2,072)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBFIF L2
financing activities ()R eER 12,548 (16,681)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RekReFEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B 3 R (1,206) (11,186)
Cash and cash equivalents FzBHEekEeF
at beginning of the year TE% 7,403 18,770
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFFHTE TR
changes, net 857 (181)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAEFAEEF
AT END OF THE YEAR B9 24 7,054 7,403

=B EEABR A A 2023/2024 £ 83
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBERRME

31 March 2024
—E-_NFE=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at Room
22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial Building, 145 Hennessy Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
During the year, the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, was principally engaged in the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses, property investment, investment in
debts and securities, film investment and distribution business
and energy business that engaged in investments in energy
sector related instrument and sale and trading of liquefied
petroleum gas products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

During the prior year ended 31 March 2023, as detailed
in note 12, the Group disposed of Gold Strong Industrial
Limited (“Gold Strong”). Gold Strong and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of optical
frames and sunglasses and property investment. Following
the completion of the disposal, the Group discontinued
the business operations undertaken by Gold Strong and
its subsidiaries, which are regarded as the discontinued
operations of the Group.

1.

AT REEEH
SEXSEEBEEEBRAA (AR
AARRBREZIMKIZBERA
AlCEROREBBERSMERA
Al ([BERZFT)) £ e RA Al 2 52 il ¢
EEZ AL Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
KRR BEARETBEEWUURE S
BT EFEI4SHR T RE ERNE22
B22%E -

RABRREERRA -FR AEE
(BRARFREMBAR) T2RE
REANAGRECEE WERE -
BHELEFRE EXRERETE
BRREERASEETARENR
BRIEAMREMRBENRE S ZBERE
7% o

HAEMBHRERUBETL([AET] A
RRABZINEGEER) 25

REE-_SE_=ZF=-A=+—H8I1ItB
TFEE M EI2F A AEBE B
EFEIEARAT ([&FFE]) -
EHELREWNBRARAETENRERER
MAGREZSENEERMERSE -
REETKE AEERIEEDF
EEREWBARETHERZE (K
RERNEEERIEEER) -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

A REEER (F)

FHMBATIZER
AAREEMBRRZFHBMT :

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
AL EE R ERfTLER/ AT EE
Z% Sk EMERRE RETHLL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE el
Elegance Optical Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 and - 100 Investment holding and
Limited BE non-voting deferred property investment
AREREREBRAA HK$20,000,000% REERENERE
£ MR2007% 7T R
ERZEETR
20,000,0007% 7T*
Elegance Optical Manufactory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited ) L@koBT trading of optlcal frames
BEREHERBR AT REZBRRBRERZES
People by People Group Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100 Trading of optical
£ LB AR2007% 7T frames and bags in
Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia
REERREEET
BRERERFRZES
BEEE (RIDEBRA PRC Registered - 100  Trading and manufacture
(TR HERI] ) e RMB33,000,000 of optical frames
2t REEZEHREE
AR #33,000,0007C
Brilliant Plan Global Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 - Securities investment
BARKER AR ("BVI") ERRIET BERRE
KBRS
((EBEEZHS])
Capital Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
Development Limited BE AR 10,0008 7T it
BHEXERERAA
Filmko Pictures (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 Film distribution
Co. Limited BE 47 %10,000,000% 7T BTEY
B % (BE)BRAR
GULF ENERGY (CHINA) LIMITED  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 Energy business
(formerly known as “H. Sterling &% &3 %20,000,0005 7T BRER
Global Energy Limited")
BERR (PE)BRAA
(FifE[E LRERESBRARF])
Universal Star Enterprlses Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Film investment
REGCERERA B ERBIET EYRE

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2024

—E_NFE=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year and at the end of the year.

* The first HK$1,000,000,000,000 of the profits which the subsidiary
may determine to distribute in any financial year must be distributed
among the holders of ordinary shares where one half of the balance
of the said profits is distributed among the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares and the other half of such balance among the
holders of ordinary shares. Moreover, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares have no other rights to dividends. The holders of the
non-voting deferred shares have no right to attend or vote at general
meetings, except for general meetings convened for the purpose of
reducing the capital of the Company or altering their class rights.
The non-voting deferred shares carry the right to receive one half of
the balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up after
the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total return of
HK$5,000,000,000.

> AR is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under

PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group's annual
period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendment to HKFRS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar

Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
other amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments define accounting
estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.
In such a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy.
The amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates, and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

4>r
B A
JiE

EHXERTY M
%/%ED+Em@A(r§/ i AE])
BB RS ERE nT$ Z
ZEEBITIAN_ZET-_=FIAH—HHH
MASEFEHRBERINER BARE
BURE B WK :

BB IEIRE AR RERE K
F75 (BIEEE

B 75 R 45 2 A
FINR_T_TF
+ARZE=—

ZRAZIBRTA)
%‘%%ﬁiﬁw grHhErZ
FEHE 2B A E &
E@E-hiw HE—-XHA

F125 ZHEFT AR EXEENR
BEEBZ
R IE
EE g 2R B B R Uk
F12R2EE] K WE-TH
AR
EAGEREIS  E@EEZ
kBB RE WE
ﬁwfﬁﬁﬁi
F2H BRI R
Br NPTt & oh R ANFE FER AT

FEEWBHREEAREBEMEFT A
HARKER B A KB EFEZ MBI
RARRBER RZEHEA M ERER
HoWBUBEATE -

FEREBE ERIE8R 2 BT A
[tttz ER | NEE

AEECRAFEEREAZFER
Ko ZEET NG AT ERER [
BRETFEFEITEEENER S
Bl -G BERAUEREANSRAED
MEMN T AHMERRNERETT
FE-RUERT BRERESEG
FHOLEREABEBINBR BB
SR EANESR 2B ABFB G A

AEPEESTRREPH REREIEL
e & [ Al o

RAEERABRFEITAHERE MG
BRI BEATE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
“significant
with “material accounting policy

is amended to replace all instances of the term
accounting policies”
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the other amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.

REFEEHERZEEUS
MEERETA (&)
FEREBEERASE 1R REBY

BRELENEBREF295 25T
XEFdBRRZBEEINEE
AEBERANFEERERAZFER
KoBBEGFTERFIR [HBERRD
EMIBETATEXRG A BRER]
HXKF?EKEJBZ R]—FHAABRE
HEREBEEVHRRAEMBER
{F%FE ERHREMAANGER
HerEBRMEREANERERE
REBEZEHBEHRERMELEORE A
ZERTBRENBEK-

ZEEEAIEE  BIME S RRIBIL
TEX - BERBEBEZSMLE Hits
ERERN S BERERDAIBEAXN-
AT WIERMBEREARS HMEIE
FERNARN G HEER R BNE
BRM—HAERBEERRIFERSY
AREER - BHEBEHTEREEX
BETBKREH -

FREMBHRE LB RE B2 [1F
Hjék’l‘ﬂéﬂ%ﬂ (TEH®E]) HEE
71 AR — B R E# [ AF
BEAEREZ]ERANESFBREE
RAB AR AT BERNERSH
MERRREEBERN-BEBREE
miEEE R REH -

RAFEEERAEEMBHREEN 2 H
MWETAHANEERERNRBEFE
ZHBRRE KRB R, L% ETBR
KRB BB BEATE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") - Long
Service Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong

The Group has several subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong
which are obliged to pay LSP to employees under certain
circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group makes mandatory
MPF contributions to the trustee who administers the assets
held in a trust solely for the retirement benefits of each
individual employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s
accrued retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57). In June 2022, the Government of the HKSAR
gazette the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “"Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of
the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
MPF contributions to offset severance payment and LSP
(the "Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect on
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition, under the
Amendment Ordinance, the last month's salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date (instead of the date of
termination of employment) is used to calculate the portion of
LSP in respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published "“Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong” which provides guidance for the accounting
for the offsetting mechanism and the impact arising from
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong. In light of this, the Group has implemented the
guidance published by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP
obligation retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and
more relevant information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition.

EREEUBREER ([F
;;%gf)i‘%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ])Zﬁ%ﬂZF
HEREEEAMASTAME
ARHAGREARE (88
£]) REBRZ (IRBR
Bal)HdMEMETRED
ESITMERMEBRED

AEEEZREBRERLENNBAR
AEETHERTRAREEXNRBRS
TR AKRERIEA(EEESR
P55 & & 8 5 8 B AR K48 A M A S 58
FABENEE)EHRHERES
K CRBIEDI) (F57F) it 7 AR
TRESHFMEENREERF RN
BafrRERBE - R_FT=_=

NACBERNTHRRBFNE
T —FRERRIRFEAM (K H
ZHE) (ERTI&B) (TERTIEBI]) -
BUBE A EE @b RES HRAME
EMRERDHTERERRPRE
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P2 BE RS
SHEEBREBIEAES -RER
BeY i EENTEREES -
BERL AEBERPERDTES
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") - Long
Service Payment (“LSP") offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong (Continued)

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with the
employee and which could be used to offset the employee’s
LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by the employee
towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to account
for the deemed employee contributions as a reduction of
the service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result of the Abolition,
mandatory contributions are no longer considered “linked
solely to the employee’s service in that period” since the
mandatory employer MPF contributions after the Transition
Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition LSP
obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to view
the mandatory contributions as "“independent of the number
of years of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead, these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods of
service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit applying
paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

The change in accounting policy as a result of application of
the HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2024
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements’
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2025

®  The effective date to be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs that
are not yet effective in respect of the current year will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2024
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterpart, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity's own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of
financial statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to
defer settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity
complying with covenants within twelve months after the
reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date
of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 Amendments for an earlier period after the
issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply
the 2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31st March
2024, the application of the 2020 Amendments and the 2022
Amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group's
liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statement, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users.

Going concern basis

Notwithstanding that the Group incurred net losses amounted
to approximately HK$59,359,000 and HK$45,668,000
for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
respectively; and the current liabilities of the Group at 31
March 2024 exceed the Group's current assets at that date by
approximately HK$35,072,000, the directors of the Company
consider it appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis after taking into
account the following circumstances and measures:

(@) The Company entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party (the “Lender”) on 30 June 2023,
pursuant to which, the Lender has agreed to grant the
Company a short term loan facility to an aggregate
extent of HK$18,000,000, of which HK$13,147,000 has
been drawn down as at 31 March 2024. The outstanding
loan is wholly repayable on or before 20 March 2025.

(b) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company obtained a financial support from a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the substantial shareholder of
the Company (the “Supporter”), pursuant to which
the Supporter provides the financial support to the
Company to the extent of approximately HK$40,000,000
to ensure the Company'’s business continuity on a going
concern basis. This financial support will last till 31
December 2025, and is not secured by any assets of the
Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁgg#ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁ&i

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(c)  The Group is implementing various measures, such as
optimising its overall sales network and undergoing
effective cost control to improve the profit margin and
operating cash flows of its business.

(d) The Group will also continue to seek for other alternative
financing and bank borrowings to finance its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months after the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to reduce the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The material accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

= has power over the investee;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

—  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date when the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the equity holders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination or assets acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “"Conceptual Framework”)
except for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

= deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

- lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit (or group of cash-generating units) and then to the
other assets of the unit (or group of cash-generating units) pro
rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint venture

An associate is an entity, over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated fmanaal
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

The investment in associates or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in associates or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interests in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associates or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part of interest in the associates or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associates or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associates or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associates or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in associates and joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with the associates or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associates or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associates or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in associates becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in associates. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in associates
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates
or joint ventures

When the Group increases its ownership interest in associates
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, goodwill is recognised at acquisition date if there is
excess of the consideration paid over the share of carrying
amount of net assets attributable to the additional interests
in associates or joint ventures acquired. Any excess of share
of carrying amount of net assets attributable to the additional
interests in associates or joint ventures acquired over the
consideration paid are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which the additional interest are acquired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities,
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

revenues

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution
of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation,
and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of
assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains
and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Sale proceeds of items that are produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and
the related costs of producing those items are recognised
in the profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured
in accordance with the measurement requirements of HKAS
2. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Shorter of the lease terms and the
rates of 5% to 10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by
the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has changed as evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation, the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use is considered as the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

For a transfer to investment properties from owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserve.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, plant and equipment, and
land that have a lease term of twelve months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁgg#ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁ&i

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and are initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments includes:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use assets. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the
lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments
using the unchanged discount rate, unless the change in
lease payments results from a change in floating interest
rates. In that case, the Group uses the revised discount
rate that reflects change in the interest rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease
modifications required by interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the applicable requirements in HKFRS
16 (see the accounting policy above) to account for all
lease modifications made at the same time, including those
required by interest rate benchmark reform.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs
(other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net investments
in the leases. Initial direct costs for leases in which the Group
is the manufacturer or dealer lessor are recognised in costs
of sales at the commencement date of the finance leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise. When
a lease contract contains a specific clause that provides for
rent reduction or suspension of rent in the event that the
underlying assets (or any part thereof) are affected by adverse
events beyond the control of the Group and the lessee so as
to render the underlying assets unfit or not available for use,
the relevant rent reduction or suspension of rent resulting
from the specific clause is accounted for as part of the original
lease and not as a lease modification. Such rent reduction or
suspension of rent is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
to occur.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %ﬁg%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ&iﬁﬁi

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head lease
(adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with the
sublease) to measure the net investment in the sublease if
the interest rate implicit in the sublease cannot be readily
determined.
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as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

(i) Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payment, of which some
of these lease payments are contractually due but not
paid and some of them are not yet contractually due,
the Group accounts for the portions which have been
recognised as operating lease receivables (i.e. the lease
payments which are contractually due but not paid) by
applying the ECL and derecognition requirements under
HKFRS 9 and applies lease modification requirements
for the forgiven lease payments that the Group has
not recognised (i.e. the lease payments which are
not yet contractually due) as at the effective date of
modification.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Lease modification (Continued)

(if)  Finance leases
The Group accounts for a change in the lease payments
of a finance lease as a lease modification, that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 9. If the change represents a
substantial modification, the finance lease receivables of
the original lease are derecognised and a derecognition
gain or loss calculated using the revised lease payments
discounted at the revised discount rate is recognised
in profit or loss on the date of the modification. If the
change does not represent a substantial modification,
the Group continues to recognise the finance lease
receivables in which such carrying amount will be
calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the related
receivables’ original discount rate. Any adjustment to
the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss at the
effective date of modification.

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform for a
finance lease that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group applies the same accounting policies as those
applicable to financial instruments (see accounting policy
below).

Film copyright

Co-investment arrangements

The Group participates in co-investment arrangements led by
other parties. If the Group obtains shares of the copyrights
and interests of the films based on the investment portion,
the amount paid by the Group is recognized as “Films
copyrights”. The film copyright investments are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any. Upon the film is granted the license for
distribution, the film copyright investments are subsequently
amortised on a systematic basis, that reflect the pattern in
which their future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Group, normally within one year and is
recognised as cost of sales and services in profit or loss.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME
31 March 2024
—E_NFE=A=+—H
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business is included in other income and gains.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(1)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being

measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iir)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable date about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

J Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in FVTOCI revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified. When the
contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount
of the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified
as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables
and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and lease liabilities, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit and loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
financial liability from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently
has a legally enforceable legal right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and restricted
deposits arising from pre-sale of properties that are
held for meeting short-term cash commitments. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented
as short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit/loss differs from profit/loss before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sales.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulted in net
deductible temporary differences.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’'s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

3.

W am SR (45)
REFEFENZWE (48)

fifi 75 & LA T H o — TR - BU SR ) 4
AEBEEE MESISLER2RE
1THRR B 40 & (E M FE BE P R AR R -

B RS B R 49 B [3) B LA K2
HREASE BRI

. AEEMBEHARREETERN
rEEROBIEHNEE

s AKENBHREEHAKEA
BERAZMEE MASEY
S BB ZNRE BB
e

SR WRREFPESHESRIR
TSR IR FE R

BERF IR W s - T BT 2 ETTIERT
EFREE

i DA
TERTEAOEENERIRERE L
AETE B BERFEEZESEHEE
TEPZERBIMBZEE HEE
T AHRENBRTERIREZE
BERANE AENERERRAS
B RS e RS R B E A B
HIFM

BEZREXNEL (BRI ZER)
=y
RBEEZHEBEHEELNEHOME A
SENESBYNEBHSHENR
ENERERHER  HEDBHT RS

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price) (Continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract assets and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
basis when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods to its customers.

Revenue from film distribution service is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group's performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from the sales of copyrights (script materials,
investment in films with copyrights, etc.) is recognised at the
point in time when the copyrights of film are delivered and
accepted by the customers.

3.

Wz iR (48 )
REEFEHzZWE (B)
BEZEENRIL (BRTIEXRZERE)
& # (&)
HERORTHBNAESR®RIIRS
ZEBEEBRANLVIHERE &
AEEEBRTFPFHEAHEMAR
BRER HEBEETHERERS
AIREEEERGEN ARG %E
W~Mﬁﬁﬂ TEREEEFNENEEZ
RZERRRAEEBRRIRER
AFEEMEABBEEFMBERRELZ
RE-

BHNEEEASEREADAKECE
& T EF R E S IR WK (B #
M CHEARK R EGE) HEREBFEY
B s E R FOR AR E R E
HﬁZmlﬁhﬁ’%lH&E’Mﬂ HY S (6 1
FMoBREFESFHERBERENZEX
fif o

AMBERAKERE B TP AR
B (X HEBHKE) MAEFE
EEmARBZEL

B )

PRERGHNAGNEERANARE
BFREREIERRET -

EXRTREURSE<ERITHEBER
MEANEERERKEER REAE
P 1A 7R 52 (B B 49 B [R) Bk W B R RE AR
SEBEOPTRHER A

R (BIAEM RAERENEZRE
FIHERERRINREFEREY
ARAERS HERR o

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii

139



140

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Licensing of broadcasting rights of films

Revenue from the licensing of broadcasting rights of films is
recognised at the point in time when the films are available
to the licensee, generally on broadcasting of the films
after receipt of the licence for distribution as a customer is
provided with a right to use the films and it exists at the point
in time when the license is granted.

A sales-based licensing income is recognised as revenue only
when (or as) the later of the following events occurs: (a) the
subsequent sale occurs; and (b) the performance obligation to
which some or all of the sales-based royalty has been satisfied
(or partially satisfied).

Net investment income from co-investment of films
with copyrights

As disclosed in the accounting policies for “Film copyright
— Co-investment arrangements” set out above, the Group
invests in certain films where the Group obtained shares of
the copyrights and interests of the films of the Group for the
entitlement of right for revenue sharing. Revenue of these
arrangements is measured based on net investment income
from co-investment of films with copyrights.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants (including directors of the Company and
employees of the Group) who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations, under which such participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby participants render services as
consideration for equity instruments.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss in respect of the period as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss in
respect of the period as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, and a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.

Settlements of monetary items which formed part of net
investment in foreign operations without changes in the
Group's ownership interests is not considered as partial
disposals.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits to the Group and they are not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgments (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Principal versus agent

Determining whether revenue of the Group should be
reported gross or net is based on a continuing assessment of
various factors. When determining whether the Group is acting
as the principal or agent in offering goods or services to the
customer, the Group needs to first identify who controls the
specified goods or services before they are transferred to the
customer. The Group is a principal that controls the specified
goods or services before they are transferred to a customer
when: (i) the Group is primarily obligated in a transaction; (i)
the Group has inventory risk before the specified goods or
services have been transferred to a customer or after transfer
of control to the customer; or (iii) the Group has discretion in
establishing price for the specified goods or service.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of investment in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of associates at the end of each reporting period.
Investment in associates are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on comparable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. Changes in business circumstances
of the associates may significantly affect the recoverable
amount of the investment which would result in additional
impairment loss to be made or reversal of impairment loss
previously made. Details of the impairment loss recognised
on investment in associates are set out in note 17.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the usage of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving items where events
or changes in circumstances indicates that the net realisable
value of such inventories are expected to be less than
their carrying amount. In addition, physical counts on all
inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to
determine whether provision is needed to be made in respect
of any obsolete inventories identified. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that adequate provision for obsolete
inventories has been made in the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately HK$209,000, net of provision
for obsolete inventories of approximately HK$6,829,000
(2023: approximately HK$62,000, net of provision for obsolete
inventories of approximately HK$7,168,000).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management's judgement
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the trade receivables are impaired.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the assessment of the expected credit
loss. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability
of the customers to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$4,082,000,
net of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,672,000 (2023: approximately HK$6,416,000, net
of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,507,000).

The Group uses four categories for expected credit loss
assessment of deposits and other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss assessment of
the Group's receivables are disclosed in note 42.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Management of the Group determines on a regular basis
whether there are any indications that the property, plant and
equipment are impaired. Impairment loss for property, plant
and equipment are recognised when the carrying amounts
of each of the assets exceed their respective recoverable
amounts, which are determined based on the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. The fair values
of property, plant and equipment are estimated by reference
to their expected selling prices which are affected by various
factors, including market conditions and the technological
occurrence. The value in use calculation requires the use of
estimates such as the future revenue and discount rates. If
the recoverable amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount and an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in respect of the period. For the current year,
no impairment loss was recognised on the Group's property,
plant and equipment (2023: Nil).

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from previous estimates.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at their fair value. The best evidence of fair value
of the Group's investment properties are current prices in an
active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar leases and other contracts.
In making its judgement, management considers information
from: (i) independent valuations; and (ii) external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the
same location and condition. Details regarding the fair value
measurement of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2024 are set out in note 16.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2024 was approximately
HK$247,591,000 (2023: approximately HK$220,519,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 29.

Impairment of films copyrights

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of films copyrights
amounted to approximately HK$4,162,000 (2023: Nil).
Films copyrights are tested for impairment when there are
indications that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
respective fair values are determined by using discounted
cash flow valuation technique. Management of the Group
estimates the expected future cash flows from the films
copyrights and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further details
are disclosed in note 20.

Amortisation of films copyrights

The amortisation of films copyrights recognised as cost
of sales and services for a given period is on a systematic
basis, that reflects the pattern in which their future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Group. Under
this method, the amortisation of films copyrights are based
on the proportion of the film's revenues recognised for
such period to the total estimated revenues of film. The
amortisation method is reviewed regularly, and revised if
appropriate. Details of the amounts of films copyrights are
disclosed in note 20.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following operating segments based on their products and
services:

(a)

the trading segment engaged in trading of optical
frames and sunglasses?*;

the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income;

the debts and securities investment segment engaged in
investments in financial instruments and quoted shares;

the film investment and distribution segment engaged
in films copyrights and movie investments and
distributions; and

the energy business segment engaged in investments in
energy sector related instrument and sale and trading of
liquefied petroleum gas products.

The trading segments was organised following the cessation of the
manufacturing and trading segment included in the discontinued
operations (see below).

5. SEPEH
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BERIATNREE D A :

(a)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report

REEERZEREABRREZE

BEHH

REEEMERARDBES WA Z
MEREDE:

?&%’f%ﬂiﬂ&ﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ&’ﬁz
BEREFREDE:

RESEZREUREZRE R
TZEXRERETDEH R

N EaEREAR T A ?ﬁ LA K2
BltAHREREERE S 28k
TRETE 7D & -

BEOBDIRKRLSEREED A (FTA
ERIEEEZER (RT3 ) RARMA-



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Discontinued operations

In addition, during the prior year ended 31 March 2023, the
Group discontinued the following operations which were
undertaken by the former subsidiaries, Gold Strong and its
subsidiaries, which were disposed of by the Group during that
year.

()  the manufacturing and trading segment engaged
in manufacture and trading of optical frames and
sunglasses; and

(9) the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income.

The disposed subsidiaries were considered by the
management as separate major line of business of the
Group. Accordingly, the entire manufacturing and trading
segment and part of the property investment segment were
accounted for as discontinued operations. Details about these
discontinued operations and the disposal are set out in note
12.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/loss before tax
except that bank and other interest income, finance costs and
unallocated income and gains as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 98&EH (8)
Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and DHMWEETBERDEENEE XD
corporate assets, including cash and cash equivalents, XEE- q:‘/j%ﬁﬁ&fﬁﬁ—r@%‘
investments in and balances with a joint venture and certain 7 — /I:l\ ERAIZREREZEER
property, plant and equipment, as these assets are managed RIZHEBRARE TR BER&E:
on a group basis. LWITHERZEEEREEEEER
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and DHMEEBTERERDEENER
corporate liabilities, including income tax payable, deferred ¥BE EPBEREMNMEN LL%R
tax liabilities and other payables, accruals and deposits EQ{E& L th & 1< 53R - B ST R K
received, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. e kTTHRZEZARESE
BEREER.
Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with AEHEEEREREN2ENE AT
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third MEME=FHEZEBMET-
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 BEE-_S-_MNE=HA=+—HLE
EME
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RREEEH ERIEEEER
Film
Debts and  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property Manufacturing
Trading investment investment distribution business Subtotal investment  and trading  Subtotal Total
f’BER BERAEAR
BRE 9¥RE EHRE B RRRER Mt BERE  REREE it @t
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TET FiET TF#ET T#EL THET FET TF#ET TET FET F#ET
Segment revenue Pl 12,907 1,398 - 9,684 - 23,989 - - - 23,989
Inter-segment revenue AHEhE - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue from external customers RENMPEF 2 W5 12,907 1,398 - 9,684 - 23,989 - - - 23,989
Segment loss AR (7493) (15593 (1,200 (4336)* (24238  (52,860) - - - (52,860
Bank interest income FATRIBHMA 15 - 15
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2% 10,144 - 10,144
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBASRAR
expenses (9,334) - (9,334)
Finance costs BRER (599) - (599)
Share of loss of associates AEBENAZER - - - (6,530) - (6,530) - - - (6,530)
Share of loss of a joint venture ‘/NE BAERFZER (195) - - - - (195) - - - (195)
Loss before tax BHATEE (59,359) - (59,359)
Segment assets HPAE 9,497 45,556 50 29,551 - 84,654 - - - 84,654
Corporate and other unallocated assets ¥ REMKXHREE 7166
Total assets BEEE 91,820
Segment liabilities SBARK 16,432 1,343 4,987 5619 12,154 40,535 - - - 40,535
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 2% kMK B EE 33,382
Total liabilities BEEE 73917

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations

5. S8&EHR (E)

Discontinued operations

RAGEEE BRIEEBEE
Film
Debts and  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property Manufacturing
Trading investment investment distribution business Subtotal investment  and trading  Subtotal Total
f’HR BHRAEAR
BE 9%RE  B5RE BT REER M WERE  RERER gt st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERL T#ERL TFET TFET TFET T TFET TERL T#RL TFET
Other segment information: R BEH:
Share of loss of associates AEBERAZER - - - (6,530) - (6,530) - - - (6,530)
Share of loss of a joint venture AE-HEERAZER (195) - - - - (195) - - - (195)
Depreciation ik 363 24 - 2 - 389 - - - 389
Impairment loss on investment REEAAZREREHR
in associates - - - (5,111) - (5,111) - - - (5,111)
Impairment loss on investment inand ~ BER-FAERAZRER
loan to a joint venture reversed ERF-HAERAZRERE (364) - - - - (364) - - - (364)
Additions to items of property, RENE BERREEE
plant and equipment 386 - - - - 386 - - - 386
* *

Included impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other

receivables of approximately HK$24,238,000 as the corresponding

assets were previously included in segment assets of energy business.

*%

Included impairment loss on investment in associates of

approximately HK$5,111,000 as the corresponding assets are included
in segment assets of film investment and distribution.
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5. EEHE(E)
MBE—_F-_=F=H=+—H1L%

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023

b
EmE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREEEY BRILERER
Film
Debtsand  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property  Manufacturing
Trading investment investment distribution  business Subtotal investment  and trading Subtotal Total
FBR BERER
BEE MERE  EHRE BT #RER PNt mERE REREE Pt st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhx Thx AR TAR TAn TEn TEn TAn TAn TEr
Segment revenue HipkE 7173 1,333 - 12,598 - 21,704 343 16,404 16,747 38,451
Inter-segment revenue AHERE - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue from external customers RENMPEE 2 K% 7773 1333 = 12,958 = 21,704 33 16,404 16,747 38451
Segment profit/(loss) HiH/ (BR) 2,605 (6:9%0) (3623 (BAT (@898 (213%)) 1,982 (17804) (15822 (7179
Bank interest income RITFISHA - 9% 9%
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2 KE = 7,406 7,406
Bad debt recovery ERKE 350 - 350
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ S¥REMAFELHE (14,610) = (14,610)
Finance costs BHER (452) (522) (974)
Share of loss of associates PEBENRZER = = = (997) = (997) = = = (997)
Share of profit of a joint venture ME-HRERTZET 2% - - - - 236 - - - 26
Loss before tax KBAIER (36,826) (8842 (45669)
Segment assets HPEE 25,893 39,63 22 37,576 21,085 124,412 - - - 124,412
Corporate and other unallocated assets rEREMAIREE 23938
Total assets BEBE 148,350
Segment liabilities HPEE 12,007 366 3,964 14,277 12,154 42,768 - - - 42,768
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites ~ SEREMAPEEE 19,180
Total liabilities BEEE 61,948
Other segment information: R BEH:
Share of loss of associates MEBERFZER = = = (997) = (997) = - - (997)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—FAERAZER 236 - - - - 236 - - - 236
Depreciation ik 346 24 - 388 - 758 - 1,716 1,716 2474
Impairment loss on investment REERRZ RERERR
in associates - - - (9,648) - (9,648) - - - (9,648)
(Reversal of)/impairment loss FE(BE)/HEER
of inventories (63) = = = = (63) = 76 76 13
Impairment of trade receivables BE/ (BR) BUERAE
reversed/(recognised) 261 - - 269 - 536 - - - 536
Impairment loss on investment in and REOR-MAERAZRER
loan to a joint venture reversed ERT-BaERFZAERR 351 - - - - 351 - - - 351
Additions to items of property, RENE BERREEA
plant and equipment 484 - - - - 484 - - - 484

o BEEMRIE Re RHEtEKRFIERE
&518 495,764,0007%8 ¢+ b Ty A MR & B
TRt AREREB D HEE-

Included impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of approximately HK$5,764,000 as the corresponding
assets were previously included in segment assets of energy business.

*%

G BERBEARZREREBEYD
9,648,000 7t It AR HBEEEFT AT
FRERBIIDHEE-

Included impairment loss on investment in associates of
approximately HK$9,648,000 as the corresponding assets are included
in segment assets of film investment and distribution.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

(a)

Revenue from continuing operations from
external customers

5. 98&AR (E)
b 35 & ¥

(a)

REAIBEFZHREALEEX
5 W

2024 2023
—EFE-E —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Continuing operations HEGEER

Europe M 5,809 4,237
America EM 5,044 2,691

The People’s Republic of China RE AR
("PRC") (including Hong Kong) ([FFE]) (BESEH) 11,619 14,341
Others HAt 1,517 435
23,989 21,704

Discontinued operations CRILEEER
Europe M - 6,946
America FEM - 8,707
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) - 808
Others Hf - 286
- 16,747
Total revenue 8 a 23,989 38,451

The revenue information shown above is based on the
locations of the customers. The PRC (including Hong
Kong) segment mainly represents rental income from
lease of the Group's properties located in the PRC
(including Hong Kong), film distribution income, net
investment income from co-investment of films with
copyrights, the sales of eyewear products to agents
located in Hong Kong including sales made to local
retailers and fair value gains on equity investments listed
in Hong Kong. The directors are of the opinion that the
agents in Hong Kong export the Group's products mainly
to ultimate customers located in Europe and America.

Non-current assets

All significant non-current operating assets of the
Group are located in the PRC (including Hong Kong).
Accordingly, no geographical information of segment
assets is presented.

ERAIRRmERTIRBEREP T
EwEl D -HE(BEEE)NE
TERERBEERAEEURN T E
(BRBFRBIZVRERERZES
WA BEZZTEA REHKF
REFAMENEZ 2RERA
FERAURBENRERLE
ERHERREMREE LMK
BEENAAERGE BEZRR
FREZARERBAKREERER
H A FRRBON R RN RER
Eo

FRBEE
AEBMRAERGERDEEEE
BuRFE(BFEEE) Hit-
VEEINDBEEZILEF -
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31 March 2024

—E-_mME=RA=+—H

5.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. 98B&R (&F)

Information about major customers FRAXEERZEH
Revenue from individual customers in respect of the RAEENEEFE AW T RI10%
continuing operations of the corresponding years contributing FOHEFERBELEEBEARTP
over 10% of total revenue of the Group of the corresponding 2R
years is as follows:
2024 2023
—E-ME == =48
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Revenue generated from
EEXBTIREZWE
Customer A Film investment and distribution N/A
BEFPA B REBERET AE M 4,000
Customer B Film investment and distribution
®FB BERRE RET 2,800 3,000
Customer C Film investment and distribution N/A
®PC BRRE REIT AER 2,600
Customer D Film investment and distribution N/A
®PD BEERE NEIT AER 2,300
Customer E Film investment and distribution N/A
EFE BERNERET 6,424 TER
Customer F Trading N/A
EFF BEE 4,400 TNER

Revenue from each of the Customer A, Customer C and
Customer D for the year ended 31 March 2024 did not contribute
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the year.

Revenue from each of the Customer E and Customer F for the
prior year ended 31 March 2023 did not contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group for that year.

B2

BE_Z_NE=A=1+—HILFE"
KEABEPA BEECKEFEDH I Y
AEEBAFEAKRZHNERETEBIBE
10% ©

=f=ZA=1+—BLB#%E
FE KEFEPERTPFH Y EE A
SEZFERARDNERETEE
10%



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. gmA#(E)
Information about major customers (Continued) FRAEXEERZEHN (E) )
Revenue from individual customers in respect of the @§:3:5¢EHE+_E¢@E
discontinued operations for the prior year ended 31 March FE - RASEZFEERIEGEX
2023 contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group 75 18 Wz B BL10% A LB AR E AR
from the discontinued operations for that year is as follows: RBBEAER WM T

2024 2023
—B-lE —E_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Revenue generated from
EXBTIRIEZWZE
Customer | Manufacturing and trading
EFI REREER - 5,600
Customer || Manufacturing and trading
ZRI HEREERE - 3,200
Customer |lI Manufacturing and trading
ZRI HEREE - 3,000
Customer IV Manufacturing and trading
BFEIV BEREER - 1,600

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WrmREMUA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, HQ%TE?D%@%%{%&%%%?M&%
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, gross H:’,/;EﬁZ\%é%;ﬁé{ﬁ~%@%ﬂ$M&]\&%
rental income and agency and commission income from film FEORERABRKA-

distribution.
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

(Continued)

6. WamREMUN (45)
AEBE R BREMBAZSHOT :

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as

follows:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REEEEH EREEEER
2024 2023 2024 2023
“RCmE  —F--fF ZRCHNE  —FT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT TET
Revenue: 28 :
Sale of goods - at point in time ~~ HEER-RE—HE 12,907 7773 - 16,404
Film distribution service income - EF TR WA~
over time I B i 3,260 12,598 - =
Revenue from contracts with RERPEH K
customers 16,167 20,371 - 16,404
Net investment income from REARREES RER
co-investment of films with BERLREWANFE-
copyrights - at point in time RE— R 6,424 = - =
Rental income from lease of MEREM%EZ
investment properties HelA 1,398 1,333 - 343
Total revenue recognised BRER AW 23,989 21,704 - 16,747
Other income and gains: H AU Rl as -
Accounting service fee eHREE 1,740 900 - 875
Bank interest income HRATH BIA 15 = - 9%
Bad debt recovery e e - 350 - =
Gain on change in fair value of RO EGFABEZ
financial assets at fair value EREEZAR
through profit or loss e
- investments in convertible —ARREFRE
bond (note 23) (PH3E23) - 846 - =
- equity investments at fair —RRRBEFABEZ
value through profit or loss RAERE (Hi23)
(note 23) 829 - - -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAR 2 K&
(note 34) (HE34) 10,144 - - -
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment Bl - 39 - -
Impairment loss on investment tAE Y- YN
in and loan to a joint venture RERERT—ME
reversed BRELNAIZAEER 364 = - =
Rental income from lease of HEREZHERA
machineries - = - 1,622
Government grants TR 46 B - 260 - 23
Impairment loss on trade BEEKETRERE
receivables reversed - 536 - -
Sales of scrap materials HEREH 24 - - 723
Others Hith 222 57 - 273
13,338 2,988 - 3,612
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2024

—E-mE=A=+—8

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. HiWEERMX
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HRATERY ERILEEEY
2024 2023 2024 2023
—¥-mE  -T-=F  ZB-mE  —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET TET FERT TEL

Impairment loss on prepayments, BB & & R EMEK
deposits and other receivables STIRRERE (HF22)

(note 22) 30,033 16,142 - -
Impairment loss on investment in -~ RIS & AR 2% &
associates (note 17) mﬁréﬁa (MEE17) 5,111 9,648 - -
Impairment loss on investmentin -~ R—FAE AR ZHER
and loan to a joint venture EXT-HaERAL
(note 18) WIEFSE (fiF8) - 351 - =
Impairment loss on trade ERERZAEER
receivables (note 21) (HzE21) 165 - - -
Loss on change in fair value RENELAEES L
of investment properties (note 16) 18 (Fi7E16) 9,590 683 - =
Loss on change in fair value of BRAREFABHZ
financial assets at fair value %zﬂﬁ?z/&fﬂ
through profit or loss 2HEHR
— investments in convertible —RREFRE
bond (note 23) (Ffizx23) 1,496 - - -
- equity investments at fairvalue ~ — R AR EFFABRZ
through profit or loss (note 23) BRI E (B3E23) - 2,268 - =
Others Hity - 37 - =
46,395 29,129 - -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBEEH
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RECEEE ERIEEEER
2024 2023 2024 2023
—¥-mE —T-=F CZ¥-ME —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET FET FTAEL
Interest on borrowings BEFS 599 452 - =
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE - = - 522
599 452 - 52
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BRBLAIESIR
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBABERNE (5T A)
(crediting): THZIE&ER
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HEBEEEH ERLEEEY
2024 2023 2024 2023
“EC-WNE —Z-=F ZEZWNE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TERT THET
Cost of inventories sold (note a) BEEFERA (Fia) 12,575 5493 - 16,627
Depreciation of property, plant mE BERRETE

and equipment 389 758 - 501
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FABEENE - - - 1,215
Auditor's remuneration: RERIB & :

Audit service BB 1,126 993 - 200
Short-term leases expenses RHRERY 1,617 1,084 - 1,459
Employee benefit expenses EERFRAX

(including directors’ remuneration):  (BEEZME) :

Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T& 5 & R E {1 1&F 12,652 8,136 - 6,872

Pension scheme contributions RIASEBIHT

(note b) (Hi3Eb) 458 243 - 435
Total employee benefit expenses EERMAXEHE 13,110 8,379 - 7,307
Impairment loss/(reversal of FEREER/
impairment loss) of inventories (REEERER) - 63 - (76)
Notes: B &
(a) Included in “cost of sales and services” on the face of the (a) TAZEBEERP 2 [HERRBKA] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited (b) RBEHR AEEIECRBRAKSE
pension scheme contributions available to reduce its contributions to BIE AT BURUR REF E 2 RN 5T 84t
the pension schemes in future years (2023: Nil). R(ZBZ=F:8])

162 Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FeEMEBRRME

31 March 2024

—ZE-FE=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

4 oot
#
o
il
N
=
k>

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration REETHAEME

2024 2023

—E|E-NE —TE-=%

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Fees e 326 360
Other emoluments: H A2

Basic salaries and bonuses HEAFH & R4 360 802

Pension scheme contributions RIS B K 18 18

378 820

Total HBEt 704 1,180

a. Independent non-executive directors a. BYUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRAMBIRATEEFIN 2
for the year were as follows: S|

2024 2023

—EC-ME T =4

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&ET FET

Man Wai Lun’ pet 103 120

Cheng Chun Man? B % FR2 103 120

Hui Man Ho, Ivan' B 103 120

Chan Chi Wai? PR (23 17 -

326 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year (2023:

Nil).

1

Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan resigned as
independent non-executive directors with effect from 9
February 2024.

Mr. Cheng Chun Man resigned as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 8 February 2024.

Mr. Chan Chi Wai was appointed as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 9 February 2024.

FAMBRMNBIIFATESTZ

Hihle (ZT_=F:F) -

| OXEBAERFXEEEA-T
—mE = A AR EEHEBTERT

E

2 HIRREEB T -_ME=-ANAR

EEEBIIFRNTES-

2 REBEEE-_T-_MFE_ANB

EERERABUIFNTES-
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. =
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ =3
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration =

(Continued)

b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b.

the chief executive

Basic salaries
and bonuses

REETHAEME (&)
BITES FITESEREE

THAE
Pension
scheme

contributions

Total
remuneration

EXHE BAE
RIEAL sHEI R il & 48 %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER FHERT
2024 ot o 1 -3
Executive director: HITES:
Chung Yuk Lun EB B 360 18 378
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total
and bonuses contributions remuneration
EAXF& BiRE
MAEAT AT B3R B & 258
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
2023 —B-=%
Executive directors: HITESE:
Chung Yuk Lun z =] 360 18 378
Wong Chong Fai' HEE 221 - 221
Yu Baodong? TER? 221 - 221
802 18 820

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2024

—E-_NF=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - FETBHAEBRASZ
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EEmESZME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFETBHAENME (&)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. BITES IHITEERFE
the chief executive (Continued) THAE (&)
1. Mr. Wong Chong Fai resigned as an executive director with 1. HABEEB T -_F+At+—
effect from 11 October 2022. ARETHITES -
2. Mr. Yu Baodong resigned as the chairman and executive 2. FEREEA T -_—_F+A+—
director with effect from 11 October 2022. AREEEERIITES-
Five highest paid employees’ emoluments AZmEFEEZHME

The five highest paid individuals for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 do not include any
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration of the
five (2023: five) non-director, highest paid individuals for the

BE-FT-_HNE=A=t—HBk=%
=A==t HLFE AEK
BHALHRTBEARREMES-
TR AR (ZE-=F -A%)FE

EEREFALTZMEFROT:

year are set out below:

2024 2023

—EFE-EFE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Basic salaries and bonuses HAFH & RIEAa 4,034 3,823
Housing benefits EEEF 1,596 1,596
Pension scheme contributions RIRE FHEIE R 80 91
5,710 5,510
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
(Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeENFTINBEZHFEETTSHA
TZAEWT:

Number of non-director,
highest paid individuals

EEREHFALTAY
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 7T £ 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% JT £ 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
5 5

One of the non-director, highest paid individuals occupied
one of the Group's properties rent free during the year. The
estimated value of the accommodation provided to him is
HK$252,000 (2023: HK$252,000), which has been included in
the amounts detailed above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for the Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group does not generate any assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong profits tax for both of the years
presented. No provision for income tax elsewhere has
been made as the Group has no profits assessable in other
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

11.

RAFE HEF—ZFESEEIFA
TRHEEERAEEET —HBEDE-
MR HF R 2 B 5 EE A252,000%
T (ZF = =4 :252,000/%& 7T) - 25t
ALXFRESENR-

Fr i ¥ 2
HRASERMEZNFEYEBEL
EFEBMBTAENEH Z BRBEH -
B R RBAEMNEHEF - XA
SERAEEEEXBAERMADE
BRI ER G A BRI RFHEE
it FT ST B -
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FeEMEBRRME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense can be reconciled to the loss

1. FiEHAX (8)

PGB Al iR A BaER 2 KRB AT

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss BIEYERNT
as follows:

Hong Kong The PRC Total
& hE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET

2024 —E-UE
Loss before tax B T Al B3 18 (56,971) (2,388) (59,359)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEMEFEZ KA (9,400) (597) (9,997)
Expenses not deductible for tax RNEHIR 2 B X 6,274 - 6,274
Income not subjected to tax BRRBA (1,673) - (1,673)
Loss attributable to a joint venture ~—fE& & A RIEGEE 32 - 32
Loss attributable to associates RN Ry =] 1,077 - 1,077
Tax losses not recognised ANERHIEEE 3,675 597 4,272
Temporary difference not recognised KRR & s =58 15 - 15
Income tax expense FR5 Tt 5 2 - - -

2023 —¥-=

Loss before tax BR A% BB 1R (35,170) (10,498) (45,668)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTE 2 HIE (5,276) (2,624) (7,900)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X 4,800 = 4,800
Income not subjected to tax HARR U A (275) = (275)
Loss attributable to a joint venture ~—fE& & A RIEGEE 39 = (39)
Loss attributable to associates Bt N RIEGEE 165 - 165
Tax losses not recognised RERRIEEE 625 2,624 3,249
Income tax expense FTS B = = -

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii

167



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
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168

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the prior year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
entered into a sale agreement on 28 September 2022
with Mr. Hui Leung Wah, a director of a subsidiary of the
Group, to dispose of a subsidiary, Gold Strong. Gold Strong
and its subsidiaries carried out the Group's operations of
manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses
and property investment. The disposal was effected in order
to give the Group better financial performance by cessation
of cost inefficient business. The disposal was completed
on 24 October 2022, the date on which the control of Gold
Strong and its subsidiaries was passed to the acquirer and
the Group discontinued the operations of manufacturing
and trading of optical frames and sunglasses and part of
property investment previously undertaken by Gold Strong
and its subsidiaries.

The loss from discontinued operations is analysed as
follows:

12. BRILIEE X

HE_ZTZ-_=F=-ZA=+—HLA
TFEE AEER-_ZT=__F AN A
“tN\BEAESE—FHHBARES
FRELAETY —HHERE HE
—HWB AR & ME & F E & HH
BRARNEALEEMNRERRALR
RAUENEEEBRYERE LA
& Th AR IR A AN R A E TS A Bk
EAEBYPBEREMET - ZBELE
R-ZE-_—_F+A-+HWHEZK B
ZH R ERENB A R A IZE G
T U REERIEEE LA
MeEfERENBARETHRESR
ERGREZEREBEHLRBOY
EKE

ERIEEEXBELEZEBEBEINWT

2024 2023
—EFE-E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss of discontinued operations 7N [E B2 4% |E48 & X7
for the year (analysed below) ZEE (D) - (16,248)
Gain of disposal of Gold Strong &S FEz ke - 7,406
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBELEZ
discontinued operations REEEE - (8,842)
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31 March 2024

—E-_NF=A=+—H

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. BRIEEEER (E)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period ERIEREEBNRE T __FMHA
from 1 April 2022 to 24 October 2022 are analysed as below: —ARE-_TE-__F+A=+WMAIL
HMZ EE DT :

Period from
1 April 2022 to
24 October 2022

B=-®F=-—%

MMA—BEE

+A=+mA

IEEAME

Notes HK$'000

B 5 Fi#ExT

Revenue Wz 6 16,747
Cost of sales SHE A (18,118)
Gross loss Fi8 (1,371)
Other income and gains HAtp Yo A R 2 6 3,612
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HHX (290)
Administrative expenses TTHER X (17,677)
Finance costs 5 ER 8 (522)
Loss before tax bR T4 BT E5 18 9 (16,248)
Income tax expense PR 5 2 1 -
Loss for the period HRN &S (16,248)
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. BixE1E
AAFEEABESREREEHE
AT B E

Continuing and

discontinued operations Continuing operations
FECERCRIEEEET FHEEEES
2024 2023 2024 2023
—BomME —To=-F Z¥INE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FHER FET
Loss for the purpose of AR EESRER
basic loss per share BENEE
Loss for the year ZN/NEIEZ Z SN
attributable to owners ElIEAFEER
of the Company (59,359) (77,389) (59,359) (36,826)
2024 2023 2024 2023
“BIlME —To-F Z¥I@NE —T-_=
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tz F A% TR F A&
Number of shares for FAREEREX
the purpose of basic BHEERSESE
loss per share
Weighted average EEITERER
number of ordinary DN 5 8
shares in issue 872,864 872,864 872,864 872,864

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company's share options granted
because the exercise prices of those share options granted
were higher than the average market prices for shares of the
Company for each of the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group had
no other potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 or as at those dates.

Rt EsRBEEFERTBRERITE
ARFREREZERE RFEAER
ZEBREZOTDFEESREBEEE
“HF=ZA=+—HERZZE-_=F=
AR=T—HLEFEZEFARAKH Z
EHHE -

HREZE_ZE_NFR_T_=F=
A=+ HLEFESIRZEBHEAE
EIEEMBBETBELT B W
EmE2VEGREEEE-
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31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. % B ERR &

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
building  improvement  machinery equipment vehicles Total
{5 KB
HEME BER RBAE
THRETF K Ha B RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEL TER
At 1 April 2023 RZB-=£MAB-H
Cost KA 9,127 3,881 8,987 7,774 3,683 33,452
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERBE (4,848) (3,565) (8,978) (7,685) (3,324) (28,400)
Carrying amount EEE 4,279 316 9 89 359 5,052
Carrying amount at 1 April 2023 R-F-ZEMA-AHKEE 4,219 316 9 89 359 5,052
Additions, at cost RE (BRAK) - - - - 386 386
Depreciation provided for the year ERNfELTERE - (59) (31) (70) (229) (389)
Disposals during the year FRHE - - - (112) - (112)
Exchange realignment 5% - (134) 50 151 (17) 50
Carrying amount at 31 March 2024 RZB-ME=A=+-8H
REE 4,279 123 28 58 499 4,987
At 31 March 2024 R-B-MmE=R=+-H
Cost KA 9,127 3,820 8,034 7412 3,589 31,982
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERNE (4,848) (3,697) (8,006) (7,354) (3,090 (26,995)
Carrying amount RHE 4,279 123 28 58 499 4,987
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% W ERRE (F)
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
building ~improvement  machinery equipment vehicles Total
Rl %E
BENE BER RH#AE
THREF % B #E HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TAL TAL TET TER
At 1 April 2022 R=%-=&mA-H
Cost A 52,886 16,093 17,108 8,560 5373 100,020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERBE (23,794) (13431) (17,105) (7,954) (4,748) (67,034)
Carrying amount REfE 29,090 2,662 3 606 625 32,986
Carrying amount at 1 April 2022 R-F-—£MA-BHKEE 29,090 2662 3 606 625 32986
Additions, at cost RE (BRAK) = = 8 = 476 484
Depreciation provided for the year ERELHERR (469) (388) (1) (250) (151) (1,259)
Disposals during the year FRHE - ) - - = 3
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR (22,150) (1,780) = (109) (567) (24,608)
Exchange realignment 5 (2,192 (175) (1) (158) (24) (2,550)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 R-¥-Z£ZR=+-8H
REE 4,219 316 9 8 359 5052
At 31 March 2023 R-§-Z£ZRA=+-8
Cost A 9,121 3,881 8,987 7,774 3,683 33,452
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERRE (4,848) (3,565) (8,978) (7,689) (3,324) (28,400)
Carrying amount REf 4219 316 9 89 359 5,052
No impairment loss on the Group's land and buildings and MESEZ T _NFER_T=_=F
leasehold land was recognised in respect of the years ended —A=T—BLFERRALEE LTI
31 March 2024 and 2023. REFUARBE L2 HERIE-
The land use rights of certain buildings included in land and AL REFZETEFZ LHE
buildings are separately presented in “Right-of-use assets”. AEEBZINEREEE] -
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FeEMEBRRME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FRHEESE

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HETH HEYME st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET
(note a) (note b)
(fHEa) (Fd3Eb)
As at 31 March 2024 R-E-WE
=A=+—H
Carrying amount AREE - - =
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=%
=A=+—H
Carrying amount AREE - - =
For the year ended BE_FT-mE
31 March 2024 ZA=t+-HLEE
Depreciation charge nEEHA - - -
Carrying amount eliminated & — eI Bf B8 2 ) B 0 8
on disposal of a subsidiary ZEREE = = =
Exchange realignment [ 7 7% - - _
For the year ended BE-®-=
31 March 2023 ZA=t+-HILEE
Depreciation charge TEEH (682) (533) (1,215)
Carrying amount eliminated on & — B A 7R
disposal of a subsidiary i REE (16,310) = (16,310)
Exchange realignment ER L (1,777) = (1,777)
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ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

15. EFHESE (8)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-F-_NF BE_T_=%F

=A=+—H = A =]

ILEE HFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Expenses relating to short-term leases CHAEEBERAY - 2,543

Total cash outflow for leases HERemLEARE - 1,850

Notes: B 5

(a) During the prior year ended 31 March 2023, the Group owned various (a) RBEE_ZT-_=F=A=+—HIBEF

industrial buildings in the PRC where its manufacturing facilities were
primarily located. The Group was the registered owner of the relevant
property interests, including the land in DaHou Village, XieGang Town
of DongGuan, with the lease term of 50 years, and the land in Yin
Hu industrial area, XieGang Town of DongGuan, which had 50 years
fixed lease term with monthly payments by the Group. For the land
in DaHou Village, the consideration for land acquisition in lump sum
payments were fully made by the Group. The relevant right-of-use
assets were derecognised during the prior year ended 31 March 2023
upon disposal of subsidiaries.

(b) During the prior year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's leased
residential property for accommodation provided to management
staff. Lease contract was entered into for fixed term of two years.
Lease terms were negotiated on an individual basis and contained a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The relevant lease of
property were derecognised during the prior year ended 31 March
2023 upon disposal of subsidiaries.

Management considered the lease of assets were used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group's operations.

The Group assessed at lease commencement date whether
it was reasonably certain to exercise the extension options
or not to exercise the termination options. There was no
potential exposures to these future lease payments for (i)
extension options in which the Group was not reasonably
certain to exercise; and (ii) termination options in which the
Group was not reasonably certain not to exercise.

There was no lease liabilities in relation to right-of-use assets
recognised during each of the years ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023.

ERINE S IE’\EPI%ﬁyﬁlﬁjwi H
HERBEBURTE AEERBEEY
¥R (BEEAMR0FAZLRNREHN
MIEAEN M — i R AS0F EER
HERAEERRANBEZUNREH EHE
RATEEN L) WBLHEEA
MAURARKERB LS ThRERE
EHAEE - RUEMNB - HAERAEEE
RBE-_Z_=F=ZA=+—HLBAEF
JE B0 BT S X B B AR LR HERR

b) REEZZT-=F=A=+—HILBEF
B-AEERMERASREEAMEE
—REEVE-BEANRETMFEFH
RIS - MHEGRIRERN L ERER LA
EEETANGERE G -HENEEE
RBE-_ZT_=F=ZA=+—HLBAEF
JE B BT S X B A AR LR

EEERAHMEEERANKRERAK
SEZEMAEE T ENEERLE
BAERS-

AEBRHEERKARTEELT AR
BEMTEEREFRERTITERL LR
BRE-ZFRREENTROANEE
WIREEETENTERBERE: K
AEBEWIFEEHTE TITENK LR
BREms MEELRR-

RBE-_FT_MF=_A=T-—HK=
T_—HF-A=T—-BHLEEEFE" $E5Eﬁ
BREAEEEMBZEERE
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FeEMEBRRME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

15.

16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (/8)
In addition, the Group reassessed whether it was reasonably It O - AN R [ A B AR ] | R AR
certain to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a il E’Jiﬁ%@iﬁ?ﬂ MEEREF
termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant T RS A EREETHREREE
event or a significant change in circumstances that was within B AITRE ié(”: T%Tzﬁ RBE_ZT
the control of the lessee. During the years ended 31 March THERZBEZ=F=A=+—RH1
2024 and 2023, there was no such triggering event. FE - HMELREEMBEEF-
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Fair value at beginning of the year ﬁAi?ﬂZ@fE@ 50,848 59,330
Loss on change in fair value EHERAAEER
recognised &5 18 (9,590) (683)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M E AT - (7,272)
Reclassified to assets classified ENDBRESIER
as held for sale (note 30) FELE®
AE (FIFE30) (9,100) —
Exchange realignment P A (37) (527)
Fair value at end of the year RERZRARE 32,121 50,848
At 31 March 2024, the Group's investment properties RZE-_NMF=A=+—H Kx&H

consist of two industrial properties in Hong Kong (2023:
two properties), including a property reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale (2023: Nil), one (2023: one)
residential property in Hong Kong, and one (2023: one)
commercial property in the PRC. The directors of the
Company determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of assets, i.e. industrial, commercial and
residential, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property. The Group’s investment properties (excluding
that reclassified to assets classified as held for sale) were
revalued on 31 March 2024 based on valuations amounted to
approximately HK$32,121,000 as valued by Roma Appraisals
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers (2023:
approximately HK$50,848,000 as valued by Roma Appraisal
Limited and AP Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers).

Each year, the Group’s management decides, after approval
from the audit committee, to appoint external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group's management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.

MEEMELIEREENMETLTEY
¥(ZZE-=F MEDE) (82—
BHEFHPEESEABEHENEE
MYE(ZTE_ZF:8)) RES
M—EB(ZE-_ZF:—B)EFEDE
AERFBEH—E (ZE=F:—18)
EEDE-RBESEMENEDG  HFE
B ARREERAREVES
FZREE T BEREE-R
BBYBELERGHEMESBHEKT
HERARETNHE AEEKRE
ME(TBEEFTPEEDEAEE
HENEEMNYE IR _ZT_NF=
A=+—BE#HHEA%32,121,000
BLT(ZE-_=ZF HBIUEEXLE
BEEMESBEBITIHEERAAR
AP Appraisal Limited#1TH {5 B &4
50,848,000 7T, ) °

AEBEEEEFRRSERZZES
HERREZEINEEEAAREAR
SEMENIIBEE- REBGHERE
MENE 2 BUFDERRGER
EXBE-AKEEEESFR AR
FR SR EE T A ER B E G
ERZEEEGRETT® -
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on pages 231 and 232 of the Company's 2023/2024 annual
report.

Fair value hierarchy

All the Group's investment properties were classified under
Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

16. IREME (&)

REYERBKEHENEATE=H
E—THEFBIRNGETEREN
5E37 ©

AEBRANEZ HBRRARA=
T_= /T _NEFHE231R232

ASLEER
MAREBERENEDBER R B
BERPIM -

FRN TEINAEFERFIRESF?
W R ERARBEREIR (=
To=FE)

PEEANRBEEREIR AN ER
A% -

Commercial Industrial  Residential
property  properties property Total
HENE TEUE EEYE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABL FAL AT FAT
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 RZZE_—5=A=t—H
HEREE 2,084 24,646 32,600 59,330
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value REZERAZAAEZE
recognised in profit or loss (B8) Mz (103) 1,020 (1,600) (683)
Disposal of investment property upon N EPNGIES:
disposal of subsidiaries LERENE - (7,272) - (7,272
Exchange realignment IE A% (153) (374) = (527)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 RZZE-_=f5=A=t—H
FEEEE 1,828 18,020 31,000 50,848
Carrying amount at 1 April 2023 RZZE-=FMA—H
FEREE 1,828 18,020 31,000 50,848
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value REREAZ AL EESHY
recognised in profit or loss (B8 /hE (670) 80 (9,000) (9,590)
Reclassified to assets classified as held ENNBEENBAREE
for sale HEMEE - (9,100) - (9,100)
Exchange realignment fE 5 % (37) - - (37)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2024 RZZE_ME=A=T—H
MEREE 1,121 9,000 22,000 32,121
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31 March 2024

—E-MFE=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation

16. IREYE (&
ARERBE (&)
BEMEGEE SEHAKEEEM

of investment properties: Ik
Significant Weighted average price per
Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs square foot/square metre
BEHFR FHK
fHEKRT EEFTHRGABE IHEF I EE
2024 2023

—T-ME —T=F

Commercial properties Market comparison Price per square metre HK$28,265 HK$46,088

in the PRC approach
FEBERDR M5 L BOA TP K ER 28,265#TT 46,0888 7T
Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$5,166 HK$5,210
Hong Kong approach
BEIRME ML EOR FFHRER 5,166/ T 5210 7T
Residential property in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$8,009 HK$11,285
Hong Kong approach
BEBEEME M5 L EOR FF 7 REHR 8,009#T  11,28587T

REMSLEE ZRENETIRTH
HEEMBE BRAFVETIURIR

Under market comparison approach, the properties are
valued on the market basis assuming sales in their existing

state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets. Comparison is based on prices realised in actual
transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.
Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time,
location, floor level and other relevant factors.

In estimating fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per square foot and
price per square metre would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

EWE TS EEMTIRTG2TE
HEHE B LR NEREER S
R BRRAA LRy L EM-
2 OREEVEZER BH I
% BESERAMENREZZR
Y A -

REFAVRZAAERE URZES
rkeEREAEBRAE-

BFEIREBEEF T KERBER
m/ R AIEBBRENEZ AR
BEREEM ORD) -
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

17. REFEQAT Z2RE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Unlisted associate JE Bt E AT
Cost of investment &8 AR 110,000 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEAE W 18 05 B 2
other comprehensive income HEih2mEUA 20,617 27,506
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (113,617) (108,506)
17,000 29,000
Movements during the year are as follows: REFBEMT :
2024 2023
—E-NE TE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&ET FHET
At beginning of the year RE A 29,000 41,000
Share of post-acquisition reserves FE(G W BB 12 (1
— Loss for the year —FRNEE (6,530) (997)
— Other comprehensive expense —HEmEmEEY (359) (1,355)
Impairment loss recognised REEZEDHERRE
for the year (note 7) B8 (M 7E7) (5,111) (9,648)
At end of the year RER 17,000 29,000
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31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

17.

The unlisted investment represents the Group's 25% (2023:
25%) equity interest in Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko
Culture”).

REBEATZR/E (18)
LT RA RS EENE S EER
AR ([RMEX])#125% (T~ =

£ 1 25% ) B R IE - -

Particulars of the associates of the Group (comprising Filmko AEEBEAR (BEESXERHE
Culture and its subsidiaries) are as follows: MEAR)MEFBNT :
Proportion
Principal  Issued ordinary/  equity interest
Place of place of registered  attributable to
Name incorporation business paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
TEER THiEk/ FREREY
£ &t i A 3L e B 2 ERfAERE IRIELLH TERE
Filmko Culture British Virgin Islands PRC Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
("BVI") US$10,000 production in Hong
Kong and Mainland
China
43¢ RBRIHEE i P EERTPEAMNES
([(REBELES]) 10,000% 7T BT RRME
Filmko Entertainment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
Limited* HK$10,000 production and
artiste product
ERREFRRA BB BE gl BYBITREENES
10,0007 7T 81E
Nanjing Xinhao Film PRC PRC Registered 25%  Investment holding
Culture Development RMB23,000,000
Co., Limited*
MRERTAXLERA i i EEMARE RAER
R A 23,000,0007T
Jiangsu Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Film Distribution Co. RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Limited*
IHZARREZETA HE e ERMARS BRETRRERSE
R A 10,000,0007T
Khorgors Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Films Distribution RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Co. Limited*
ERROZAEMEYE i i EEMARE BRI RAE RS
TERRF* 10,000,0007T
& These entities are wholly-owned by Filmko Culture. t ZEERHEE L2 EHEE -

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii

179



180

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRME

31 March 2024

—E-_mME=RA=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(if)

The above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Management of the Group conducted a review of the recoverable
amount of the investment in the associate, Filmko Culture and its
subsidiaries. The recoverable amount of the investment in associates
have been determined, by reference to a valuation performed by an
external valuer, Ravin Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, on the basis
of fair value less cost of disposal.

In determining the fair value of the investments in associates, market
approach was adopted by the valuer as it is considered to be the
most appropriate valuation approach in this valuation.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the valuation is under the market
approach with the guideline public company method adopted.
Significant inputs for the valuation included adopted market
capitalization, net book value (P/B ratio) and discount of lack of
marketability.

A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted net book value would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable amount
of the investment in associates. A significant increase/(decrease) in
adopted P/B ratio would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in
the recoverable amount of the investment in associates. A significant
increase/(decrease) in discount of lack of marketability ratio would
result in a significant (decrease)/increase in the recoverable amount
of the investment in associates.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the valuation is under the market
approach with the guideline public company method adopted.
Significant inputs for the valuation included adopted earnings before
interest and tax ("EBIT"), adopted enterprise value ("EV")-to-EBIT
ratio and discount of lack of marketability.

A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted EBIT would result in
a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable amount of the
investment in associates. A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted
EV-to-EBIT ratio would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in
the recoverable amount of the investment in associates. A significant
increase/(decrease) in discount of lack of marketability ratio would
result in a significant (decrease)/increase in the recoverable amount
of the investment in the associate.

Coupled with the management expectation of continuous decline
in the overall film industry performance, the directors consider it
appropriate to recognise, based on the valuation of the associate,
impairment loss for the year against the investment amounted to
HK$5,111,000 (2023: HK$9,648,000), which was included in other
operating expenses (note 7).

17. REtBATIZI_RE (&)

UES

(i)

(if)
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BMERAARR -

AEEEREBHRBERAREE R
HffB AR 2RENATKD S BEETE
H-RBeRrAzRENATREEREED
2 Z N B RRavin Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited{TH A ERE LR E
R E R A EE -

REERBERRZRENAAE  ZE
EMEBTHEE BRERREXRE
REZITERRABEMMGEN A

BHE_Z-_WNE=ZA=+—HILLEFEE %
HEKATSE TS LT ARE %
HENERGAZBEERAOTE K
EFE(MFR) RIRZ B RE LR -

KANEEFENBEMN CRd)iEE
BREBE AR ZIRE M KB £ 58 AR
m/oCRAL) - RAMMIFR KNG M
(D) BEHRBE AR ZREN T
Bl &EBABBEN CRD) - BRZWIH R
BUERBR LR KB, OB D) 5B
REE QAR ZREMAIKE 2 BARE (R
D) e

HE-_Z-_=F=-A=+—HLEFE %
HERAMSETHES LM ARE %
HENEXGAREBERANSRAR
FMTERAAF])  HKANGEEE (B
¥EEDHERABFNZLRRRZ™
SR MRLE -

RAMBHA RN KEE M O D)
BEYRBERRIRENATRE S EKNIE
#gm,/ CRd) RANCEEEY AR
A& R 2 b = RIEE I,/ Opl ) 1% 8 5
B E DR ZIRE K AR @ & 5K R
m/CRD) - RZWIEmE) B3R b %
Rigsgm/ Chd) BEERBERE 2
REMAE S EAE CRd) /e
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WIBH EEZRARBEZHEDANGEE
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. RBEEATZI/E (8)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated TRES ZEE AT REKE QB
financial information in respect of the associate and its BEVBEMBEEGSMBRERAN
subsidiaries, reconciled to the carrying amount in the SRR EE A BR

consolidated financial statements:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-ET-_WE #HE-T=-_=F

=A=+-H =A=+-~8
ILEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue Yo & 40,207 11,331
Loss before tax 75 B B 1B (26,121) (3,990)
Income tax expense FTigBiR X - =
Loss for the year FREE (26,121) (3,990)
Other comprehensive expense Ht2mEAR (1,435) (5,424)
Total comprehensive expense RS A% (27,556) (9,414)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—FomE S
=A=+-8 =A=+-*8
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Non-current assets IEREBEE 48,331 48,398
Current assets MEEE 56,569 94,719
Current liabilities REAE (65,730) (76,391)
Net assets BEFE 39,170 66,726
Reconciliation of the above summarised il B 7% & #H i 2 2
financial information to the carrying REBRBERA]Z
amount of the Group's investment KREHNREESER:
in the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBE 2 HEARELD 25% 25%
Group's share of net asset of REEELBEE QA
the associates excluding goodwill BERE TEEEE 9,793 16,682
Goodwill on acquisition g 120,824 120,824
Impairment loss on investment EERNEE N AIRE
in associates recognised ZREE 8 (113,617) (108,506)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZRHEE 17,000 29,000
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—EEE AT ZH/E
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 972 1,177
Loan to a joint venture m—EAELAFER 2,637 2,795
3,609 3,972
Provision for impairment (3,609) (3,972)
Movement during the year are as follows: FREFHOT
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
At beginning of the year REFE ) - =
Share of post-acquisition reserves JE A U5 i 12 17 s
— (Loss)/profit for the year —FR (E8)af (195) 236
— Other comprehensive income —HEma2mlkA (11) 69
(Repayment from)/advance to AENAIZ (BHFH) BH
joint venture (158) 46
Impairment loss on investment in and ~ #[0] / (FER) REE QR
loan to joint venture reversed/ Z&ﬁ&%ﬁm%ﬁ =
(recognised) NaEZREEE 364 (351)
At end of the year RER - =
The loan to a joint venture of approximately HK$2,637,000 m—EAER X #2,637,0007% JT

(2023: approximately HK$2,795,000) is unsecured, interest-
free and is not repayable within one year from the end of the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors, the loan is
considered as part of the Group's net investment in the joint
venture.

—E =4 %ﬁ2,795,ooo/%7z)2%3ﬁ
EHE A ERTEREREHA—
FREE-BEERE E,‘W&"ﬁ?%$;ﬂ%
EREE N HEFE XD

/
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The directors had conducted impairment testing on the
Group's investment in a joint venture and considered that
the recoverable amount of the investment is insignificant
as a result of the expected operating losses of the joint
venture, accordingly, impairment loss was recognised in full
on the investment in the joint venture. For the current year,
a reversal of impairment previously recognised amounted
to approximately HK$364,000 was credited to consolidated
statement of profit or loss (note 6).

For the year ended 31 March 2023, impairment loss on the
investment amounted to approximately HK$351,000 was
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note
7).

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

i

18. R—EEEBEATIZIKRE (&)

EFENAKRER-—HAERRAZK
ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁAM“Tﬁ
HRLEBEERRENA RO EEDT
EK At ERLRAE R ZRED
SR MERE - NAFE - TR
Zﬂﬁ%@%%ﬁ%%mﬁk“AE
m& (MaEs)

BE_T-_=_f-A=+t—HLFE"
RE 2R EEEZ351,0008 TBAE
BRI (KMIEE7) -

AEBAERRZFBTET:

Percentage of

AL
Particulars Place of
of issued registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing Principal activities
P E#T R
28 Rt ¥ 18 B AREER REE FEihim® EEEH
Guangzhou Jiashimei Registered The PRC 20 20 Trading of optical
Optical Company capital of (2023: 20) (2023: 20) (2023:20)  frames
Limited (“Jiashimei") RMB1,000,000
BMERXABRE R AR A mE (Z%2-= To=F (ZF-=F BRER<E
BRRE ([ERX]) AEH :20) :20) :20)
1,000,0007T

The joint venture was registered as a Sino-foreign joint
venture under the PRC law and is held through a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

The joint venture has been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The joint venture adopts 31 December as its financial year
end date to comply with relevant regulations in the PRC. The
consolidated financial statements have been adjusted where
appropriate for the material transactions of the joint venture
between 1 January 2024 and 31 March 2024.

BERNRNBREPBEEZFMAEF I
BERECERBBAARBIZEZENW
BAREE-

]]
0|

BERARERERNLEES MB®
RN

BEARER+T-_A=1+—HBEASH
PRFEAEEBNETTREBER
1Jwé%%ﬁ%E#AM A=

—HFE—-—HA-BE_FE_NF=H
—+ BETZEARZELEEH

ﬁmko
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's joint venture:

18. R—REI&E AT

TRINTAREEERRZHBER

RE&E (15)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-_T-_NFE BE_ZT_=F
=A=+—Hd =A=+—H
W fE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue g 9,237 14,086
(Loss)/profit before tax BEE (EE), SEF (975) 1,183
Income tax expense FTISBiF - =
(Loss)/profit for the period HAN (E8) 5 (975) 1,183
Other comprehensive income HEip 2wk A (53) 345
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2EWA (FX) @58 (1,028) 1,528
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
—T-mE —EZ=F
=A=+-H =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Non current assets FEnBEE 16 6,947
Current assets mENE E 7,936 28
Current liabilities mEN B & (3,092) (1,088)
Net assets BEFE 4,860 5,887
Reconciliation of the above summarised LB EREE
financial information to the carrying HEAREEREERA
amount of the Group's investment ZIRBHRE(ESHER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 2 AR 20% 20%
Group's share of net asset of the REEEERZE QT
joint venture BEFE 972 1,177
Loan to a joint venture m—EAE AR ER 2,637 2,795
Impairment loss on investment ERRN—EaEAA
in a joint venture recognised KREZRIEEE (3,609) (3.972)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEREE - =
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31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

19. INVENTORIES 19. BE

2024 2023
—Fo@mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Inventories, at gross amount FE®RE 7,038 7,230
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (6,829) (7,168)
209 62

An analysis of inventories is as follows: FEASWWAT:
Raw materials R K - 62
Finished goods RIRK o 209 =
209 62

AEEGFEREREBIEBHNT

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of
inventories are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
At beginning of the year REA 7,168 13,547
Reversal for the year F N E - (13)
Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries R VNG LS S - (4,686)
Exchange realignment PE 7 8 B (339) (1,680)
At end of the year RER 6,829 7,168
20. FILMS COPYRIGHTS 20. ERRIE
31 March

=RA=+—H
2024 2023
—g-m# —e-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
At cost K AN 8,703 -
Accumulated amortisation RET#E (4,541) =
Carrying amount FRHEE 4,162 =
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

20. FILMS COPYRIGHTS (Continued) 20.

pul}

ERRIE (E)

31 March
=RA=+—H
2024 2023
—E-pmuE —ZE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#RT THET
Movements during the year are as follows: FREE M T :
At beginning of the year RE A - =
Additions, at cost NE (REA) 8,703 -
Amortised for the year and FREE MR A
recognised as cost of sales & AR (4,541) -
At end of the year RER 4,162 -

The net carrying amount at 31 March 2024 will be amortised
over the remaining useful lives of approximately 12 months
(2023: Nil).

Impairment testing of films copyrights

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no impairment was
recognised by the Group. The impairment assessment for
film copyrights was made by project-by-project basis. The
recoverable amounts of the film copyrights have been
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, which
is determined by using discounted cash flow valuation
technique, based on expected revenue and estimated costs
of each film and the discount rate of 12.12% per annum.

The discount rate applied in estimation of fair value less costs
of disposal is as follows:

R-FB_ME=ZA=+—BOEREF
BERIZ A28 B #9 &R T A] £ 73 6 B
H(ZEZ_=F %)

R R HE R (E A

BE_T_NMF=-A=+t—HLFE"
ZRER B WD R E » R AR RUE RT

mREEEE EEET B MRE
KA E £ 5B Th IR A B R B R
MET MHERATEABMIRRS
MEMERN ZSHEFHEHK
a RAHET A AR LA M BE IR R F F12.12%
MmETE o

DA B RO £ 5P E
BERWT:

#) Bh

As at 31 March

WR=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-OEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Discount rate* Ah R &~ 12.12% N/A 5@ A
@ During the year, there is no significant change on each of the e FAMBEFHERKAAEPHZIER

parameters, such as 10-year risk-free rate, beta coefficient, equity
risk premium, company risk factors and cost of debt in the WACC
calculation, resulting to a rounded WACC at 12.12%. The Group's own
business risk maintains at a rather stable level from the qualitative
perspective.

H(oFHIERB AR B R &
HEBHE DA RBREXRREBEBEAN)
MEBEZEE WEBMETFHELRKAE
B1212% HEHAER AEEE SN
KERBRERFEEERENKT-

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2024

—E-MFE=A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEWBR X
2024 2023
ol 111 - —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables, gross amount JE UL BR TR 48 58 5,754 7,923
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (1,672) (1,507)
4,082 6,416

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranging
from 45 to 120 days (2023: 45 to 120 days). Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
impairment loss recognised, is as follows:

AEEHRERFZRXSIERTIEEL
BRER A REIT WHBEP —ARARA
BRI EEH— KN F4521208
ZE-=F:4551208) - BREF
EEAEELR -ASESRGEFY
HAEERRFBEBZEREHNRE
BREFERR GHEHeHaRE
BEETHR ERLtlakAEEH
PRERKRERESZZATEEFER W
WA FEEAEFTFEERR -A&E
I E IR R A TR
& B E A {5 P 3 AR o FE WK BR FRE R AT

B o
TN

NEREHRZBEZAHZ2 2 ER
BRA (B EERREREE) ZERED
HranT

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Within 90 days 90H A 3,128 5,554
91 to 180 days 91£180H 86 -
181 to 360 days 181£360H 868 862
4,082 6,416
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the impairment loss recognised on trade

receivables are as follows:

21. FEWBRER (&)
St Uk B 2% R 3R Y R (/S 4B 2 % B
—F :

2024 2023

—E-ME e = 42

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ERT FET

At beginning of the year REF] 1,507 2,043
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) F AR, (#E)

during the year (notes 6 and 7) ZREEE (HEek7) 165 (536)

At end of the year NER 1,672 1,507

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

AR 23 R OR B 2 18 W AR KR e 0 4T 40

considered to be impaired is as follows: ™
2024 2023
—EC-lE —EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERx FET
Neither past due nor impaired I K 38 B SR B 2,986 3,940
Less than one month past due BEAL R —1EA 142 454
One to three months past due BmE—Z==1@A - 1,160
More than three months past due BEER=1EA 954 862
4,082 6,416

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

RE B PORE 2 EUGRIRE 2 2 3T B
Y EERLBEZTRAEFER-

B %8 B8 37 AROR (B 2 FE Y kIR B E T
RAEEBECHKRTZBIEFA
-mBBEER ARRESTRAS
ARREERIELRERE RAS
EEERUEBEANEE AHEGHRID
WAR A A 28 -
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—E-MFE=A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. ERE - -RERHEMEYK

RECEIVABLES =Ig
2024 2023
- =11 —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Gross amount: HAEE
Deposits paid for acquisition of ARG ERIRESRN
equity investment (Note (a)) e (KisE(a)) 27,800 27,800
Prepayments TE T 5RIR 3,798 4,808
Disposal receivable (Note (b)) JE W & R
(KzE®m)) 6,000 11,000
Distribution receivable from REBFZHEZDIE
film production (Note (c)) e R IE (MfsE(c)) - 4,653
Other receivables (Note (d)) H fth e UK 5K I8
(KzEd)) 19,203 15,552
Other receivable related to B AR EHAE R 2
convertible bond H b FE WGRIE 15,664 =
Prepayment for the investment B R ERE AN RIA
in film copyrights 2,250 -
74,715 63,813
Impairment losses recognised: EHERRERE
Deposits paid for acquisition of ARG ERITERN
equity investment (Note (a)) & (KisE(a)) 27,800 16,350
Prepayments SCENE/ S5 3,042 =
Disposal receivable (Note (b)) JE W &5 FR IR
(BzE®m)) 104 159
Distribution receivable from REEZREZDIK
film production (Note (c)) e A (BfsE(c)) - 68
Other receivables (Note (d)) H h fE YRR
(M) 15,000 12820
Other receivables related to AR EHFAE
convertible bond E b FE WGRIE 15,664 =
(61,610) (31,577)
Carrying amount FREE 13,105 32,236
Less: non-current portion B FERMENEL D - (5,913)
Current portion BB D 13,105 26,323
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group entered into an agreement, under which the Group agreed
to subscribe for 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG Terminal Holding
Limited (“H. Sterling LNG") a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, for an aggregate consideration of RMB223 million, of which
aggregate deposits amounted to HK$27,800,000 were paid by the Group
up to the end of the reporting period. According to the agreement for
subscription, H. Sterling LNG will own 21% equity interests in Yantai
LNG Terminal Project Company immediately prior to the completion of
the subscriptions. Yantai LNG Terminal Project Company is principally
engaged in the gas operation, import and export of goods and
technology and import and export agency services, and is a project
company established to implement the Yantai LNG Terminal Project.
Completion of the Group's subscription of 50% equity interest in H.
Sterling LNG has not taken place up to 31 March 2024 and the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements. The management
of the Group concluded that the proposed acquisition was cancelled
and the Group has demanded the repayment of the deposits paid. The
management of the Group considered it is likely that the deposits paid
amounted to HK$27,800,000 are not recoverable, accordingly additional
impairment loss amounted to HK$11,450,000 (2023: HK$16,350,000) has
been recognised in profit and loss of the Group in respect of the year.

The disposal receivable represents the outstanding balance of
the cash consideration for the disposal of the Company's former
subsidiary, Gold Strong Industrial Limited, details of which are set out
in note 34. The outstanding balance of the receivable of HK$6,000,000
is due for payment on 28 September 2024. Having assessed the
financial position of the counter party and the underlying economic
environments, management of the Group considered it appropriate to
make impairment losses on the receivable amounted to HK$104,000
(2023: HK$159,000).

22.

E gl
i

(a)
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BRI 8 RS

=

REBIT LB Bt AEBERSREH.
Sterling LNG Terminal Holding Limited
([H. Sterling LNG | - —FIR BB 2 #¥
SHEMKLZ AR S0%KE BRER
AR 223,000,000 EF B REEERE
HI R 5 B B X {42 © #8%127,800,0007%
TLo BEAMRBIEARN  BIBRE R
H. Sterling LNGi#E A E & R(IL RARE
Wk B R A21%8 % o B A RIERA
REWHBEAREERERALE K
MRMBME L A RES ARERE R
—HAEBEARECRARERHEER
MM HIEE AR -BEE_T_WF=H
=S+ -BRESGEAVBHRRMUEDL
ANEBBHEH. Sterling LNGZ 50%8% 4 1
AR -AEBEEEERARZWBEEE
EWECH MALEEEREED MRS -
REEEEERAL 12 $©27,800,000/%
TRATREERZWE - Bt AFEERAE
18 5 o T 3R 58 1Rl (B 5 18111,450,000/%
T (ZZT = =% :16,350,000% T ) °

EWEHERBEEHEARARHNE A A
CHEIXERAAZHEREREE
Heh HE BRI T34 E - ERFED
oK 18 38 45 46,000,000 TR —ZF =M
FNAZFNBEBHI N -ETFERHE
FAOPBMRARBEALERER K&
EEEERAHERFBIELRERIE
104,000 7T ( — & — = £ : 159,000/ 7T )
TEBEE -
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31 March 2024
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Included in other receivables at 31 March 2024 is the receivable
from third party amounted to HK$Nil (2023: HK$4,653,000) which
is attributable to distribution receivables of the investment in film
copyrights held by the Group during the year and this receivable
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Impairment
loss on this receivable amounted to HK$68,000 was recognised
in profit or loss in respect of the prior year ended 31 March 2023.
Having assessed the financial position of the counter party and
the underlying economic environments, management of the Group
considered it appropriate to make reversal of impairment loss on the
receivables of HK$68,000 (2023: Nil).

(d) Included in other receivables at 31 March 2024 is the receivable from
a third party amounted to HK$15,000,000 (2023: HK$15,000,000) which
is attributable to the disposal of assets by GULF ENERGY (CHINA)
LIMITED (formerly known as “H. Sterling Global Energy Limited") prior
to its acquisition by the Group during prior years and this receivable is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Having assessed
the financial position of the counter party and the underlying economic
environments, management of the Group considered it appropriate to
make impairment loss on the receivables in full in the prior year ended 31
March 2023 which was charged to profit or loss in respect of that year.

Except mentioned above, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets (after impairment
loss recognised) included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Movements in the impairment losses recognised on

22. TEF;&IE & & H fth EU
WA

/\E

i : ()

(00 WR-E-_WNE=A=+—8 Hit@EKK
BREERE=ARESEL(ZT ==
& 14,653,000 70) - TR AEBRF
NEFEEEFZRERE DREWRKIE B
FEW I AEIRIR Rt B RBKREKE
2 o bt JFE U 3R I /Y R (8 5 1868,0007% JT B
REBEE-_E-_=F=A=+—HILBHEF
EREZEPRR - CTERFUFHON
Bk REBEEERRER AEEEERE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ow
B (ZEZ=F ®)VBEE

(d RKRZZE-_WNFE=ZA=1+—8 EMEKXK
BRIFEESZER(PE)FRAR (A
BIELEREFIAERDR])NBAEFE
WAEBERBHEEEMR—RBE=H
JiE UK 3 7815,000,000/8 7T (ZF = =4 ¢
15,000,000 7T) * B % W K IE A &K
BT ERAREREE - LFHYHF
FHOPBRARBEEERER A%EH
ERERABE_T-_=F=A=+—H
IEBREFEYERFIEEL ZERERE
(B%FEERZFHR)DEBEE -

s 1= N = = -
HRE-FFALEESHRZEREE (H
BRI EER) BRI EER
ik EUGRIRE R -

BB SR R A R R

prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as follows: REBEEBE 2 ZEHNT:
2024 2023
ey 11 - 3 —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER FHET
At beginning of the year REH] (31,577) (15,435)
Impairment loss recognised for the year & RNFER 2 B EE B (30,033) (16,142)
At end of the year RER (61,610) (31,577)

The information about the expected credit loss is disclosed
in note 42.

FREREEERNENBERME
42 o
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—E-mE=A=+—8

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BARESFANERZERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
2024 2023
—EB-ME —EZ=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Investments in convertible bond AR EHIEE (Mita)
(note a) - 17,160
Investments in securities BHIE
— Equity securities listed - BB LT ZRAF
in Hong Kong (note b) (Mi5Eb) - 173
- 17,333
Details of the bases and assumptions adopted for the fair E ERANEFAERZZCEREEN

value measurement of these financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss are set out in note 41. £y

ftfﬁ.ﬁriﬁfﬁ AEERBERNFE
JIA

M 5E4T o

Notes: B 5

o

a. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group subscribed
convertible bonds issued by a third party (“the Issuer”), which through
its subsidiaries, are principally engaged in energy sectors related
business.

The convertible bonds held by the Group, which carry interest at 8%
per annum with the principal amount of US$2,000,000, entitle the
Group, as the bond holder, to convert the bond into approximately
2% of the issued capital of the Issuer (on full conversion). In the
current year, upon the expiration of the conversion period, the
convertible bonds have not been converted, outstanding principal
and interest totalled HK$15,664,000 have been reclassified to other
receivables.

Movements in investments in convertible bond are as follows:

Eti_g:fiiﬂ =t—HLFE K
BRBEH—BE=H ([BTA BT

E’\]EH@I&%% CBETATERBEMER

RS Rl E ST

AEE A R AR AR E FH R8%H F 7 X
8 A4 % 52,000,000 7T A%
B(EABSRBABAN)BRBESFEE
BETA2%NME HITRA (EHER
B) RAFE ATHRBRESFREBHRESE
MEEAREER HREERERAMEAR

15,664,000/ LB B 5

DR E H R

AR ESRERBNT

2024 2023

—F-@EF —E=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

At beginning of the year, at fair value RE BRRE 17,160 16,314

(Decrease)/increase in fair value (Note) ARECRDY) /o () (1,496) 846

Reclassified to other receivables B DR HADEWKIE (15,664) =

At end of the year, at fair value RER BARE - 17,160
Note: The increase in fair value for the prior year ended 31 March Mied: BE-_T-_=F=A=1+—H1HE

2023 included the interest income of US$160,000 generated
from the convertible bond.
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAREFANERZEME

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

& (18)

Notes: (Continued) feaE: (4&)

b. Movements in investments in securities are as follows: b. BHEEZEBWT
2024 2023
—E-mE —TEZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of the year, at fair value REY  RAQ 173 3,434
Increase/(decrease) in fair value (notes 6 and 7) AREEN CRd) (MiE6k7) 829 (2,268)
Disposals during the year FRALE (1,002) (993)
At end of the year, at fair value REXR EA - 173

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RERILSZEY

2024 2023

—E-UE —E-=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances B & MIR1T 5% 7,054 7,403

At 31 March 2024, the aggregate cash and bank balances
and deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$130,000 (2023:
approximately HK$104,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China'’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

R-E-_NME=Z/F=+—H X&EH
UARB(TAREDIEBEZR® IR
THB U RF G 141 /130,0000% 7T
(ZZB =4 :49104,000/87T) - AR
BMAmEREBAEMER AW B
BB A INEEIER TN M ERE -
ERERNEERET ASEEES
BERATETIINEXEE ZRITHBA
REAEME-

RITREVREEERITERNEKFE
ZERRBANE -EHREMERZTF
XA -—BHE=ZFEATE BFLE
Bz BN R & HBRME  WikEEH
EHERE KRN B - |RITHER R
FRERRERY ERERLEkBEE
R ZRIT -
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—E-mE=A=+—8

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. FEfTRRFR
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each MEREHRBRNRENABZT 2 E
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as NEERZEREDTAT
follows:
2024 2023
—E-@E —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Within 90 days 90H A 3,096 6,325
91 to 180 days 91£180H 2,932 3
181 to 360 days 1812360H 1,522 -
Over 360 days 3608 130 13
7,680 6,341
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ERMERDEE R —KRIROB (ZF
settled on 90-day (2023: 90-day) terms. —=%:90R )ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ% °
26. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 26. BT RIE - FEGTRRIA R
DEPOSITS RECEIVED EWiRE
2024 2023
—E-lE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Amounts due to related parties FEAST R A L5
(notes 39(c) and 39(d)) (P 5E39(c) %239(d) ) 9,491 10,982
Other payables o FE T 3RIE 13,514 10,829
Accruals FERT IR 10,097 14,793
Deposits received Bz e 1,176 591
34,278 37,195
Less: Non-current portion R FEBNEAER - (483)
34,278 36,712
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31 March 2024
—EMF=A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27. st BEBE
2024 2023
“T-ME —E-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRI E BB =R
(%) B TF#ET (%) FIEIE THET
Current
BIHA
Unsecured loan, repayable
within one year 10% 2025 13,147 N/A N/A -
BERER R —FAEE 10% TR T TE A
13,147 -
The Group's borrowing is unsecured, carries interest at the AEEBNEBEEAERR RI0%MWETE
fixed rate of 10% per annum and is repayable on or before 20 FMNEFE WER-_ZT_LF=A
March 2025. ZtH%KZHEE:.
28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. EHIE1A
2024 2023
“T-lE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ER FET
Contract liabilities related to: HNFZIERE 2
BRBE:

Distribution of film sub-licenses BITERERE 1,442 1,912
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing REBZBEOONENMTRLHRSE
schedule as established in contracts. Payments are usually ﬁ”ﬂlﬂﬁm Ixxﬁﬁﬁsﬁ%iﬁx
received in advance of the performance under the contracts BN TETEESHNREALZATKE
which are mainly from distribution of film sub-licenses. B e
The following table shows the amount of the revenue TR E RS SR ERE EE
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to BEaNBEFANKEERE:

carried-forward contract liabilities:

2024 2023
“T-mE =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Revenue recognised that was included EEFAFVEHNEE
in the contract liabilities balance HEHME R E
at the beginning of the year 470 688
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Revenue from unsatisfied performance are as follows:

EII’JE1E( )
KERBITRBEZWAIRWOT:

2024 2023
—EC-mE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Expected to be recognised FEE RN —FRHER
within one year
Film distribution BRET 438 751
Expected to be recognised after one year TEFT i —F &R
Film distribution BRI 1,004 1,161
Total transaction price allocated to RERDEERETT
unsatisfied contracts at end of the year BHMBR FER 1,442 1,912
29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 29. BEBRIFAR
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FRAZEEHBEEEESHOT :
as follows:
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related Property
depreciation revaluation Total
i HEmInE
ZIERHE MEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—_#WA—H 1,214 858 2,072
Eliminated on disposal &S T A Rl
of subsidiaries (666) = (666)
Exchange realignment bE 5 SR (153) (80) (233)
At 31 March 2023 RZB-=F=A=+—H 395 778 1,173
At 1 April 2023 RZZE=—=FmA—A 395 778 1,173
Exchange realignment [ 5B (287) 247 (40)
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-—WE=A=+—H 108 1,025 1,133
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31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 29 . BEBIEERE (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$247,591,000 (2023: approximately HK$220,519,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which these tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and joint
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries, associate and
joint venture will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. There were no temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31 March
2024 (2023: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RBERR AEBRBBEEZM
R TE B 18 49 5247,591,000% 7T (=
T — = 4220,519,000/% 7T ) - 7] &
REBUKEEAZEBIBARZA
BERUEN BARAEERBITE
BEERB SN HEEZERIEE
B HRETARZEEERRELER
HEE-

REFBEEEMETE RPBEAM
RSN E B RRBIMNREE B K
BBABMOREMHR -HREB =
TENF-A-—BRBER LEARN
—ETEFE+A=+—BBZEH-
BAR R TR AR R 28 10 B A 4 £
BIMEBEERDEERIARBIENZ
BATER RAKEMS EBRAKREX
R5% AREBERLAREEFE AN
RIZHMBRABARAERAR_-EE
NE—A—BREREZ B H PTD KK
BBATEIM -

RZE-_WNEFEF=ZA=Z=+—HBHEZ-E
TZFZA=+—H HMERAEEH
RAEBRMKY 2K BRAR BEA
RAIARABERBBHMIENI 2 KE
AR EE 2 B TEHTE MR IE
EREB-ZEFERE WEWBAR -
BRI RALRARNARERATT
ENRBHEAN - R-_ZE-_WF=A
=t+—H ¥EEKERP H A
BARBEMIL AL ERELTHEA
BEBECERER (ZTEZ=F:F)-

2 18 AR R A 2 AR 3 A 25
fEAEHLIAR -
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30. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 30. P EBRIEHENEE A
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS SEABEEHENEERMA
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE R=R

2024 2023
—E-ME - =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets classified as held for sale NEABEHENEE
Investment properties (Note 16) KEWMZE (K316) 9,100 -
2024 2023
—E-WmE —E=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Liabilities associated with assets HABARBELERN
classified as held for sale EERBENAE
Deposits received on disposal of HEHEREME
investment properties WEH & 910 -

On 17 January 2024, Elegance Optical Investments Limited
("EOIL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, Ms. Foo Hiu Hung Heidi (“Ms. Foo"”), pursuant
to which Ms. Foo agreed to purchase and EOIL agreed to
sell the Group's investment properties for a consideration of
HK$9,100,000, deposits of which amounted to HK$910,000
were received by the Group as at 31 March 2024. Accordingly,
the investment property has been reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale. The deposits received for disposal
of HK$910,000 was classified as liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for sale.

The disposal of investment properties completed on 3 May
2024.

Management considers that the fair value of assets classified
as held for sale to be HK$9,100,000 as at 31 March 2024.

RZE_WMF—A+tEB ARAZE
EMBAR S HERERERR AR
((EHRFREFRAA])HE—EB
VEZABEALZE ([BLt])ilx
BEEHH Bt BxIREEERS
HRFEREER AR HEARNEE
I E Y E - R E 59,100,000 7T » A&
EEER-_ZE-_WF=ZA=+—HK
B #2 ©910,0005 7T o [ Il - & E ¥ %
EEMOHEANBABELENEE-
HE D RERAIZRE910,0008 T H B A
HOBEARIELENEEEBENEE-

HEREWEN -_E-_MERA=A
SEFK o

EEBEERAN _ET-_NE=R=+—
BLOEABELENEEZAAES
9,100,000 T
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g &
2024 2023
g 11 - 3 —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 shares of 10,000,000,0004% & i
HK$0.01 each E180.0178 T 2 I fn
(2023: 10,000,000,000 shares (===
of HK$0.01 each) 10,000,000,000/% & &
H{E0.018 T2 i n 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRME:
872,863,684 shares of 872,863,6841% T ik
HK$0.01 each E{E0.01E T 2k fh
(2023: 872,863,684 shares (ZEBE=-—=%F:
of HK$0.01 each) 872,863,684 F %
E{E0.0178 7T Z B {7 8,728 8,728
There are no movements in the Company’s issued share RBE_ZT_MF=A=1+—AK=
capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March E-_=ZF=ZA=+—HULEFE &2
2023. AR BITRAB B EE -

EHABEBEEB SR AT 2023/2024 FH 199
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 March 2020.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any director, including any executive or independent
non-executive director or any full time or part time
employee of the Group; or (ii) any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoter and service providers of any member of the
Group.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at 16 March 2020
(i.e. the date of passing the resolution for adoption
of the Share Option Scheme): 60,655,368 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares of the Company
that it represents as at 30 June 2021: 6.95%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i)  options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2023/2024 Annual R
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during the option period in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such other
terms and conditions upon which an option was granted
from the date of grant of the option but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

()  Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; and (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme
Approximately 5.5 years (expiring on 15 March 2030).

32. l@RR#ERT S (45)
(e) THEBREZRBIRMGZH

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

PR
RIFEEER 8 2GR kB &R H
BREpHERLBRENZS
AR R AR R B AR B 2
EAEE EREABERT A
SHBX L A HR10F -

BRETEMVLEARAZ
B 78 M1 PR
RIEERRTET TALE
KR o

() ®SFESENERERRA
BB RE: 1.0087T:

(i) whZA 5 O] fe {9 =k 3 0
BRZHAPR - & h A #E A28
BA: R

(i) fERHBEMARBEH
EREERR: ~ER-

BEETEEZEE
TEEDRARRESEEE
BRBERTIERDE  (QRE
HEMARRRGZHHE: R
(DR EZEE AR AL %
BAR RN Z T E-

B R HERT 8 2 87 T SF 1

W55 (R—E=TFE=A+H
BEm) e
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31 March 2024
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings.

Movements of share options granted under Share Option

32. IEREET 8 (/8)
TR IR T R AR R B
BREA® LREZHA

FAREBREASIRD cBREZ

Scheme during the year are as follows: BEmT
2024 2023

—EC-mE ZE=F
Weight Number Weight Number
average of shares average of shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable
price per under price per under
shares options shares options
RIZEE AR AE 1R A% BB AL
i B FEEAT TN AT T
EHTEE ZRBEE FHIEE ZERO#HE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
&I Fir BTT F A%
At the beginning of the year REH 1.33 36,000 1.33 60,000
Lapsed during the year FARM - - 1.33 (24,000)
At the end of the year RER 1.33 36,000 1.33 36,000

No option granted under the Share Option Scheme were
forfeited during both of the years ended 31 March 2024 and

2023.

BHE T _NFER_ZT-_=ZF=HA
=+ —HIMEFE  #8ELWRE
BT a2 BB
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FEMBEERME
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercisable periods of the share
options granted under Share Option Scheme outstanding as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2024
—E-@mE
Number of

shares issuable Exercise price

32. RERHESTEI (&)
KR MR - R AR BB
5K 7 8 2 B IR > 77 {8 1 R 17 {52 B
m

under options per shares  Exercisable period
R A4 =T P
BTz E BRITEE TEH
000 HK$
Fhx AT
8,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E--FNA-HE-¥=—¥=A+/\B
8,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E_-FNANBE-_F=—%(=A+/\B
20,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E-_—-FMNAtHE-F=—%4=A+/\H
36,000
2023
—E=F
Number of

shares issuable Exercise price

under options per shares Exercisable period
REBERER T
BT ZRMDEA BIRITEE  1TEH
000 HK$
Tz BT
8,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E-—FWA-RAEZT=—F=A+/\H
8,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
TE - —FHWHANMAE=ZE=—F=/F+/\H
20,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
R —FWOA+tHEZZE=—F=HA+/\H
36,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had options
outstanding to subscribers for approximately 36,000,000 (2023:
36,000,000) shares under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of approximately 36,000,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company which would give rise to the total proceeds
of approximately HK$47,880,000 (2023: HK$47,880,000).

RNMEH R KD BRI EREE
% T A8 A #136,000,00000 (ZE ==
£F 1 36,000,00017 ) [ ARATE 2 BB AE o
BRIBEARRIBEENEE BEITE
W ARITE 2 BRI ASERARRR LT
4736,000,0000% 58 9ME 3@ % - EE £ AT 1S
FIE #A5E 447,880,000 T (B ==
£F 1 47,880,000/ 7T ) ©
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32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

On 19 March 2021, share options to subscribe for 60,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
granted by the Company to certain Directors, employees
and consultants of the Group, subject to acceptance of
the grantees, under the Share Option Scheme. Each of the
share options shall entitle the holder of the share option to
subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$1.33 per share during the exercisable
period from date of acceptance to 18 March 2031. Such share
options have been accepted by the grantees in April 2021.
Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 March 2021.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had approximately 36,000,000
shares issuable under the options, which represented
approximately 4.12% of the Company's shares in issue as at
that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group at 31 March 2024 and
2023 represents (i) the excess of the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 8 February 1996, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor; (ii) the
premium arising on the subscription of shares of Elegance
Group Limited (“EGL"), the then holding company of the
Group's subsidiaries existing at that time, at an aggregate
premium of HK$22,000,000 which was credited to the
capital reserve. The Group reorganisation has resulted in
EGL becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (iii) the contributed surplus included in the Company’s
reserves (note 43(b)) represents the difference of the amount
of the Company's share capital immediately before the
capital reorganisation and that immediately after the capital
reorganisation during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

32.

33.

AR HESTEl (&)

RZEBE-_—F=ZA+hB ' xRQFA
BEBRETE RAASESETE
2 EERMBEERETREALARDQF
60,000,0000% & & F{E0.018 T #1 &

B RE I R AR AR RIER
ET¢§°hT%%%ﬁ%%%%%

BEAREERMERE_T=—F=A
TNBZITERARRTEES KRN

1.3B3BTRE—REAQAFE AR
R - BEBREER T —F K

ABARAER -RNRARHZBR
BZARBHINARRABAMS -F
——HZAThBZRE-

BERERAVBHRREREER
AN X A 49 % 36,000,000% 1R 4% & Az 42
AFETZBRN HEREARARZ
HEBITRMAAL12% -

it fe
$%§$¢§&@E¢§Zﬁﬁ@$
&75 & B BIRERES0E 2
RA d”_H@ﬁEazW

RZEZWMFR_ZTEZ=F=A
—t+—H XEBZEXFEHEEOR
TJ% j'Lj'L/\E ﬂ/\EL ZZISEI
EAFMKRBEHEA R Z B M EERA
RABMIBEITERRZROHEAE B
EHEIE: (©REAEENBARER
ZﬂW“Tm%%@Eﬁ“ (I=
HEBE|DRDIAEERE BKE
22,000,000 L EFT A B A - A&
BEdA<cafEERAEART 2B
BRa: Riigt ARRRRE2#A
&k (MizE43(b))  BEEZZ=_—F
=A=+-— Etiﬁ'%&é$§ﬁ
AIEZEEARABTABRARAIRALEE
K ZE%E o

BEFERBMNBRBMELEZET
BESREFEGRARHAEYE-
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

34. HEMEB AT

2024 2023
—EFEZE —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on HENTEEZ
disposal of: Re (Rl RAERE:
- Gold Strong Industrial Limited —SMNEIXRARAA
("Gold Strong”) (l&FEl) - 4,812
- Hainan Qifang Culture Company —BEEF XEAERAA
Limited (the “Hainan Qifang”)* ([Gmpss]) * (158) =
(158) 4,812

On 16 May 2023, the Group deregistered Hainan Qifang,
and accordingly, the wholly-owned subsidiary held by Hainan
Qifang, namely Jiangsu Fuxing Culture Media Company
Limited*, was also disposed from the Group.

On 24 October 2022, the Group disposed of 45% equity
interest in a subsidiary, Gold Strong, for an aggregate cash
consideration of approximately HK$21,000,000. Gold Strong
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading
and manufacturing of optical frames and sunglasses and
property investment. The cash consideration to the extent of
HK$10,000,000 was received by the Group with the remaining
outstanding balance of HK$11,000,000 remained outstanding
at 31 March 2023 and was included in other receivables (Note
22(b)).

* The English names of these entities are directly translated from their
Chinese names as no English names have been registered.

RZEZ=FRAA+ B XEEF
HEEES AL ESmETHANS
EMBARIHEEZELEEBRA
A IR AN & B R B o

RZEBEZ_Z_F+A-+HWH AEE
LA 4838 4 £ {8 921,000,000 7T & &
— MM B AR F EAS%E IR - & F|
ELEMBARTENRERERLK
FREZEERZERMWERE R
TE-=H=ZA=+—H &KX&EED
I B 38 4 X {8 10,000,0005% 7T - Tl &4 14
KRB B #5:11,000,0005 TR EE
Wat AE b FEUCFRIE (FFEE22(b) ) ©

B EEME AR AR
EFRERXAE-

Xt B
R 3
#
e
fmt ot
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

An analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities of the

kv

34. HEMBAT (15)
YRR RSEOHBARNGES AE

!

subsidiaries over which control was lost:

REBENDN:

Hainan Qifang Gold Stong
BEMS FE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Assets =3
Property, plant and equipment RN L] - 24,606
Right-of-use assets EREEE = 16,311
Investment properties KEMEHE = 7,272
Inventories FE = 167
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIA - R R HAM
receivables & W FkIE 17,214 454
Cash and cash equivalents BeNReFEEY 158 5,188
Liabilities Bf#
Trade payables JE 5 BR K = (1,475)
Other payables, accruals and H i FE AT FRIE - FEAH IR
deposits received B Wik s 18,343 (6,132)
Lease liabilities HEaE - (17,581)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIERE = (666)
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of EHE(BaEFEE),
BEFE (971) 28,144
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAS Zl=
2024 2023
—EF-mE —E=5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash received BUIE & - 10,000
Deferred cash consideration IREIR KB - 11,000
Total cash consideration HeRELRE - 21,000
Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of EHEaEFE,/
(BEFE) 971 (28,144)
Non-controlling interest disposed of EHEIEERER - 14,203
Exchange fluctuation reserve released & 14 fif Bk IE X, )% B) 48
upon disposal 9,173 347
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AR E
(notes 6 and 12) (PFifEeR12) 10,144 7,406
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34. HEMBAT (&)
An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of subsidiaries as HEMRBARZRERESNAT :
follows:
2024 2023
- e 1 - 3 —ZE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cash consideration received BUIR e RE - 10,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of B HER® MIRITHE (158) (5,188)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEMNBARIZIAS
disposal of subsidiaries () mAFRE (158) 4,812
35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 35. BREAFERERZBS
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS HRKMBAT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material REBEBEERFTERERIHMEA
non-controlling interests are set out below: AIFBEHIIMT

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

—EC-ME —EC=F

=A=+-8 =A=+-~

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ER FET

Percentage of equity interest held by IR TR 2 IR
non-controlling interests: ERi

Gold Strong and its subsidiaries T M BR Ko EL B 8 X A 0% 0%
As set out in Note 34, on 24 October 2022, the Group MM E34E, KT _F+ A
disposed of 45% equity interest in Gold Strong. ZHmMA - AEEE S N RASBARIE o
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35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 5. HAEEXIERERZES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING HMAEMBAT (&)
INTERESTS (Continued)

2023
el =
HK$'000
FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to IR ETESREZ
non-controlling interests: REZHF, (FE8) :
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries & FIBE K 2 & A A 31,721

RS B IR i
Z REHERR
EMEREKE AR -

Accumulated balance of non-controlling
interests at the reporting dates:
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries

TR LR B AT 2 o AR
T o iR A A I 2 ) R 4

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Gold Strong and its subsidiaries

Al Z &8

EFREEMBEAE

Period from

1 April 2022
to 24 October Year ended
2022 31 March 2022
A—H#EE H=
—E--F g
+A=+mA =A=+—H
L HAME HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue g 12,745 30,688
Total expenses > B RE (22,627) (42,097)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERH,/ (&E) 70,491 (11,409)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEXHEEERE 65,026 (12,122)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from &% /E%) (FTiEz),
operating activities ELEZBREREFHAE (5,695) 2,561
Net cash flows generated from REEFHELEZ
investing activities RemEF8 - 1,844
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HE& KBS EEY
equivalents CRA) /B inFE (5,695) 4,405

31 March 2022

—ET-=
—A=+—H
Current assets MENEE 12,498
Non-current assets IEREEE 57,504
Current liabilities mEBE (87,294)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (19,173)
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REeEMBERETME

31 March 2024

—E-_NF=A=+—H

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 36. RERERERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing EXfEMETHNEEEE
activities
Interest-
bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities
itREE HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET
At 1 April 2022 RZZEZZFWMA—H 14,609 19,653
Changes from financing cash flows MERER=E (14,609) (2,072)
Interest paid included in operating activities %"I‘]K”“%é@ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬂ = (522)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries BT B & B T 8 = (17,581)
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=F=A=+—H - -
At 1 April 2023 RZEZ=FNHH—H - -
Changes from financing cash flows ﬁﬂéfﬁ%mui ik 12,548 -
Accrued interests on borrowings &R EET ) B 599 -
At 31 March 2024 R-ZF-ZWHFE=A=+—H 13,147 -
37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. GEMA=H
As lessor fEBHBEAN
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the AEERBEKEHNTHBEEERE
consolidated financial statements) under operating lease ME (et BmiRME16)  AEM
arrangements, with the leases negotiated for terms ranging HANTIFRMER=F -HHOKRITEKR
from two to three years. The terms of the leases also require MPXNERES WREZERTR
the tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic EHARES-
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the Group had total C—NF=ZAZ+—HBHEK=-F

future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable —F=A=+—H AKEREHR

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: HBPIT RN BiHAE B OB K
REKERS QB HBEROT

ez
[
A
\I

2024 2023

—FomE = e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within one year —FRX 1,054 1,286
In the second to fifth years, E_FERFNA

inclusive (BREEEMT) 531 988

1,585 2,274

=X BREEEE AR A A 2023/2024 £33k 209
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31 March 2024

—E_NFE=A=+—H

38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 38. B EFIGTE

210

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to
the MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employee. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$458,000 (2023:
HK$243,000) represents contributions paid to the retirement
benefits schemes by the Group in respect of the current year.

Apart from the above, the Group has no significant
obligations under retirement benefit schemes at end of both
of the years presented. The Group also had no forfeited
contribution available at end of both of the years presented
to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

For the Group's subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by
employers or upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5
years employment period, based on certain formula.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise
the Group's mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting
LSP payable to an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

AEEARAAEREEREEE—
BRI - RSN EER
AEBEESHRA TUELHR
MR AL

NBREBESHECKEME AEEIZ
BT EKAZ5% (A= A1,5000%8 7T
BHER)MBESFEMHFK MEE T
EEREeB MR -MBEMETEIE
B2 AR -

AEBETEMBRARZERED ATH
BT 2% 3L 30/ B 3R B 2 R AR AR AU A
BeHREBE-ZEMBRAARERT
B2 A T LBl R KA A 5 81K
AR A - N B A B %R IKAE A
Bl - B ERRIEZTEEL A

= (T
=

B B & MR 2 A 7S 48 88458,0008 7T
ZTEZ=F:243,0008 )AL R
RAFEERARKBHE ST 2 HRK-

BREdESN AEERMEZRFEE
A EECARABHFAEETZER
B -AKBERMIEZREERITE
OR W TR AT R AR R 2R 4F [ B A
2K

RAEBERBLENHBRRME -
REBEFSTE (BREHD)  AEEEE
EEETHERT (HI A5 EE H# 'K
BRARB)EEFEEARAMEERETER
BEXNEHRE S ERERBHRS
Fo

AN — AN AEFBRBH (RHIMER
BEFERE) AFFAKENAARE
EeysR Bl E S R mE R E
HAEMIE/8 @&} 80K HEE
B RMRS S ([HEHERH]) -
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31 March 2024
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN (Continued) 38. BREAGTE (45)
The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17th June, 2022, BEIERAN —F __E/\)EJ ++ 8
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from B HHEAEXRMERBESHRX
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. FEAMEER=HARBRES-
The Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date BOEERES R (B ZE-_RFHA
(i.e. 1st May, 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR —H)ERERK B BARFRITE
is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist & AT IR A G HE I — TR R R G & - A
employers for a period of 25 years after the Transition Date RESI HEH25FHEAEEES
on the LSP payable by employers up to a certain amount per N—E2ENBUEETFOHRAR
employee per year. Under the Amendment Ordinance, the fﬁzé RIBAEFT 1551 K%’%.E’Ji 58
accrued benefits derived from the Group’s Enhanced MPF SEEFMEENZRERS  RER
Scheme, minus the mandatory contributions, made pre-, @:%U HIJ 8 | B ok 8% i 12 P 1E 89 58 I
on or post-transition can continue to be used to offset pre- MR AT AR B AR I SH B il A 8
and post-transition LSP. The impact from the Amendment O RRBE BT RO ARE
Ordinance on the Group's LSP liability and earnings is ERHRGSEERBNNEZERR
considered insignificant. RWPEKX o
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. AEANLER S
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these bRt E4R A BF T 3R H b 3 9 P af
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the 2RI REBRERE N5 HEAE
following transactions with related parties during the year: BATZRS:
(a) Transactions with a director of certain (a) HAQAFETHELATZ
subsidiaries of the Company —ZEEZX5
The Group leased the properties from Million AEBR-_ZE__FOAZE_Z
Wave Limited (“Million Wave"”) for a monthly rental —TZF+_APmEe2BRAT
of HK$93,000 for April 2022 to December 2023. ((mEe)HEEYE WIRAXN
Mr. Hui Leung Wah (“Mr. Hui"), the director of FH£93,0008 5L o A RQ Al & F M
certain subsidiaries of the Company, is the beneficial BAREET mELRE([FE
owner of Million Wave. The amount of rental paid EDAEBRENEREBA AL
by the Group for the current year in respect of ERFERBEEMEMNZE
leasing of the properties amounted to HK$837,000 & FJE A837,0008 L (ZE ==
(2023: HK$1,138,160), which has been included in F:1,138,160/870) » B I A
“administrative expenses” of the consolidated statement maBaniPz [THAX] -
of profit or loss.
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group also BE_Z_MF=A=+—HI
received accounting service fee of HK$720,000 (2023: FE AEETRIMEF 2
HK$960,000) from Million Wave. BET R B720,0008 T (= F
— =% :960,0008 T)
During the year ended 31 March 2024, a property was BHE-Z-_MF=A=+—AH1
rented by the Group from Mr. Hui, for the use by a FE - AEEBMFLEHE— F‘%
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Poon ME UHARQFETHER
Sui Hong, as accommodation. The total rental paid by ZEEENEEERETE - 77-"
the Group amounted to HK$900,000 (2023: HK$900,000) % B & F X427 £900,00078
in respect of each of the years. 7T (ZZEZ=%:900,000%&7T) °
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group HE_T_WFE=A=+—HIt
purchased goods of HK$9,168,000 (2023: HK$6,358,000) FE -AEBEBRHEFLEEBZ
and received accounting service fee of HK$420,000 A1 P 8 A 7] & F Bz i B 9,168,000
(2023: HK$175,000) from Gold Strong, a former BT (ZEZ=4%F: 6 358 OOO/%
subsidiary related to Mr. Hui. TR S WK B Z R A
ZEE R E420,0008 T (=&
Z =4 :175,000 L) °
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group BHE-_Z-_WMF=A=+—AH1I1
received accounting service fee of HK$140,000 (2023: FE KAEEWK 'J,Jﬁf‘ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ
HK$120,000) from Grand River Investment Limited, a ZRBEAREERRAAISZ N2
company related to Mr. Hui. %3‘# Bk % &140,0008 T (=&

120,000/ 7T ) °

=X EREEEEAR A A 2023/2024 £ 211
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2024
—ENFE=A=+—H

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Outstanding balances with a joint venture

Details of the loan to a joint venture granted by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Outstanding balance with the spouse of a
subsidiary’s director

Included in amounts due to related parties (note 26)
at 31 March 2024 is amount due to the spouse of Mr.
Hui amounted to approximately HK$5,431,000 (2023:
approximately HK$7,833,000) which is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Outstanding balance with directors of
subsidiaries

Included in amounts due to related parties (note
26) at 31 March 2024 are amounts due by the Group
to Mr. Yu Wing Lung and Mr. Zheng Jian Xiong,
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, of
HK$1,772,000 (2023: HK$1,772,000) and HK$2,288,000
(2023: HK$1,377,000) respectively. Such amounts due
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

39. AEANTRS (E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

H-EHeEAFZREER
AEERT-HaL 8RR
BEMR A BHRGAWBER
RMIEE18

H—ZMEBATNESER
B2 REELR
R-_ZE-_WME=A=+—8"
FERT R E A T E (W &E26)
BIEEMNFEERBZHELY
5431,0008 L (ZE=Z=ZF: 4
7,833,000/ 70) * K EH B E K
R ENRBIEBREE-

HMBATEEZKRERE
“&es

R-ZE-_WWFE=A=+—H8 &
HEEATRE (ME26) B
AREBRERNAQRFTETHER
AlEERIKBE L E KZheng Jian
Xiong%t & 2 3 7 Kl1,772,000
BT (T = =4 1,772,000/
7T) }2,288,0008 T (— T - =
% :1,377,00087T) - B @ EN
FEAEER BB NEREX

% -

Compensation of key management (e) FEBEXEEEBAEZN
personnel of the Group =
2024 2023
—E_NE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER FHET
Short term employee benefits EHE B & A 360 802
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 18 18
Total compensation paid and MEEEBRABLZMNR
payable to key management FEf 2 B & 4858
personnel 378 820

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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31 March 2024

—E-MFE=A=+—H

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(f) Transactions with a close family member of

a director of certain of the subsidiaries of
the Company

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company disposed of its investment
properties to Power Zone Development Limited
("Power Zone") for a consideration of approximately
HK$15,850,000. Ms. Hui Wing Ka, the daughter of Mr.
Hui, is the beneficial owner of Power Zone.

Upon completion of the property disposal, the Group
leased back the property as short term lease from Power
Zone. The amounts of rental paid by the Group to Power
Zone for the current year in respect of leasing of the
property amounted to HK$550,000 (2023: HK$400,000),
which has been included in “administrative expenses” of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group also
received accounting service fee of HK$240,000 (2023:
HK$280,000) from Power Zone.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
received accounting service fee of HK$220,000 (2023:
HK$240,000) from Power Keen (Hong Kong) Limited,
which Ms. Hui Sze Man, the daughter of Mr. Hui, is the
beneficial owner.

The related party transactions as set out above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

¢¢F$ Tziéwﬁ)%
H%ﬁ&éf%%ﬂj%%mﬂéf@
BRA2R(TEE]) RELA
15,850,000 Lo sFEE 2 X R
MARRLTAREBCESHE
Ao

RYEHETKE ~EB A
HEAMEELERHEBEE - A&
EAFERAE %%mmﬂzs&ﬁ
2 T4 58 A550,0008 7T (&
— =4 :400,0008 7T) - E B 5

meBEERPZ THRAXL] -

ANirEEm

Bez—_2-_WF=ZA=+—H1
FE -ALETRIBEE N2
SR 240,000 L (=&
— =4 :280,000/87T) °

HE-_E2-_W&E=A=+—HI1t
FE AEERIFEEZRZR
RSt AEERAEAZEBE
(BEB)VERARAIMFZ R
T E220,0008 T (Z T - =4
240,000/ 70 ) °

EXFEBEALRSIER L
MRUBUAEMATHER H
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—E_NFE=HA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. ZEFEHEI P2 &M TR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEEHR SEemIAZKRERA
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as LU
follows:
31 March 2024 —F-_HNE=A=+—H
Financial assets THREE
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRARE R
FFAEEZ BFtE
SHEE ZoMEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFERT FERT FHERL
Trade receivables FEUER TR - 4,082 4,082
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATE{FRIE & K E M
deposits and other receivables JEWRIEZ B E - 10,099 10,099
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe&EEY - 7,054 7,054
- 21,235 21,235
Financial liabilities THAE
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

R A

JRZzERMER

HK$'000

FET

Trade payables JE& A~ BR R 7,680
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE 8 <RI - JEETRRIE K

payables, accruals and deposits received Bl zE2BEE 23,611

Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 13,147

44,438
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31 March 2024

—E-_NF=A=+—H

40. FINANCIgL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. #REMEIDZ2E€M IR (&)
(Continued)

31 March 2023 —®-=f£=H=+—H
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RARME birg X!
FFABEZ AT &
CREE ZEMEE MBEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Trade receivables JE U BR 3N = 6,416 6,416
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATE{FRIE & KR E M
deposits and other receivables UGB CREE - 27,428 27,428
Financial asset at fair value through BRARBEFABREZEREE
profit or loss 17,333 = 17,333
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLZEY = 7,403 7,403
17,333 41,247 58,580
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bi7g: i 31PN
Rz S REBE
HK$'000
FAET
Trade payables FEASBR 3R 6,341
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE AL FIE - EETRUA R
payables, accruals and deposits received ElikecemaE 22,402
Interest-bearing borrowings FATREE -
28,743

EHABEBEEBGR QA 2023/2024 £H 215
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—ENFE=A=+—H

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  41. ﬁﬂIE-Z’AfB‘IEE’AfME

216

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [E 4R

The Group's finance team headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance team reports directly to the financial controller.
At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial controller.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 March 2024 was assessed to be
insignificant.

Financial assets measured at fair value
The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of convertible bonds has been calculated by
discounting the cash flow to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits to be derived from the
convertible bonds, based on an appropriate discount rate.

AEENMBRAERE 2B NER
AETESRTIAQCAENEZRER
B -MBPNEAERAMGEEER-
REREEH UHNESITERT
AZEBEEDYEFHETMAIE
BWABE -HELYBEEEN I
fEHEBRENERAETRRESSE
FETMRT® AMEPHRFEY
FEERR -

TRMEERABZAABRZEMT
ANBERESTEMRS (FFELB
BUHRE)RAIRBZ SR fb&T
AAEERBATTERRR:

R-ZZE-_NMF=A=+—HB F5H
A2 BEREZENRRNGERT

BRAREEBEZEREE
ZAREFABRREZ ETREREZ
RAREDERTISHREE -

ABREEFZ AR BEREEERM
RAEEHREREUBRABHE A A
BESHEE AR RREEMEZ
BEmtHE-
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 41. £ TAZARERARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B (E)
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following table gives information about how the fair TREHANOETZEFCREEARN
values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, BErER (FRZGE M &AER
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). B o A EUE ) -

As at As at

31 March 31 March Fair value Valuation technique(s)
2024 2023 hierarchy and key input(s)

R-ZF-ME R-T-_=F
ZA=+-H ZAZ+-HB AfEES GEEGREEHANE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Investments in securities (equity - 173 Level 1 Valuation technique:
securities listed in Hong Kong) EAE R E R -
BHRE (BELMREES) Quoted bid prices in an active market
ERMISMECEAE
Investments in convertible bond - 17,160 Level 3 Valuation technique:
AREHRE E3 BRI
Discounted cashflow
BRBRERE
Key unobservable inputs:
Discount rate and future cash inflow
BRI BEREAYE:
Eﬁﬁr&*xlﬁuimu
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value FEIRARBEAEZEHER
measurement
Investments in
convertible bond Total
iR ES
"E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 April 2022 RZE__FMA—H 16,314 16,314
Fair value gain recognised in REHZERZ AR E
profit or loss (Note b) Wz (KisEb ) 846 846
At 31 March 2023 RZZE-_=F=F=+—H 17,160 17,160
At 1 April 2023 RZEZ=FA—H 17,160 17,160
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss RE=BRZLARE
(Note b) Ei18 (Fifstb) (1,496) (1,496)
Reclassified to other receivables ENHEEEMEWGRIA (15,664) (15,664)
At 31 March 2024 R-E-—m&E=A=+—8 1 2

=X EREEEEAR A A 2023/2024 £ 217
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

measurement (Continued)

(@) There were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and 2 for both of the years ended
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. Except for the
aforementioned reclassification of investments in
convertible bond to other receivable, there were no
transfer into or out of Level 3 for financial assets for both

of the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

(b)  Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2024 amounted to HK$1,496,000, which
relates to investment in convertible bond. The fair value
loss is included in other operating expenses (note 7).
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss for the prior
year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to HK$846,000,
which relates to investment in convertible bond. The fair
value gain is included in other income and gains (note 6).

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair value. The fair value, which included in
Level 3 category, have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERMNE

31 March 2024
—ToMF=A=+—H

E% B ARBERARE
IWAR BB R ()

REBE-ZT-_MF=H=+—~H
EZZE-_=F=ZR=+—H1
MEFE  AREFEWERSE
1R B2 v B 44 o Br Lt ]
BRESFKREETDEEEAME
WHIEBN RBE_T_NF=
A=+—BEkZ-ZZ=-_=F=HA
T BLEREFE FESH
BEEEANEEIREL -

EE]]

m]HH

£F
[Z

r

B

5

,\
Q

]
i

b) REBEE_Z-_WNMF=AF=+—H
IEFE- Wamﬁﬁw NN 5]
18 751,496,000/ 7T - £2 7] #2 j% f&
HREB#E -ARBEBBEIFAR
e ER (M7 REBEEZ
E-=F=-A=+—HLBAEF
B REZBRAZAABEKRZ S
846,000 70 A MR EHIKE

B2 EWREF AREMKA

KoYz ( Bﬁ it6) °
WHBEBAABEFENTHEER
TREE

EERRBBHEANEAEEHNEREE
RemBEcRmERAAREES -
AR AAREERBERRRE
MEDPMZARTEEXNEE &5
BERZBABBARVEFHEER

% ) RL IR XK o
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31 March 2024
—EINFE=A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables, accruals and
deposits received and interest-bearing borrowings. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Most of the Group's sales were denominated in United
States dollars while expenditures incurred in the operations
of manufacturing plants and capital expenditures were
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. Management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before tax and the Group's equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

42. HREEGEEHEHERE

AEENTESHM T ABERIARR
SABNFR e R E M E KR
LEBMEE - BRAABFABRSLZE
BMEE - BHehBE2FEY EBHEK
PR AEMBENRIA BEFREARE
WrezemBBERFEEE -ZE
ERMTANFBEREREREM T2
ZETRTEAAANREREBEN SR
(B R F) & E e N H A E AR
2) FERBRERSHE SRR &R
ZERBRNBRRIR T -AEEE
BEEEREYERZFERNEREE
B EREEERR-

oI BE i B

AEERGRZEEER ZFE R
TTREEEMIRZEMIET A
EREEMELE AKEXBOHE
URETIE MEERFEEFMEL
AXMERFAXTDAARKESIE K
SEBRBALBRAINEEPBER-E
BEELZYERIINERR XHRNEA
FERE-SERENEAINERR

TRERRBREHNREMBHME
MEAE MARBEXAELERA
BEHZBER T AKERVAEIE
kAsEEz (HEBEERAGER
REHEREES) cHRE-
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

41%5@%%@5%&&%

mE

Foreign currency risk (Continued) SMEE J B (48 )
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
RMB rate  loss before tax equity*
ARBEE BRELAIEE Ex
#/(T) ¥/ () B, (D)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT TET
Year ended 31 March 2024 BECS-mE
=A=+—-HLEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WETHEARKRE 5 (304) (304)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB /87t % AR EFE (5) 304 304
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-S-=%
=A=+—-HLEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB fWETEARERE 5 (816) (816)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {7t i AR B FHE (5) 816 816
Interest rate risk ) =2 3 b
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market AREBMMASMSNREEHREREE

interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank deposits
with floating interest rates. The Group regularly reviews and
monitors the floating interest rate in order to manage its
interest rate risks. The directors have reviewed the Group's
interest-bearing financial instruments and determined that the
Group has no significant interest rate risk.

HAEETERTERER - AEE
S H 4 57 TR B 7 BY R 2 BA 2R EL R
kAR -EFCHAEEF LT
BT B L 5 75 % B 3 4 2 A )
R -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs"”) with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. There is no impacts on the Group's
risk management strategy arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform and the progress towards implementation
of alternative benchmark interest rates as the Group have
no instruments bearing interest at IBOR as at 31 March 2024.
The Group is closely monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 March 2024 would decrease/increase by
HK$35,000 (2023: decrease/increase by HK$37,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank deposits (2023: bank deposits).

42. ??%HB@AEEEHMESI%

FlEmEpg (E)

EREGEHETRHNRELETRAM
HE BRAETERROHERMEX
BRETRTRARFKE ([RITAX
HREL) ~FERELENE REREEF
ENERERTEHAKERREE
RBRELXE RRAAKER-F
“HOFE=A=+—-HABEMNITAERK
RITAEXRFEFE - AKBELEEY
ERMBERERRAMELENREE:
BREREBRITRAXFEEEHBIEL

Z/’\ﬁ:o

THGREREDNHERITERIETE
TARBEMARNNXARET -5t
FRABEME ARSI IHERENH
THRAREREABENEEREZFAY
REEMRE-

EABAEIEEEABERMNEER
B - 3£ FISOfE 2 B A0 3808 K REIEE
B XA AT “EM’E&E%HE

WMAIRSHRESOEREZ BAEH
HhWBEERFTIE AAEEHE-F
TME=ZA=+t-—BHLFENEES
B Y8 AN35,0008 T ( ZFE = =4
/1 AN37,00056 7T) 0 Uk v X B |
RAEENZERTER (==
E : If\E Tﬁ )ﬁ&nuiﬁjfﬂﬁM
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

42. R EE HREBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

222

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The management monitors the price risk
by timely review of investment portfolio and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is
maintained at 20% in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
20% higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the year ended 31
March 2024 would decrease/increase by HK$52,000 as a result
of the changes in fair value of equity investments at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

=

H th {5 #5 2L P&t
AEERERENRAAEFAER
ST & 2 BN RE 75 M [ bR A AN (B AR L
WREBEBEBMERXZMBERABREN
BARBEF ARG EZBRAZESM
EASEEEREAAR —AKEET
AERsKEEAAERLERR T
BEEEERRRIREEAEZER
R A5 E BN E R EHER -

BRE DT TR BER | B B AT B
ZBRAERRRMET O ESE
MZBERNRETENRAESHGRE
DEME AFEFRELZERS
20% -

fin) & 25 T BB EF T #%20% 8l
BE-_ZT_WNF=A=+—HILFE
ZBRBBEEEBESAAKRARBEIA
Bz BEREZ ARBEES MRS,
1 H152,0005% 7T °

S8k
AEFRERERVEEECHRITZ
E=ZFRBAEALTETRS - KEHEH
ZBRBMARREESTAETESR
ZEF HARBEEZERF U
B - 2N 5= B 5 48 BE 52 B WK R BRFE - X
AEEZRERARILENEK -

AEBEMEREE (BREAS MR
TEEMARFAARMNRIE RER
HthEUHREzEMEE) ZEER
BRAXZH T ZREESL TARR
MERZETLREZKREE-
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. Eﬁ%)ﬁlﬂﬁ"éﬂa R EL R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#%&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERME (&)
(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits (i) J;EELIQE-E¥ - Hfth R IE R 1R
Trade receivables JEW AR
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide $E.rﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁf%$ﬁ¢’ﬁﬁ”
for expected credit losses for trade receivables ORIEEM LA E (A AR
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂgqﬁlﬁﬁ ﬁﬁﬁ HTa A& 18
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. BHE)MERERNTEREES
Bt E-
As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the loss BA_v_EE A=t—8Bk=
allowance for trade receivables was determined as E=F=ZA=1+—H EKE
follows: %{’xﬁ'\])&ﬂé@ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ']%lﬁ%
i -

Less than  Three months

Neither  one month to to twelve  Over twelve
past due  three months months months
nor impaired past due past due past due Total
BHLR paf
—@RE Sy ES nyBa
FEHHRE =f@A +={ER +={EAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TER TERT FET
31 March 2024 —B-MmE=A=+-H
Expected loss rate RHEBRX 0.2% 2.1% 48.3% 65.7%
Gross carrying amount REAE 2,992 145 331 2,286 5,754
Loss allowance BRER (6) (3) (160) (1,503) (1,672)
Lessthan  Three months
Neither  one month to to twelve Over twelve
pastdue  three months months months
nor impaired past due past due past due Total
S “fERZE kol
R E R E =R +={8R +=&A @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FTHT THT THT
31 March 2023 —¥-=%=H=+-H
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1.4% 1.9% = 62.3%

Gross carrying amount  FREZ(E 3,996 1,645 = 2,282 7,923
Loss allowance BRER (56) (31) = (1,420) (1,507)
The above expected credit losses also incorporated FaEEEEEE IS RATE T

forward looking information. BH e

SHABEBEEBGR QA 2023/2024 £ 223
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating;
J external credit rating;
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including changes
in the payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.

Other receivables and deposits

The Group uses four categories for deposits and
other receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are aligned
to external credit ratings.

42.

X

“E‘F
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits

(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's
expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
L)

Group's definition
of categories

FRERAENNES

B iR EB R

EERM (8)

(i) FEWERF I
& (E)
Bt EWFIERIE L (&)

AEEBEREEBHBRRANIERM

RN

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

ERANEEEREHENER

HtERRERIZ

Performing

RAR T

Underperforming

RARE

Non-performing
KRR

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows

EPMEARRFEERENSAORERE
GO

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk: significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest
and/or principal repayments are 90 days
past due

(EEEN N R ﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BEMNE R/ FAE Al fE““ sERBA
bE 2

Interest and/or principal repayments are
365 days past due
B HERFERFAE

Interest and/or principal repayments
are two years past due or there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

FER/JASEFTABEMEXFFENR
[ &) & 72 78 5

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

REANERER - HRERFEPEI2E
AZRMEBEE BHERERHEESNEFSE
Bt e

Lifetime expected losses

FHIRHEE

Lifetime expected losses
FHIRHEE

Asset is written off

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of deposits and other receivables and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii

ﬁiﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁvﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%?@
BEEMRBBSEEERRA

BRofEs ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ)@ﬂﬁfrﬁw
rEEEEES

M EBEBEBIBELARE-

BREREME
Y SR IR Y JEE S 5 98 2 3 B AT AR 1
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits
(Continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is derived from its trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and, other receivables, and
cash deposits at banks.

The credit quality of the debtors is assessed based
on their financial positions, past experience and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to ensure
credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 64% (2023: 24%) and 85%
(2023: 75%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the Europe, America
and the PRC (including Hong Kong) regions. However,
the Group concludes that the credit risk in relation to
these customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group's historical
experience in collection of receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the directors do not expect any
additional material impairment on trade receivables, and
receivables from other counterparties.

Receivables that aged less than 90 days substantially
related to various customers that has a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Cash at bank and bank deposits
The table below shows the details of bank deposit
balances maintained at the end of the reporting period:

42. g;%)ﬁlllﬁ%ﬂm%&ﬁiiﬁ%

mE

AR ()

(i)

B iR - Htt UK TA R 2
% (%)

P IEEREE
AEEEBREERR ARANE
BRESHEEAURANEER
B ok B H W AR R RS R K
FEU R B~ 1R & Ko H Al 8 YRR
RBITHREFHK e

BEBANEEZENRERS
BEAR BEEHBREMAER
i aF 1l o AN 5 B 7R A UK DA BB AR
MASEBARHEER KR
SR AN AEEZ ERIRK
Hhps% (ZEZ=F:24%) &%
85% (ZE - =%:75% )% 3R
BALEREBMN EMERFE (2
BEB)SEWRZEAREAE
F WAEEEETEFREER
ReoAM AEBEREEBEZE
EEMEERRBRYTER IR
BERITFWEELHLE - RIE
AN E 06 IR B A B - B U R
HIWARBEFTHRENRE ME
EEHEWRERLERE MY F
FEORESE T HETAMEME
RIBE

fRic D IROOBE MR IR E 2 A
ZREREEE R TR HLHEN
EFEBE -REAEERR E=F
RRBERZ S ERFTIRBER
B EHRNEEERYESAE
BAESKDEE ST 2HKE -

RITRERBRITERK
TRINFRBERARFEMNRTT
Tr R R 1B -

2024 2023

1 - 3 —E=F

Rating HK$'000 HK$'000

4R T#Rx FHET

Cash at banks and bank deposits A3 - Aa2 4,902 2,571
RITRERMITHENR Baal - Baa2 2,152 4,832
7,054 7,403
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 42. E@jﬁ)ﬁl%%ﬂﬁ%éﬂiﬁ%

=

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash at bank and bank deposits (Continued)
The rating represents long-term credit rating provided
by Moody’s, an internationally recognised credit rating
agency. Credit rating with a minimum of “Baa2” are
judged to be upper-medium grade and are subject to
low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Given
that significant portion of the bank deposits are placed
with banks that are independently rated with high credit
rating with no default history in past years, management
of the Group considers that the credit risk on the bank
balances and bank deposits is limited.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans. The Group's policy is to minimise borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

fEEmM (E)

(i) MITBRESRBITER(H)
Ak tgRE (—HE KR
EEFARB)RENRHEER
HR-BBEFRFNETHRES
[Baa2 | EERIAA/T LEMR
EERRE - ERXKRIDHIRT
RN EBLIRBSE
EFRARBEFELEENE
SEHRTT AREEEER SR
THRHERBTERNEERRE
MR -

N & & B R
AEERAEEERBHESRETA
ERHACHEBRAR XTAZ B3

ERTAREREE (WRKIKRR) Z
AMAREB AR RE-

AEEZBERERBREERRITERR
FEESHERERBEEZHERF
H-AEEIBREREERIEE-

Boo
A&

REBRBREHREZEFTHERUE
NMREEFEZeRABEIHA RN
T

2024
—BClE

Over Carrying

On demand 1 year Total amount at

or less than  but less than Over undiscounted 31 March

12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2024

RZBZNE

BER Bil1E AEH Z=A=+-H

D128 A BOR5%E Bils5E HERELE B9 AR {E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET FET TEL FET

Trade payables JERTBR R 7,680 - - 7,680 7,680

Financial liabilities A ENRIE

included in other payables, B FEREKEE

accruals, and deposits received SRAaRE 23,611 - - 23,611 23,611

Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 13,147 - - 13,147 13,147

44,438 - - 44,438 44,438

=X EREEEEAR A A 2023/2024 £ 227
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

42. E@;ﬁ)ﬁlﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&ﬁw%

=

nBEEEMR (F)

2023
—R-zE
Over
On demand 1 year Total Carrying
or less than Over  undiscounted amount at
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 March 2023
R-B_=%F
2R AEFE ZA=+—H
S2(EA HiBsFE HEREBRAR HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET FEL FET
Trade payables BRI 6,341 = = 6,341 6,341
Financial liabilities STAE fi e 308 -
included in other payables, it REREKEEZ
accruals, and deposits received SRAE 22,402 - - 22,402 22,402
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE = = = = =
28,743 - - 28,743 28,743

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the
prior year.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

BEXER

AEBEAERZIBZEABRARER
SEAGRELE 2RI RERRRE
MBERLL R U HEERRIERK
REE-AKBEMNREEREE EFR

AEERBEERAZEBMERE
REBAMAFE - REFHFHEE
AR AEEREGHB MR FIKHE
Z BB A B R R B & AN 3K 3 AT R R

KEKHNR - RBEE_T_NFR=
E_—F=-A=t+-—HILEFER &
BEARZBIZ HERKBFRITELIR

=8 e
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. KA Z2HBIRA T
THE COMPANY

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note a) RB AR Z&KE
(FizEa) 46,409 75,768
46,409 75,768
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayment, deposits and BNRE Rk
other receivables H 4th i U 5108 100 7,514
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREeFEY 61 1,070
161 8,584
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H i & RIE N e AT
g 3,642 3,094
Interest-bearing borrowings FEBE 13,147 =
16,789 3,094
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS wE (BEFRE)
BEFE (16,628) 5,490
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEBERRBERE
LIABILITIES 29,781 81,258
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Due to subsidiaries JE A B B A &) (26,461) (26,461)
Net assets BEFE 3,320 54,797
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 8,728 8,728
Reserves (note b) fEE (MisEb) (5,408) 46,069
Total equity T 48 R 3,320 54,797

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June

2024 and is signed on its behalf by:

Chung Yuk Lun

ARABNHBRARCEEZTGN -
T_MERNRAZTN\BHERRET
BAXANTATIRARE:

Lai Pik Chi Peggy

EER ;
Director Director
EBE 2
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Included in investment in subsidiaries are amount due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$13,953,000 (2023: HK$39,916,000).

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

43. AT ZBHBRRAFT (8)

B 5

(a) JE Uk BT BB A &) B IE 913,953,000 7T (=
T~ =4 :39,916,000/ 7T) st ARKI B D
RZIE -

(b) ARBZHEEHELT :

Share premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
g 63 itk (8 AR BNESR BithsiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 R-ZT-__FMWA—H 247,085 212,481 (368,693) 90,873
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERAZAE
expense for the year - - (44,804) (44,804)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R=ZZT=Z=F=A=+—HRk
—E-=F/MA—H 247,085 212,481 (413,497) 46,069
Loss and total comprehensive FAEBEREERIAE
expense for the year - - (51,477) (51,477)
At 31 March 2024 RZZE-_NF=A=+—H 247,085 212,481 (464,974) (5,408)

The Company’s contributed surplus at 31 March 2024
represents the difference between the consolidated net
asset value of EGL on 8 February 1996, the day on which its
entire issued share capital was acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Group reorganisation referred to in note 31,
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
consideration for such acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders under certain circumstances.

RZE-_NFE=A=+—HB A7
ZHBANBHESEEER - AAKREF
“ANB(RRBREMEIFAALZ
AEBSHRBEEZHBEHTRAZ
RIZHEEEEFREEERARAYLE
EFHEREMBITZARBDRMNEE
2R ER-

BREBEBRE-NAN—FRADE (K&
1) ARABZBABBANE THER
TORTRR-
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Particulars of Properties

MEET
31 March 2024
—T-WME=A=+—H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Use

Hh B4 ik

A. EME

Tenure

HE

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AEE
FE{L LS

B5, 4th Floor, Block B, Industrial
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
B I%¥
NEERE
B 2 47161858
XETERE
BEEAIEBSE

House No. 203 and Vacant
two car parking spaces,
Boulevard Du Lac,
The Beverly Hills,
23 Sam Mun Tsai Road,
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong
BB =8
AR
= PIF B8 235%
EEZE AL Bl 22
=8
2[5 B 20355 K /M B iz

Shop 240 on 2nd Floor, Commercial
China Travel Commercial City,
No. 219 Zhong Shan Wu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
hEERE EES
BN T S =
L R BE2195%
S IgEES
58 — B 2405 &

Medium

R

N/A

Medium

T8

100%

100%

100%

SHEXERBEEER QR 2023/2024 Fii
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Particulars of Properties
MREN

31 March 2024

—Z-ME=R=+—H

B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CLASSIFIED AS B. #HiEABEHEMNREYME
HELD FOR SALE

Applicable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
AEE
b 25 A& HE FE{LHEZS
B1, 6th Floor, Block B, Industrial Medium 100%
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BB Ix &
NEEEIE
B AT16-185%
EEIEANE
BEEGIEBI =
Completion for the disposal of the above properties took HEFAMEER_TE_WFRA=
place in 3 May 2024. HIER e
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